
Town of West Newbury 
Board of Selectmen 

Tuesday, September 4, 2018 @6pm 
381 Main Street, Town Office Building 

www.wnewbury.org 

AGENDA 

Executive Session: 6pm in the Town Manager's Office 

. f!!E.C[/1/ff• T ou,N -u 
WEST 

1,1-• CLERK Nr.WBURY, NA
1818 AUG 30 AH II: 54

• MGL Chapter 30A §21 (a) 2: To conduct strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with nonunion
personnel or to conduct collective bargaining sessions or contract negotiations with nonunion personnel;

• MGL Chapter 30A §2l(a) 3: To discuss strategy with respect to collective bargaining or litigation if an
open meeting may have a detrimental effect on the bargaining or litigating position of the public body
and the chair so declares;

• Executive Session Minutes dated August 20, 2018

Open Session: 7pm in the First Floor Hearing Room 

Announcements: This meeting is being broadcasted on local cable TV and recorded for rebroadcast on the 
local cable channels and on the internet. 

• State Primary, Tuesday September 4th open until 8pm in the Annex@ 381 Main Street

Regular Business 

A. Senator Bruce Tarr and Representative Leonard Mirra: Funding for Bicentennial Celebrations
B. Update from the Bicentennial Committee
C. Request for Street Opening Permit: l 0A Norine Drive
D. Request for one day liquor license for Gary Bill retirement party on Sept. 13 from 6-8pm in Annex
E. Review of the Town of Salisbury Intermunicipal Harbormaster Agreement - cont'd from Aug. 20
F. Review ofrelocation of current public safety sign - cont'd from Aug. 20
G. Update on Pipestave Committee & Parks and Recreation proposals to Community Preservation

Committee
H. Review of proposed and potential warrant articles for Fall Town Meeting
I. Selectmen's Meeting minutes dated August 20, 2018

Town Manager Updates 
J. Process for appointment and management authority for DPW Director
K. Review of FY' 19 Salary Range Schedule
L. Review method to accrue vacation and sick time for qualified part time employees

M. Follow up meeting assignments
N. Placing items for future agendas

Posted Agenda on 8130/2018 at the Town Offices and the Town's Official Website uww. wnewbury.org 



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 
TO:  Board of Selectmen 
FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
DATE: August 20, 2018 
RE:  Bicentennial Committee update 
 
 

On August 15 I met with Committee Chair KC Swallow, following on a previous meeting we held in 
July and a number of phone conversations. The Committee will submit an update for inclusion in the 
September 4th BoS meeting packet, and will be represented at the meeting, but I the meantime I am 
providing this general summary of my understanding of the status of the Committee’s planning: 
 

- The Committee will next meet on August 21 (tomorrow) at 6 PM, with a focus on fundraising, 
and finalizing a sponsorship brochure to be sent to potential financial sponsors establishing 
different tiers of support. 

- Friday, Sept. 7: Red Sox bus trip  
- The Committee is organizing three days of comments on Feb. 22-24, 2019 to commemorate the 

bicentennial anniversary on Feb. 19th: 
o Friday, Feb 22: showcase of local bands; venue, Pentucket H.S. 
o Saturday, Feb 23: black tie gala; venue, Groveland Country Club 
o Sunday, Feb 24: Town birthday party for families and kids 

- Committee will participate in Memorial Day Parade 
- A week of events will take place from July 7-14, 2019: 

o Saturday, July 7: bicentennial opening ceremony, pancake breakfast, town picture, a 
town-wide public service project  

o Sunday, July 8: annual horse trials event by Riding & Driving Club 
o Monday, July 9: potential screening of Voices of West Newbury, historical society 

scavenger hunt, library historical showcase  
o Tuesday, July 10: ice cream social 
o Wedn., July 11: Page School exhibit of kids’ work “What West Newbury means to me” 
o Thursday, July 12: band concert, movie night in Annex 
o Friday, July 13: country dance 
o Saturday, July 14: field day at Pipestave, fireworks, possible Fire Dept. muster 
o Sunday, July 15: Riding & Driving Club equine/agricultural day 

- In Fall 2019, a closing ceremony will be held, with the burial of a time capsule, and the October 
Harvest Road Race will be ramped up in recognition of the Bicentennial. 

 

In addition to events it organizes directly, the Committee is putting together a master calendar of 
events inclusive of events organized by other groups in town, i.e. Historical Society, Garden Club, 
Riding & Driving Club, etc. The Committee’s plan is to ramp up its public outreach and visibility 
efforts after Labor Day.  
 

This information should be considered draft, pending updates directly from the Committee on Sept. 
4th, but is intended to share my understanding of the preparations underway. 

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
ajennings
Text Box
B



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, MA  01985 
 

STREET OPENING PERMIT 
 
Permit No: 2019-03                       Date:  September 4, 2018 
 
The Board of Selectmen grants permission to Barry Sullivan, authorizing agent for Vincent and Maria 
Vinciguerra (“Owners”) to install a driveway to a new house located at 10A Norino Drive, West Newbury, 
Mass., as shown on the attached plan. Said work to be done within one year from the date of this permit in 
accordance with the bylaw governing such work to the following conditions: 
 

• Application and Plan to become a part of Permit. 
• Application, permit and new plan to be in the possession of contractor at the site at time of 

construction.  
• List all underground utility services and show location on plan. 
• This permit does not provide authorization for the removal of trees. 

 
SUPERINTENDENT OF STREETS: 
 
Digout and gravel driveway with 12 inches of processed gravel.  Pave driveway. 
Grade left side of driveway so that water does not pond there.  Once old driveway is torn out, fill by edge of road 
so that run off water from road does not run onto the property.  Loam and seed all disturbed areas, no track 
equipment on pavement unless plywood is put down. 
 
Water line: Mole new service across street, any disturbed pavement must be paved to existing thickness.  If you 
dig into road, must backfill with process gravel and compacted.  Loam and seed all disturbed areas.  No track 
equipment on road unless pads are put down. 
 
Call Gary Bill, Superintendent of Streets when starting work at 978-363-1100 x120. 
 
WATER DEPARTMENT: 
 
Installing a new 1” water service and they are required to push/mole under the road (Norino Drive) to make the 
connection to the 8” water main (see DPW notes).  Michael Gootee’  explained what needs to be done to 
Barry Sullivan. 
        BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

  
________________________ 
Glenn A. Kemper, Chairman 

 
       ________________________ 

David W. Archibald 
 
        __________________________ 
        Joseph H. Anderson, Jr. 
I hereby certify that I will 
adhere to the above conditions: 
 
_____________________________ 
Barry Sullivan  
Barsully6@yahoo.com/978-815-7689 
 
 cc:   Building Inspector, Highway Superintendent, Water Superintendent  

ajennings
Text Box
C





ajennings
Text Box
D



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 

 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 
 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 

DATE: August 30, 2018August 31, 2018 
 

RE:  Intermunicipal agreement with Salisbury Harbormaster for pump-out services 
 
 

The Board took up the attached agreement at its August 20 meeting but it was tabled, with a request 
for more information about costs and how often the pump-out service is utilized. 
 
The agreement provides for quarterly reporting of activity, and I have enclosed the most recent 
quarterly report on file, which runs through June 2018. I am in correspondence with the Salisbury 
Harbormaster and he will prepare an interim report covering July, which I expect to have prior to 
Tuesday’s meeting. 
 
Payments were made in the amounts of $1,736.30 in FY18 and $345.00 so far in FY19 pursuant to 
the prior Intermunicipal Agreement (which was identical in form, with the one change being a $4,000 
cost in FY18 v. a $6,000 cost in FY19). The approved FY19 town budget includes an expense line of 
$6,000 for Harbormaster. 
 
Bigger picture – and beyond the scope of Tuesday’s decision on the Intermunicipal Agreement – 
during my initial tenure I’ve had a number of conversations and correspondences with residents 
abutting the river regarding concerns about boat speeds, wakes, towing children without a spotter, and 
boating safety in general. My office is currently responsible for administering the Town’s 
Harbormaster responsibilities, established in local Bylaw and State law, and I want to be sure that 
we’re doing what we need to do, in coordination with others as needed, to meet those responsibilities. 
I have reached out to the Harbor Committee to suggest that they schedule a meeting to talk over these 
matters in more detail. 
 
I am preliminarily looking into whether and how the Salisbury agreement could change in the future 
in order to provide a different level of service, inclusive of periodic monitoring and enforcement, if 
agreed and properly budgeted. This may or may not be a service that Salisbury could provide, and 
may instead rely on an Intermunicipal Agreement with a different community. I’ll report back to the 
Board when I have further information to support a recommendation. 
 
 

 

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
ajennings
Text Box
E



























Proposed location 
for relocation of 
existing sign upon 
installation of 

new sign

ajennings
Text Box
F



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 

 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 
 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 

DATE: August 31, 2018 
 

RE:  Update on CPC recommendations of proposed Pipestave / Dunn articles 
 
 

Two proposals were submitted to the Community Preservation Committee for potential consideration 
at the Fall Town Meeting, both related to the Pipestave / Dunn area. As noted in the enclosed 
correspondence, the Pipestave Committee’s recommendation to put forward a proposal targeted to 
solve the existing/near-term parking challenges was not recommended. Instead, the CPC favored 
incorporating that objective into the broader study and engineering process proposed by the Parks & 
Recreation Committee for the Dunn property. 
 
In discussion with Chairman Kemper, we both agreed that the downside of the CPC recommendation 
is that it leaves no option for residents to support a resolution to the current parking challenges 
without also supporting funding for a larger study and design of the Dunn property. Further, in the 
event that Town Meeting does not support the larger proposal, for whatever reason, we would be back 
to square one on the current parking challenges. 
 
Chairman Kemper advised that I include a placeholder article on the Fall Town Meeting warrant, for 
consideration by the Board of Selectmen, to fund the Pipestave parking work as a stand-alone 
initiative. This placeholder is included for discussion later on tonight’s agenda. 
 
I met with Bill Bachrach on August 31 to review in more detail how these two initiatives could best 
proceed within the single proposal, building on prior discussions he and I have had. One of the goals 
would be to prioritize the Pipestave parking design and permitting to allow for it to proceed during an 
initial phase of construction. We agreed that, if two proposals are brought to the voters, it will be 
important to coordinate public communications to ensure clarity and minimize potential voter 
confusion. 
 
It should be noted that the cost estimates for the Pipestave parking relied on the assumption that the 
DPW Director would serve as general contractor for the project, subbing out different aspects of the 
work. Gary has advised, and I concur, that the costs to move forward with such a proposal would be 
higher, perhaps significantly, if the work were to be contracted out as a single construction job. Gary 
will be in attendance at Tuesday’s meeting to ensure that we can be responsive to whatever questions 
the Board may have. 
 
 
  

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
ajennings
Text Box
G



1

Town Manager

From: Community Preservation Committee
Sent: Tuesday, August 28, 2018 10:59 AM
To: Town Manager
Subject: Applications to CPC

Dear Angus, 
 
The CPC did not vote to approve the Application for Funding for Pipestave Hill Rehabilitation to Improve Parking and 
Circulation at their meeting on August 23rd. 
 
The members felt that the proposal should be included in the Conceptual Master Plan, and support that a priority be 
given to the parking and circulation situation once the Master Plan has been completed.  They felt it was not wise to 
design and built the additional parking area without first making sure that it would not conflict with other parts of the 
Dunn Property uses.  One member felt that voters would be very confused at Town Meeting with two overlapping 
articles, and that voters would turn both down in frustration. 
 
I do commend you for the well prepared and written Applications. 
 
Let me know if you have any questions.  I know that Bill Bachrach will be meeting with you on how to proceed with the 
priority. 
 
Jean Nelson 
CPC Administrator 



From: Tom Flaherty
To: Town Manager
Cc: David Archibald; Kathy/Rick Feehery; Ryan Goodwin; Gary Bill
Subject: Re: FW: Applications to CPC
Date: Wednesday, August 29, 2018 1:02:36 PM

angus

thank you for the follow-up about the CPC meeting decisions

i'm disappointed that the CPC didn't understand our Pipestave Committee decision about being
separate !!
     just because the Master Plan has an Upper Dunn parking proposal isn't adequate reasoning
for not 
          understanding that our proposal was simply and separately for more parking in the
Pipestave area;
     so..........if our master plan is defeated, we do not have a solution for the parking issues at
Pipestave !!!

hopefully, the P+R Conceptual Master Plan will be approved and the solution for more
parking at Pipestave
     will be achieved

best, tom

On Wed, Aug 29, 2018 at 11:55 AM Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> wrote:

Hi Pipestave Committee,

   This may be “old news” to some or all of you, but I’m catching up on post-vacation
correspondence and am forwarding the note from Jean Nelson below.

   As I recall, the Pipestave Committee’s rationale in favoring a separate proposal was to
ensure that the near-term Pipestave parking challenges could still proceed if for whatever
reason Town Meeting doesn’t approve the larger Dunn planning effort.  As it will turn out,
the Pipestave parking and Dunn planning efforts will proceed as one.  I’ll meet with Bill
Bachrach this Friday to review in more detail how this can work best.

 

Thanks,

Angus

 

Angus Jennings, Town Manager

Town of West Newbury

Town Office Building

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
mailto:darchibald@wnewbury.org
mailto:feehery@comcast.net
mailto:ryan@little-king.com
mailto:gbill@wnewbury.org
mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


381 Main Street

West Newbury, MA 01985

(978) 363-1100 x111

townmanager@wnewbury.org

 

From: Community Preservation Committee 
Sent: Tuesday, August 28, 2018 10:59 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org>
Subject: Applications to CPC

 

Dear Angus,

 

The CPC did not vote to approve the Application for Funding for Pipestave Hill
Rehabilitation to Improve Parking and Circulation at their meeting on August 23rd.

 

The members felt that the proposal should be included in the Conceptual Master Plan, and
support that a priority be given to the parking and circulation situation once the Master Plan
has been completed.  They felt it was not wise to design and built the additional parking area
without first making sure that it would not conflict with other parts of the Dunn Property
uses.  One member felt that voters would be very confused at Town Meeting with two
overlapping articles, and that voters would turn both down in frustration.

 

I do commend you for the well prepared and written Applications.

 

Let me know if you have any questions.  I know that Bill Bachrach will be meeting with you
on how to proceed with the priority.

 

Jean Nelson

CPC Administrator

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


From: Town Manager
To: Glenn Kemper; David Archibald; Joe Anderson
Cc: Michael McCarron; Mary Winglass
Subject: FW: CPC eligibility and funding proposals for Pipestave
Date: Wednesday, August 22, 2018 2:35:32 PM

Board,
   I am forwarding the thread below FYI.  I spoke with Bill B. a short time ago and we both agreed it
makes sense to put these questions, and others as may arise in the meantime, on the 9/4 BoS
agenda since the Board has care & custody of the Dunn property and has authority over these
matters.
   As noted below, I’ve put a request to Mike for a couple of opinions related to when and for what
purposes BoS votes may be needed to authorize different aspects of the work: contracting, design,
site work.  This information will be available for the 9/4 BoS mtg packet.
 
Thanks,
Angus
 

From: Town Manager 
Sent: Wednesday, August 22, 2018 12:38 PM
To: 'William Bachrach' <bachrachw@comcast.net>
Subject: RE: CPC eligibility and funding proposals for Pipestave
 
My responses are below, although these are not binding on the BoS which has authority on several
of the questions.
 

From: William Bachrach <bachrachw@comcast.net> 
Sent: Wednesday, August 22, 2018 7:14 AM
To: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org>
Subject: RE: CPC eligibility and funding proposals for Pipestave
 
HI Angus,
 
Thank you for the information.
 
If possible, please let me know if you could chat today at 10:30AM or 1PM today, if possible.
 
My comments are
 
The Project Application Funding that P&R is submitting follows a specific set of steps which includes
input on the Wetland and Endangered Species Area and Traffic Impact Assessment Study.
 
Based on this information and feedback from the meetings with the residents a Conceptual Master
Plan would be submitted.  The Upper Dunn Field was going to have a parking lot design and the
possibility of a concession stand, restroom facilities, fitness trail, etc.
 

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
mailto:gkemper@wnewbury.org
mailto:darchibald@wnewbury.org
mailto:janderson@wnewbury.org
mailto:mmccarron@wnewbury.org
mailto:mwinglass@wnewbury.org
mailto:bachrachw@comcast.net
mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


My questions are
 

1.  If both warrants pass, how are the two items integrated to work together? 
 

The Pipestave proposal was written such that it could stand alone, in the event that it passes
but P+R proposal does not.  If they both pass, the engineering, planning and public outreach
should be fully coordinated, whether by using the same vendor, or coordinating the work of
both vendors. 

 
2.  Does this Upper Dunn Parking Lot Entrance and Design come from the Cammett Engineering

Scopes of Service?
 

No, the Pipestave proposal carries a line item for engineering/permitting.  If approved, this
work could be incorporated into a single work scope or contracted separately.  Because the
Dunn property is under the care & custody of the BoS I’ve asked the Town Counsel for an
opinion as to where the contracting authority would rest.  If the answer is unclear, or relies
on a vote of the BoS to clarify, I would expect to put this question to the BoS at their 9/4
mtg.

 
3.  How many parking spaces will the Upper Dunn Parking have from the Advisory Committee

Application?
 
Unknown; Gary has an estimate but this would be subject to change if/as project design
moves forward.

 
4.  If both warrant articles pass, will there be two committees 1) An  Advisory Committee  leading

the  Upper Dunn Property Parking and  2) P&R Commissioners leading the Conceptual Master
Plan

 
The Pipestave Committee was established as a limited-duration Advisory Committee, and it
made its recommendations to the BoS which authorized submittal of the CPC application.  I
think the Committee feels that it has substantially completed its charge, and did not
schedule a next meeting, but discussed that it may come back into play if the CPC proposal is
not recommended for the warrant or is not approved by Town Mtg.  However, I do not know
if the BoS would then create a new Committee (or, more likely, modify the charge of the
Pipestave Committee) to have a role in the design and implementation phases, or if it would
defer to P&R, or assign this responsibility elsewhere. 
 

5.  If there are not two committees,  will these two committees fold into one group with P&R
Commissioners leading the Conceptual Master Plan which includes the Upper Dunn Property
Parking?

 
Same as above.  Because the BoS owns the property, they’ll have authority to specify how
they’d like this to proceed.

 



Thank you,
Bill
 

From: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org> 
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 3:55 PM
To: Bill Bachrach (bachrachw@comcast.net) <bachrachw@comcast.net>
Subject: FW: CPC eligibility and funding proposals for Pipestave
 
Bill - below and attached FYI; I’ve also attached a memo that was included in last night’s BoS packet
but is not part of the CPC submittal.  Both the Pipestave Committee and the BoS considered the
options of a stand-alone CPC submittal v. incorporating a submittal into the P+R proposal, as you and
I discussed on Friday, but their preference was a stand-alone proposal.  Obviously, the two are highly
complementary, and the CPC proposal was written to make this point explicit, and to note the
expectation that if both are funded the design work would proceed in coordination.
 

From: Town Manager 
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 2:26 PM
To: Jean Nelson (cpc@wnewbury.org) <cpc@wnewbury.org>
Subject: CPC eligibility and funding proposals for Pipestave
 
Jean,
   Please find attached, intended for consideration by the Community Preservation Committee for
potential referral to the Fall Town Meeting.
   I am aware that this submittal is late, and request the Committee’s consideration in light of the
short timeline for preparation of the submittal.  Although the Pipestave Committee had set a
tentative direction at its August 8 meeting, it was only last night that the Committee confirmed its
recommendation to submit a CPC proposal for Concept 2.  At last night’s Board of Selectmen
meeting, the Board voted to confirm this direction, and this submittal is on their behalf.
   Thanks in advance for your and the Committee’s consideration.  Eight hard copies will be hand
delivered to your office shortly.  If you would prefer that I transmit the PDF or hard copies to the CPC
members directly, I’d be happy to do so.
   DPW Director Gary Bill and WNRDC member Kathy Feheery, both of whom are members of the
Pipestave, Parking, Circulation and Land Use Advisory Committee, will attend this Thursday’s CPC
meeting to represent the proposals and answer questions.
 
Thanks,
Angus
 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager
Town of West Newbury
Town Office Building
381 Main Street
West Newbury, MA 01985
(978) 363-1100 x111
townmanager@wnewbury.org

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
mailto:bachrachw@comcast.net
mailto:bachrachw@comcast.net
mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org
mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org
mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 
TO:  Board of Selectmen 
 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 

DATE: August 31, 2018 
 

RE:  Review of proposed warrant articles for Fall Town Meeting 
 
 

The following warrant articles have been submitted, and are enclosed: 
 

1. FY19 Request for $30,000 in Additional Funds in the Board of Health “Expenses” line item 
#510-5400 to fund installation of additional monitoring devices and additional frequency of 
testing for the post-closure of the Steele Landfill.1 Sponsored by the Board of Health. 

2. FY19 Request for $50,000 in Additional Funds in the Board of Health “Waste Collection” 
line item #510-5290 to fund additional costs for disposal of recycled materials.2 Sponsored by 
the Board of Health. 

3. Request for $4,000 for architectural services to draw and cost out a proposed Annex design. 
Sponsored by the Community Center Committee. 

4. Proposed funding of $51,500 from the Community Preservation Committee Recreation fund 
for a Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn property. 
Sponsored by the Community Preservation Committee. 

 
In addition, I expect to receive the following warrant articles from the Planning Department before 
Tuesday evening: 

 
5. Proposed amendments to the Zoning Bylaw Sec. 5.G. Large-Scale Ground-Mounted Solar 

Photovoltaic Overlay District Bylaw. Sponsored by the Planning Board. 
6. Proposed amendments to the Zoning Bylaw Sec. 6.B. Open Space Preservation Development. 

Sponsored by the Planning Board. 
 
There was also discussion at the August 13 Board of Selectmen / Finance Committee meeting about 
the potential to bring forward one or more articles in order to implement certain recommendations 

                                                           
1 Paul Sevigny and I had a conference call with DEP this morning, following on active correspondence the past 
several months. It is not yet known what testing frequencies will be required but we are on track to have a DEP 
approved monitoring plan – which will establish required frequencies, and allow Health to finalize cost numbers – 
prior to Town Meeting (and possible prior to the Board of Selectmen signing the Town Meeting warrant). For now, 
I’ve advised Paul to use conservative budgeting numbers, and he’ll be re-reviewing the proposal in the packet to 
ensure that the number reviewed on Tuesday night is set at a level to include the potential frequencies based on 
feedback from DEP earlier today. 
2 An estimate of the tax rate impact if $50,000 were to be added to the operating budget, and not funded from 
Free Cash, is attached. 

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
ajennings
Text Box
H



2 

from the Community Compact reports. Selectman Anderson has advanced the ball on this effort, and 
brought forward the following recommendations: 

 
7. Reaccept M.G.L. c. 32B, § 20 to establish a GASB-compliant OPEB trust fund. (See DLS 

Financial Policy Manual, June 2018, page 1). 
8. Authorize the prudent investor rule as detailed in M.G.L. c. 203C to make available the 

options required to meet the investment goals of the OPEB trust. (See DLS Financial Policy 
Manual, June 2018, page 1). 

9. Designate the treasurer/collector as OPEB trust fund trustee. (See DLS Financial Policy 
Manual, June 2018, page 2). 

10. Accept M.G.L. c. 200A, § 9A to establish expedited procedures for managing uncashed 
checks. (See DLS Financial Policy Manual, June 2018, page 2). 

11. Accept M.G.L. c. 60, § 62A to authorize the establishment of payment agreements for 
properties in tax title. (See DLS Financial Policy Manual, June 2018, page 2, including 
template language for a warrant article). 

 
Finally, I’d like the Board to consider whether to also propose warrant articles on the following items: 

 
12. Proposed increase of $26,000 in the FY19 Police Department Salary & Wages (School 

Resource Officer) expense budget and proposed increase of $26,000 in FY19 budgeted 
revenue from Pentucket School District to offset the costs of the SRO. Revenue neutral 
proposal to implement Auditor recommendation to budget full expense and revenue offset. 

13. Proposed funding of up to $110,000 from Free Cash to support design, permitting and 
construction of parking and circulation improvements on the Pipestave and Dunn properties. 
Pipestave Committee project summary to CPC, enclosed. 

14. Proposed increase of up to $2,500 in the Selectmen Temporary Pay expense budget to 
support continued work on organizing the Board’s files, and to support temporary office 
coverage in the event of overlapping staff absences. 

15. Proposed increase of up to $35,000 in the DPW expense budget to fund consulting support as 
necessary to prepare a Stormwater Management Plan and related FY19 tasks required for the 
Town of West Newbury to comply with the U.S. EPA General Permit for Stormwater 
Discharges from Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) in Massachusetts.3 
We are on track to complete the Notice of Intent (NOI) as required by October 1, thanks to 
support from MVPC. However, our work scope with MVPC does not include work beyond 
the preparation of the NOI, and it is evident that the amount of work needed to meet these 
requirements exceeds current staff capacity – or, at the very least, would require substantial 
changes to several departments’ work plans and would come at a cost of other Town 
priorities, if we were to attempt to complete this entirely in-house. MVPC can devote an 
additional approximately 35 hours this fiscal year through the Local Technical Assistance 
Program, but even if this entire amount was devoted to MS4 compliance it would fall well 
short of the support needed. Merrimac, which has outsourced a number of components of its 
MS4 compliance, received bids for consulting support (in Year 1 only) ranging from $34,000 
to $200,000. Their situation is more complicated because they also have a public sewer, and I 

                                                           
3 The EPA permit applicable to West Newbury is online here: 
https://www3.epa.gov/region1/npdes/stormwater/ma/2016fpd/final-2016-ma-sms4-gp.pdf 

https://www3.epa.gov/region1/npdes/stormwater/ma/2016fpd/final-2016-ma-sms4-gp.pdf


3 

prepared my estimate of our potential costs on the basis of my review of their current contract 
with an engineering firm, as well as a couple of proposals they received which their DPW 
Director was gracious enough to share. Cost drivers in Merrimac included preparation of the 
Stormwater Management Plan ($13,000); the Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 
(IDDE) plan ($10,400); the Annual Report ($4,000); and training ($1,800). I’ll be working 
with the staff Stormwater Working Group to determine what required Year 1 tasks we can 
complete in-house, what we’ll need consultant (or engineering) support to complete, then to 
assign cost estimates to those tasks; in the meantime, I see the Merrimac work as a reasonable 
basis for estimating Year 1 consultant costs. If an article to fund this work does move 
forward, I recommend establishing a separate expense line in the DPW budget so as to 
segregate costs for MS4 compliance. The regulatory and reporting burden on the Town will 
increase during each year of the 5-year permit, and it will be helpful to track these costs to 
ensure our understanding of the financial impact of this substantial unfunded mandate.4 

 
Once the Board closes the warrant, I’ll work with Mary, Town Counsel and key staff to draw up specific 
language for review by the Board and the Moderator for those warrant articles that are included. 

One potential future cost item that I am not proposing at this time, but I want to bring to your attention, is 
the potential future need for a DPW Director vehicle. Gary Bill uses his own vehicle, and receives a 
monthly auto allowance to offset his costs. While the new DPW Director may find this situation 
workable, in the event that a new Director is hired that does not own a personal vehicle suitable for the 
needs of the job, it may become necessary to consider purchasing a DPW Director vehicle in the future. 

                                                           
4 Complete information regarding the Massachusetts Small MS4 General Permit is online here: 
https://www.epa.gov/npdes-permits/massachusetts-small-ms4-general-permit 

https://www.epa.gov/npdes-permits/massachusetts-small-ms4-general-permit


ajennings
Text Box
H-1























ajennings
Text Box
H-2













































Fiscal West Newbury's Total Tax Total Tax Current Projected Tax Rate Difference in Tax Rate
Year Prior Valuation Levy Levy with Increase Tax Rate with Increase Due to Increase % Increase

2018 894,497,761.00$      13,023,887.40$          $13,073,887.40 $14.56 $14.62 $0.06 0.38%

Fiscal Average Single Current Average Single Family Tax Rate on New Average Single Family **Average Single Family
**Average Single 

Family
Year Family Home Value Tax Rate Tax Bill Before Valuation Tax Bill After Increase in Tax Dollars % Increase

2018 $539,137.00 $14.56 $7,849.83 $14.62 $7,879.97 $30.14 0.38%

Fiscal Single Family Current Average Single Family Tax Rate on New Average Single Family **Average Single Family
**Average Single 

Family
Year Home Value Tax Rate Tax Bill Before Valuation Tax Bill After Increase in Tax Dollars % Increase

2018 $100,000.00 $14.56 $1,456.00 $14.62 $1,461.59 $5.59 0.38%
2018 $200,000.00 $14.56 $2,912.00 $14.62 $2,923.18 $11.18 0.38%
2018 $250,000.00 $14.56 $3,640.00 $14.62 $3,653.97 $13.97 0.38%
2018 $300,000.00 $14.56 $4,368.00 $14.62 $4,384.77 $16.77 0.38%
2018 $350,000.00 $14.56 $5,096.00 $14.62 $5,115.56 $19.56 0.38%
2018 $400,000.00 $14.56 $5,824.00 $14.62 $5,846.36 $22.36 0.38%
2018 $500,000.00 $14.56 $7,280.00 $14.62 $7,307.95 $27.95 0.38%
2018 $600,000.00 $14.56 $8,736.00 $14.62 $8,769.54 $33.54 0.38%
2018 $700,000.00 $14.56 $10,192.00 $14.62 $10,231.13 $39.13 0.38%
2018 $800,000.00 $14.56 $11,648 $14.62 $11,696.00 $48.00 0.48%

Source: Meredith Stone, MAA, Chief Assessor, 8/29/18

TAX RATE IMPACT FOR AN INCREASE OF $50,000

** The tax rate impact is based on the fiscal year 2018 values and tax rate.

SINGLE FAMILY IMPACT OF AN ASSESSMENT INCREASE OF $50,000

** The average single family home value is taken from fiscal year 2018



1

Town Manager

From: Joe Anderson
Sent: Thursday, August 30, 2018 3:39 PM
To: Paul Sevigny
Cc: Town Manager
Subject: BOH Article Recycling
Attachments: BOH Article Recycling.pdf

Paul – 
 
I’m having trouble with the math on the recycling Special Article Request. It’s stated that the current cost is $94.87 per 
ton vs. $8.00 last year, for a net increase of $86.87. It also states that “an average of 500 tons is processed per fiscal 
year.”  
 
This will be voted on October 22nd, which leaves only 8 months left in this fiscal year. With only 67% of the year 
remaining, that’s about 333 tons for FY ‘19. $86.87 times 333 = $28,954. 
 
Joe 
 
Joe Anderson, Selectman 
Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
Phone: 978‐360‐0829. 
 

Local Government Builds Stronger Communities 

Learn more about the exciting things we are up to at: www.wnewbury.org 
 
The Massachusetts Secretary of State considers e‐mail to be a public record. This communication may also contain legally privileged or confidential information, 
which may be exempt from public disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient or believe that you have received this communication in error, you are notified 
that any dissemination or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please delete it and destroy all 
copies. 
 
 



1

Town Manager

From: Blake Seale <bjseale3@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, August 30, 2018 5:18 PM
To: Joe Anderson
Cc: Paul Sevigny; Town Manager
Subject: Re: BOH Article RecyclingMello disposal has been picking up a fee for over a year

Joe 
I would like to explain the reasoning for the amount discussed of 50 k for recycling increase. Mello disposal has been 
paying for our recycling of sometimes $7sometimes $8 sometimes $35 sometimes $50 a month and higher out of his 
own pocket. He came into one of our BOH meeting with Angus, Mike McCarran and also the selectmen were invited to 
and we discussed that the cost was getting too much for him to pick up on his own. At that meeting the board decided 
to start paying Mr. Mello from that point forward starting in July at that point it was in the mid $90.00 and the price 
could go up and down because no one knows where this is going. So we put simple numbers together we average about 
480 tons of year for recycling and at that time where it was approaching $100 a ton we said 500 tons at $100 per ton for 
the year that’s where we came up with $50,000. I hope you will pass along this information to the other 2 selectmen and 
if you have any other questions you can contact me at any time and I hope this answers your questions  
Thanks Blake  
(978) 697‐8773 

Sent from my iPhone 
 
On Aug 30, 2018, at 4:36 PM, Joe Anderson <janderson@wnewbury.org> wrote: 

Paul – 
The reason I’m asking is that on Tuesday we’re going to close the warrant. Based on the numbers we 
were given it looks like $28,954 is the amount that should go on the article.  
Joe 
  
Joe Anderson, Selectman 
Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
Phone: 978‐360‐0829. 
  
Local Government Builds Stronger Communities 
Learn more about the exciting things we are up to at: www.wnewbury.org 
  
The Massachusetts Secretary of State considers e‐mail to be a public record. This communication may also contain legally privileged or 
confidential information, which may be exempt from public disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient or believe that you have received 
this communication in error, you are notified that any dissemination or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this communication in error, please delete it and destroy all copies. 
  

From: Paul Sevigny  
Sent: Thursday, August 30, 2018 3:51 PM 
To: Joe Anderson <janderson@wnewbury.org> 
Cc: Town Manager <townmanager@wnewbury.org>; Blake Seale (bjseale3@gmail.com) 
<bjseale3@gmail.com> 
Subject: RE: BOH Article Recycling 
  
Joe.   
  



2

I am forwarding the email to Blake.  So he can provide you with justification because he will be the one 
discussing it at town meeting.   
  
Paul 
  
From: Joe Anderson  
Sent: Thursday, August 30, 2018 3:39 PM 
To: Paul Sevigny 
Cc: Town Manager 
Subject: BOH Article Recycling 
  
Paul – 
  
I’m having trouble with the math on the recycling Special Article Request. It’s stated that the current 
cost is $94.87 per ton vs. $8.00 last year, for a net increase of $86.87. It also states that “an average of 
500 tons is processed per fiscal year.”  
  
This will be voted on October 22nd, which leaves only 8 months left in this fiscal year. With only 67% of 
the year remaining, that’s about 333 tons for FY ‘19. $86.87 times 333 = $28,954. 
  
Joe 
  
Joe Anderson, Selectman 
Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 
West Newbury, MA 01985 
Phone: 978‐360‐0829. 
  
Local Government Builds Stronger Communities 
Learn more about the exciting things we are up to at: www.wnewbury.org 
  
The Massachusetts Secretary of State considers e‐mail to be a public record. This communication may also contain legally privileged or 
confidential information, which may be exempt from public disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient or believe that you have received 
this communication in error, you are notified that any dissemination or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this communication in error, please delete it and destroy all copies. 
  
  



ARTICLE REQUEST FORM 
ARTICLE:  
 

AMOUNT REQUESTED:   

CONTACT PERSON:   

PHONE NUMBER:  

 
Why should the Town make this purchase?  What needs will be met?  Who will benefit?    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What factors affect the timing of this purchase?  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
When should this Article be sunsetted--how long will the project take? 
 
 
What ancillary costs do you anticipate? (Maintenance, Insurance, Training, etc.)      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Does this Article involve improvement, preservation or creation of tangible Town-owned assets and projects which 1) have useful life of at least five years; 2) 
cost over $20,000 and or 3) for which the Town is authorized to borrow funds? If so, please confirm that this item is on the Capital Improvements Committee 
Schedule for future capital investments. 
 
 
 
Please attach additional pages or other supporting documentation. 

ajennings
Text Box
H-3



From: Community Preservation Committee
To: Town Manager
Subject: Submittal of Warrant Article
Date: Thursday, August 30, 2018 12:35:15 PM
Attachments: Article Request Form PipestaveDunn Master Plan.pdf

ParksRec_PowerPoint_08142018.pdf
Project Application for Funding_08142018.pdf
Project Application for Eligibility_08142018.pdf

Dear Angus,
 
Attached is an Article Request Form for CPA Funds for the Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area
Expansion to include the Dunn Property, (Assessors Map R26, Lots 19 and 30,)   for
Engineering Services for a Conceptual Master Plan, and related expenses.
 
As backup documentation to the Form, I have attached the CPC Applications for Eligibility and
Funding, and the Powerpoint which was submitted and reviewed last week at the CPC
Meeting.
 
Since you and some of the Finance Committee members are new, I will convey to you the
procedure that we have followed for the past several years.  When the Finance Committee
requests that the  proponent of an article for CPA funds attend a meeting to review an article,
I am notified of that meeting also.  I and CPC members, as available,  will attend that meeting
in order to answer any CPA questions that the Finance Committee might have.
 
Please let me know if this electronic submittal suffices, and if you need any other information. 
Thank you.
 
Jean Nelson
CPC Administrator
978-363-1100 X131
 

mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org
mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org



 


ARTICLE REQUEST FORM  
Community Preservation Committee 


SPECIAL TOWN MEETING, OCTOBER 22, 2018 
 


ARTICLE:  Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property 
  


AMOUNT REQUESTED:   $51,500.00 for a Conceptual Master Plan of the Dunn Property 
CONTACT PERSON:  Parks and Recreation:  Bill Bachrach     CPC: Jean Nelson, CPC Administrator   
PHONE NUMBER:  Bill:  864-303-3189, bachrachw@comcast.new       Jean:  978-363-1100 X131, cpc@wnewbury.org (email is best) 
 At a meeting of the Community Preservation Committee held on August 23, 2018, the Committee voted to approve the Applications 
for Eligibility and Funding for $51,500 for Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property.  Present 
and voting were Joe Anderson, Bill Bachrach, Ray Cook, Bob Janes, Mary Harada, Judy Mizner, and Sherry Pruyn.  The vote in favor 
was 6 to 1. 
 
Why should the Town make this purchase?  What needs will be met?  Who will benefit? 
     
 Please see the attached Applications for Eligibility and Funding, submitted to the CPC by the Parks and Recreation Commission.  
Creating a Conceptual Master Plan is the first step in addressing the needs of the Town for additional and new recreational facilities, 
and for incorporating the Dunn Property into the Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area. 
 
The Application is based on: 
 
$50,500          Scope of Services Quote prepared by Cammett Engineering  
 $ 1,000          Public Notification of the calendar for  visioning sessions and meetings  
$51,500          TOTAL 
 
Page 17 of the Application for Funding addresses the long term public benefits of the proposed project. 
  
What factors affect the timing of this purchase? 
At this time, Parks & Rec does not anticipate any factors affecting the timing of the Conceptual Master Plan to be completed within 
nine months from the date of Town Meeting approval.  
  
When should this Article be sunsetted--how long will the project take?  
It is anticipated that the project will take approximately nine months from the date of Town Meeting approval.  However, the standard 
sunset provision has in the past been three years, and that is what we are requesting.  
  
What ancillary costs do you anticipate? (Maintenance, Insurance, Training, etc.)       
N/A 
   
Does this Article involve improvement, preservation or creation of tangible Town-owned assets and projects which 1) have useful life of at least five years; 2) 
cost over $20,000 and or 3) for which the Town is authorized to borrow funds? If so, please confirm that this item is on the Capital Improvements Committee 
Schedule for future capital investments.   
 N/A 
  
Please attach additional pages or other supporting documentation.  
 
SUGGESTED ARTICLE LANGUAGE (SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY ALL PARTIES) 
 
Article.  To see if the Town will vote to transfer from Community Preservation Act funds, Open Space and Recreation Reserve, the sum of $51,500. for 
Engineering Services and related expenses to prepare a Conceptual Master Plan for Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to Include the Dunn 
Property, (Assessors Map R26, Lot 19), subject to the conditions of the Community Preservation Committee, or take any other action relative thereto.  The 
funding will expire in three years from Town Meeting vote.  By request of the Parks and Recreation Commission and the Community Preservation 
Committee. 
 
 
Submitted by Jean Nelson, CPC Administrator, to Angus Jennings, Town Manager, via email on August 30, 2018. 



mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org





 


 








Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 1


Parks & Rec Meeting:


Community Preservation Committee


August 23, 2018 







Objective of the Meeting is to for the CPC to vote to approve 
the Pipestave Hill Active Recreation Area Expansion 


to include  the Dunn Property


1. Background on Why West Newbury needs more Active Recreational Space?  


2.  Prioritization of Active Recreational Activities for Phase 1 and Future 
Development


3.  Conceptual Master Plan – Overview, Scope of Services, and Budget


4. Project  Milestones and Time Line  for Meetings and Approvals


5. Public Benefits


6. Community Preservation  Committee Funding Request


Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 2







Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 3


Background:
Expanding Pipestave Hill Active Recreation 


Hill to include the Dunn Property :


VISION:  Provide the West Newbury Community with a  Premier All-
In-One Active Recreational Environment  


Dunn Property 75 acres,  Purchased November, 2000 for $1.75M 


Payments Annually:  $100,000 with the last payment $95,000 in 2020







2010 Parks & Rec Survey
Survey Objective:  West Newbury Residents input on recreational needs and desires.  


Percentage of  Residents Responding to Survey Sent Out:  approximately 30% to 40%


Results:


Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 4


Recreational Components Status


Outdoor Basketball Court Funds Approved and Built next to Action Cove


All-Purpose Athletic Field
Preferably Artificial Turf


Retreat Dog Park


Walking/Fitness Trails


Senior Center:  Indoor Swimming Pool


Tennis Court


More and Better Boating 
Access/Facilities


Review the Active 
Recreational Areas for 


these Recreational 
Components







Parks & Rec Participation 


August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 5


NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS Number of Days


per Week


(est)


Avg. Number of 
Hours per Week


(est)


Number of Weeks


(est)


SPORT Fall-2013 and


Spring-2013


Fall-2016 and 
Spring-2017


West Newbury Youth 
League: (Grades 1- 6) 


Flag Football (Pipe 
Stave)


No Program 140 4 8 10-12


Little League Baseball 
(Bachelor Street)


125 150 7 21-24 17


Lacrosse (Pipe Stave) 120 250 4 6.5 10-12


Rugby (Pipe Stave) 70 50 4 6.5 10-12


Soccer (Pipe Stave 
and Bachelor)


250 300 Fall: PS: 4; BA:3


Spring:  PS 2


PS: 24: BA: 15


PS 12


10-12


10-12
Softball (Page 


School)
40 40 4 8 10-12


Pentucket Middle 
School 


(Grades 7-8)
Babe Ruth Baseball


(Pipe Stave)


80 60 6 15-18 17


Rugby (Pipe Stave) 55 40 4 6.5 10-12


Pentucket High School  


(Pipe Stave)


Freshman Baseball Data not collected 15 5-6 15-18 10-12


Cross Country Data not collected 90


Lacrosse Data not collected 90 6 18 10-12


Rugby Data not collected 65 4 6.5 10-12


Soccer Data not collected 110 5 25 to 30 10-12


General:
• Bachelor Street has 3 Baseball Fields and they 


are used for Elementary School Soccer as well
• Pipe Stave has 3 Fields and a Baseball Field. 


The Baseball Outfield is used for sporting 
activities as well


• Page School has 2 Softball Fields
------
• For  the past 4 to 5 years, Grades 1-6, 


Number of Participants in different sports has 
increased from 605 to 930 (approx. 50% 
increase w/ Flag Football and 30% without)


• Pentucket High School is using the Fields in 
the Fall and Spring 5 to 6 days/20-24 
hours/per week. The New High School could 
alleviate some of the field usage (this is an 
unknown variable).  


• Retreat Dog Park is great place for dogs to run 
around, exercise, and socialize. 2016/17
583 Dog Licenses


• Fitness/Walking  Trail would be user friendly 
for a variety of different ages and abilities … 
possibility Garden Club participation to 
showcase native  plantings


• Tennis Court 
• Senior Center might include inside swimming 


pool, exercise area


Pipestave  Sports  Activity Estimated Total  Hours:  Fall 600 to 700  and Spring 850 to 950


Bachelor Street and Pipestave Sports Activities







Potential Active Recreation Areas 


August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 6


Parking All Purpose 
Athletic Field


Retreat 
Dog Park


Walking-
Fitness 
Trail


Tennis 
Court/Padd
le Ball


Sr. Center


Dunn 
Property


Mill Pond 
Lower Field


Action Cove


Brake 
Hill


Mullen 
Property







August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 7


Copyright © 2013 This map published by:


WEST NEWBURY  


OPEN SPACECOMMITTEE


Visit: www.westnewburyopenspace.net


Dunn Field


North Field


South  
Field


Riverbend  
Trail


MillPond


+ Archelaus Hill  
Summit Elev 248 ft


Back Field


Middle  
Field


Pipestave  
Athletic  
Fields


Baseball
MillPond  
CabinDock


POOR  
HOUSE  
LANE


Ocean  
Meadow  


Trail


Page School
Rt 113COFFIN  


STREET


ARCHELAUS HILLRD


P


Pipestave  
Entrance


Recycling  
Facility


MillPond  
Entrance


0 1/41/8


P
Lower  
Field P


DPW


Riding  
Rings


MILL POND
& Pipestave Hill
Recreation Area


West Newbury, Massachusetts


P


Marked Trails


Distance in Miles


Unmarked Trails


Mill Pond Lower Field – Retreat Dog Park:


1.   January 10, 2018 Mill Pond Committee voted 5-2 “be 
open to seeing a formal proposal for a Dog Park for the 
area adjacent to the lower field and Rt. 113/Main Street”  


2. February 8, 2018 Essex County Greenbelt  Association 
Denied the Request for a formal proposal for a Dog Park 
(Manage Conservation Restriction Agreement) paragraph
A.9 on page3 prohibits “Active recreation activities (defined 
by the need for fixed facilities), including the creation and 
maintenance of playgrounds, soccer fields, ball parks, 
football fields, or active recreation facilities of any kind.”. It 
is our conclusion that a dog park retreat as described in 
your report falls within the definition of activities 
prohibited by this language.







Pipestave Active Recreation:
Baseball Field and Four Fields Utilization


Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 8


West Newbury MIMAP March 21, 2018


The Town of West Newbury and Merrimack Valley Planning Commission  


do not make any warranty, expressed or implied, nor assume any legal  


liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of  


the Geographic Information System (GIS) Data or any other data provided  


herein. The GIS data is illustrative only and should not be considered for  


any other purpose. The data does not take the place of a professional  


survey and has no legal bearing on the true shape, size, location, or  


existence of a geographic feature, property line, or political representation.  


Merrimack Valley Planning Commission and the Town of West Newbury  


make no warranties or representations as to the accuracy of said  


information. Concerns about zoning and wetland issues must be  


addressed to the appropriate Town department. Any use of this  


information is at the recipient's own risk.


Building


MVPC Boundary


West Newbury Boundary  


Parcels


HydrographicFeatures  


Streams


Wetlands


1" = 379 ft


1


2


3


4


Utilization Hours Fall, 2017 Spring, 2018


Weekday  3:00pm-5:30pm 100% 75%


Weekday 5:30pm-8:00pm 100% 100%


Saturday 8:00am-5:00pm 44% 100%


Sunday 8:00am-5:00pm 67% 89%


Overall 
Utilization


81% 82%


Notes 3 of the 4   
Fields Active


4 Fields Active


2017: Overall Pipestave Field Utilization is > 80%  … Weekday Utilization is 100%
2018/2019:  Fall Utilization will increase due to the expansion of Flag Football to 


include 7th Graders in 2018 and 8th Graders in 2019







Scale


To Pipestave Parking Lot


Pipestave  
Athletic  
Fields


DUNNFIELD
BASE MAP WITH EXISTING TRAILS  
DATE: MARCH 1, 2018


NORTH FIELD


SOUTH FIELD


MAIN FIELD


N


S


W E


North Field
1.13 acres


August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 9


South Field


3.3 Acres


Main Field
18-20 Acres







Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 10


Conceptual Master Plan Overview  







Scale


To Pipestave Parking Lot


Pipestave  
Athletic  
Fields


DUNNFIELD
BASE MAP WITH EXISTING TRAILS  
DATE: MARCH 1, 2018


NORTH FIELD


SOUTH FIELD


MAIN FIELD


N


S


W E


North Field
1.13 acres


August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 11


South Field


3.3 Acres


Main Field
18-20 Acres







Potential Natural Land Constraints


1. Wetland Delineation


2. Municipal Area Defined from Pipestave/Mill Pond 
Conservation Restriction Agreement


3.    Test Wells near South Field


August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 12







April 2, 2018:  Walked with Jay Smith – ConCom Agent. 


As long as we stay within the bounds for the North Field, 
Main Field, and South Field we should okay from a wetlands 
perspective.


Jay:  Once the Design Concept is done I can go out and measure 
to the wetland edge to be put on the plan and then see if you 
will need to file with us.


August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 13







The dirt road is Municipal Use Area.


Anything associated with the “Municipal 
Area” is outside the jurisdiction of Greenbelt 
and the CR, and “unpaved associated 
roadways” are permitted in connection with 
the fields


August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 14







Dunn Property Test Wells
South of South Field


Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 15







Possible Active Recreation 
Dunn Property Locations  


Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 16


North 
Field


Upper Main 
Field


Lower Main 
Field


South Field Trail


Entrance/Parking/
Roads


No Yes Yes No No


Grass Multi-Use 
Athletic Field


No Yes Yes No No


Artificial Turf Multi-
Use Athletic Field


No Yes Yes No No


Retreat Dog Park Yes No No Yes No


Fitness Loop No No No No Yes


Tennis Court Yes No No Yes No


Concession Stand  No Yes No No No


Restroom Facility No Yes No No No


Possible Locations for Active Recreations Activities and Infrastructure







Possible Active Recreation 
Dunn Property Locations  


Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 17


Scope of Services
or  Future Consideration


Potential
Source  of Funding 


Entrance/Parking/Roads1 Part of Conceptual Master Plan Design CPA


Grass Athletic Field 2 Part of Conceptual Master Plan Design  CPA


Multi-Use Athletic Field2 Part of Conceptual Master Plan  Design Town or Grants


Retreat Dog Park Part of Conceptual Master Plan Design from a Marked Out 
Area only.   Internal Design of the Dog Park is not included


CPA and Grants


Fitness Loop Not in Engineering Study.   Fitness Loop to be considered as 
part of the Active Recreation Area


CPA


2 Tennis Courts  Part of Conceptual Master Plan  Design CPA


Concession Stand Part of Conceptual Master Plan  Design CPA


Restroom Facilities Part of Conceptual Master Plan  Design CPA


Sr. Center- Community Center Not in Conceptual Master Plan or part of initial Active 
Recreation Area Design.  


It may be considered for Future Development.


CPA


Conceptual Master  Plan Design: 
Active Recreation Activities  


Notes:
1.  Decision on Expansion of the Parking at Pipe Stave/Dunn Property Upper Main Field  should be completed before the Engineering Study  starts.  This decision will feed 


into the design concepts of the Engineering Study.
2.   Conceptual Master Plan should include two Athletic Fields.  Both Fields could be Grass or one Field could be Grass and the other field could be Turf.







Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 18


Scope of  Service Key Components


1. Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area


2. Conceptual Master Plan 


3. Traffic Impact Assessment Study 


4. Meetings







Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 19


Project Milestones and Time Line
Month/2018 Activity Action


End of July Discuss Conceptual Master Plan with Engineering Firm Engineering Firm to Provide Feedback on Cost 
for  Conceptual Master Plan by mid-August


August 17 Meet with Town Manager Review Engineering Study  Quote


August 23 Meet with CPC for Approval for Project Eligibility and Project Funds for the 
development of the Conceptual Master Plan – Scope of Service and Quote


If approved, move forward. If not meet with 
Town Manager and BOS to discuss


September If   Project Eligibility and Project Funds Approved to move forward by the CPC Warrant article to be written and meetings 
with BOS and Finance committees for 
discussion


October  22 Town Meeting Approval of Warrant Article to move forward 
with a Conceptual Master Plan – Scope of 
Service and Quote


November  Before the  Scope of Service for Master Plan Commences, the  decision on 
the Expansion of the Parking at Pipe Stave/Dunn Property Upper Main Field  
should be completed This decision may be input into the design concepts for 
the Dunn  Property


P&R to send out mailers to West Newbury Residents and all abutters have to 
be served written notice of the public meetings and agenda regarding the 
Public Hearings/Workshop (Hampden, Maine Example) for the different 
Design Concepts


Public Hearings/Workshop to review the 
different Dunn Property Expansion Active 
Recreation Expansion  Design Concepts


Date to be 
Determined


Conceptual Master Plan Scope of  Service Complete One Active Recreation Expansion Option is 
provided to BOS to go to the Spring/Fall 2019 
Town Meeting


Fall, 2019 Town to Vote on the Expansion of the Pipestave Hill Active Recreation Area 
to include the Dunn Property


July 2019 or 
November, 
2019


PARC Grant to be submitted Open Space and Rec Plan needs to be updated 
and Status Active by Spring, 2018


Jan, 2020 Dog Park Grant to be submitted Note:  Open Item on Turf Field and other 
Grant Dates







Meetings Overview and Key Project Milestones  


Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 20


1. Cammett Engineering Staff Personnel shall attend the following meetings with the Park and Recreation Committee 


• P&R Committee meetings with Cammett Engineering are open to the public
• A visionary meeting (1) to discuss field dimensions, building uses/dimensions; parking needs etc. after completion of 


Wetlands Section
• A meeting with Parks and Recreation to discuss conceptual plan and options at 50% complete
• A meeting (1) to present initial Conceptual Master Plan and obtain public comment regarding additions, options, and 


changes to the plan
• A final presentation meeting of the accepted Conceptual Master Plan.
• A meeting with the Mass Heritage at 25% complete of the Conceptual Master Plan.  Mass Heritage are the protectors 


and managers of endangered species and their habitat.  Depending on the species and we won’t know that species 


until Cammett Engineering speaks with the Mass Heritage] constraints on the development plan could be imposed on 


the extent of alternative redesign locations; mitigation and monitoring plans, looking at alternative sites with less 


impacts.  


2. All of The P&R committee meetings  are open to the public, the agenda of the meetings will be posted, and the 


municipal departments will be invited to attend.  P&R will keep the Town Manager and different committees appraised 


of the status of the Conceptual Master Plan, Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area, and Traffic Impact 


Assessment Study at different times of the process. The committees and departments to be informed would be the 


Board of Selectmen, Department of Public Works, Board of Health, Conservation Commission, Open Space Committee, 


Planning Board, and other committees or departments as necessary.


The key percentage completion milestones are  


1)     25% completion is the schematic initial design sketch for Natural Heritage Endangered Species Program (NHESP) to 


assess issues with endangered species and whether alternative location will need to be studied, and 


2)   50% completion is the status that field locations and other sundry uses can be changed, added to, revised, etc for 


preparation of the final concept.   







Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 21


Public Benefits


Provide the West Newbury and Pentucket youths with another multi-use grass or turf field to 
expand sports activities and to alleviate the usage stress on the Pipestave Hill fields.  For the past 4 to 
5 years the number of participants in the different sports has increased from 605 to 930 
(approximately 50%  of the increase due to Flag Football).  At this time, the Middle School/High School 
building proposal is not going to alleviate the field usage at Pipestave Hill.


Provide the West Newbury residents with two Tennis Courts which there are no tennis courts today. 
The Tennis Courts are Middle School are excellent; however, they unavailable to most members of the 
community until school is over. Tennis courts are very low maintenance, long lasting and provide 
community use for all ages.


Provide the West Newbury residents with a Dog Park for those residents who prefer not to walk 


their dog and   would rather have them run around in an enclosed environment with other dogs. Dog 
parks are their own community. It provides another place for bringing people together.  From what we 
can tell, 1) Dog Parks are regulated at local level and not state level. In 2016 and 2017, there are 583 
Dog Licenses.


Provide the West Newbury residents with Fitness/Walking Trail would be user friendly for a variety 
of different ages and abilities as well as the possibility of the Garden Club participation to showcase 
native plantings. There would be multiple stations along the trail, each focused on a particular muscle 
group for strength or flexibility. Usually there are 6-12 stations. There are pre-made stations and 
stations volunteers could build/assemble. Not all stations need anything installed (for example, push-
ups or jumping jacks, etc.). There should be signage to explain the station. The signage could be a 
good volunteer project for the Scouts or some other group. 







Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 22


Section Scope of Service


1.0 Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area $                                                      5,250.00 


2.0 Conceptual Master Plan $                                                    32,750.00 


3.0 Traffic Impact Assessment Study $                                                      7,500.00 


4.0 Meetings $                                                      3,500.00


5.0 Reimbursable Expense/Direct Costs $                                                      1,500.00 


P&R


Request


Printing and Bulk Mailing costs of a town-wide 


mailing to $                                                    1,000.00


Total $                                                    51,500.0 


Parks & Recreation is asking for approval of  Community Preservation Funding for $51,500.00
to cover the Scope of  Service for the Conceptual Master Plan  to expand the Pipestave Hill 
Active Recreation Area to include the Dunn Property







Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 23


P&R has gathered information including correspondence or meetings with the following groups  


• Board of Selectmen Meetings (November 2017, June 2018, and July 2018)
• Mill Pond Committee Meeting (Lower Mill Pond, January 2018), 
• Essex County Greenbelt Association (Lower Mill Pond), 
• Open Space Committee Meeting, January 2018 
• Board of Health Correspondence (Action Cove), 
• ConCom Committee Meeting, March 2018 and Jay Smith walked Dunn Property April 2018,  
• Water Department Correspondence (Mike Gootee), 
• Highway Department Meetings in March and June 2018 (Gary Bill), 
• High School Correspondence (Dan Thornton),
• Pentucket Youth Sports Leagues Correspondence, 
• West Newbury Riding and Drive Club Meeting May 2018, 
• West Newbury Officials:  Mike McCarron and Joe Anderson, and 
• Following residents:  Tom Flaherty, John McGrath, Frank Sisto, Steve Greason, Pat Higgins, Jack 


Foley, Lisa Maduzia, Bill Roche, Allison Schneider, and Jack Duggan. 







Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 24


Thank  You!








Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      1 |P a g e  
 


 


 


 


 


TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 


APPLICATION FOR PROJECT FUNDING  


COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 


                     


Applicants should file eight (8) copies of the completed Application and all accompanying documents with the Community 


Preservation Committee, Town Office Building, West Newbury MA 01985, and an electronic copy to cpc@wnewbury.org.   


PROJECT NAME:  Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property   


PROJECT ADDRESS: Dunn Property  


    Chase Street (Parcel:  R26-190) 


    West Newbury, MA    


MAP/LOT:   _Parcel:  R26-190______________________________________________ 


APPLICANT NAME: _Parks & Recreation Commissioners 


(Group or Committee Affiliation) 


CONTACT PERSON: __Bill Bachrach_______________ 


TELEPHONE/FAX NO.: __864-303-3189________________ 


ADDRESS:   16 Donovan Drive  


    West Newbury  ________________ 


EMAIL:    bachrachw@comcast.net  


COMMUNITY PRESERVATION CATEGORY: 


(Please check all that apply) 


❑ Open Space 


❑ Historic Preservation 


o Eligible/On State Registry 


o Designated by Historic Commission 


❑ Community Housing 


X   Recreation 


 


The Committee may require, as a condition for funding, that the applicant grant to the Town or other authorized grantee 


certain restrictions, including:  preservation restrictions on rehabilitated or acquired historic resources, conservation 


restrictions on preserved or acquired lands, and deed restrictions on affordable housing projects. If applicable, the restriction 


shall be recorded at the Southern Essex District Registry of Deeds.  
 



mailto:bachrachw@comcast.net





Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      2 |P a g e  
 


REQUIRED NARRATIVE:  PLEASE PROVIDE A NARRATIVE ON A SEPARATE SHEET WHICH 


ADDRESSES THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS 


 


PROJECT SUMMARY:  Provide a description of the Project, including the property involved and its proposed use.   


PUBLIC BENEFIT:   Describe in detail the benefits West Newbury will receive from the Project and how the Project 


fulfills the Community Preservation Committee’s Project Evaluation Criteria.  


CONTROL OF SITE:  Indicate whether the applicant owns or has a purchase agreement for the Project site.  If the 


property is under agreement, include a description of the agreement and the timing and conditions.  If the applicant does 


not have site control, explain. 


FEASIBILITY:  List all steps that may be required for completion of the Project, such as environmental assessment, 


zoning or other approvals, agreement on terms of any required conservation, affordability or historic preservation 


restrictions, and any other known issues. For projects that may impact abutters or the neighborhood, describe methods used 


to notify abutters of the proposal, and support or objections from those affected. 


SUPPORT:  Have the appropriate Town Boards and Commissions expressed support and/or approved the project?  What 


is the nature and level of community support for this project? 


PROJECT TIMELINE:  Describe the anticipated steps or phases for completion of the Project. Demonstrate whether the 


Project will be ready to proceed in the coming fiscal year.  Will this be a multi-year project? 


FUNDING: 


 A. Amount of Community Preservation Funding Requested:   


$__________________ 


B.  Include a full budget, including itemization of major components and breakdown of construction and 


maintenance costs.  Describe the basis for your budget and the sources of information you used. 


C.  Other Sources of Funding Available:  If funding from other sources may be available for the Project, 


please complete the following table: 


 


SOURCE OF  


FUNDING 


AMOUNT  


REQUESTED 


STATUS (COMMITTED Y/N 


IF NOT-WHEN) 


CONTINGENT ON  


CP FUNDS (Y/N) 


 $   


 $   


ATTACHMENTS:  SEE GUIDELINES FOR PROJECT SUBMISSION AND ATTACHMENTS.  YOU MAY 


BE REQUESTED TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  


 SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF A PROJECT 


        


__________________________________________8/15/2018________Applicant Signature and Date 


For questions contact:  cpc@wnewbury.org, 978-363-1100 X131.    


 


Date Received: ________________  Meeting Date(s): ________________  Amount Approved: __________ 


Town Meeting Date/Article #: ______________  Vote of Town Meeting:           _______________   Revised August 2015 



mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org





Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      3 |P a g e  
 


 


Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion  


to include the Dunn Property 


 


Table of Contents 
 


I. Parks & Recreation Commissioners Overview ................................................................................. 4 


II. Parks and Recreation Youth Sports Participation and Field Usage ............................................... 4 


III. Board of Selectmen Meetings ........................................................................................................ 7 


IV. Review of Active Recreation Areas for Expansion ....................................................................... 8 


1.0 Mill Pond Lower Field ............................................................................................................... 9 


2.0 Bachelor Fields-Action Cove ................................................................................................... 10 


3.0  Brake Hill ................................................................................................................................. 10 


4.0  Mullen Property ....................................................................................................................... 10 


5.0  Dunn Property.......................................................................................................................... 10 


V. Conceptual Master Plan - Scope of Services ............................................................................... 12 


1.0 Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area .................................................................... 12 


2.0 Conceptual Master Plan .......................................................................................................... 13 


3.0 Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) Study .................................................................................... 14 


4.0 Meetings ................................................................................................................................... 15 


5.0 Conceptual Master Recreation Plan Comparison Costs .......................................................... 15 


VI Summary of Project Milestones and Time Line .......................................................................... 16 


VII Meetings with Committees and West Newbury Residents .......................................................... 17 


VIII Public Benefits ............................................................................................................................. 17 


VIII Community Preservation Funding Request ................................................................................. 18 


VIII    P&R Approved Applications for Project Eligibility and Funding ............................................... 19 


 


  







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      4 |P a g e  
 


I. Parks & Recreation Commissioners Overview   
 


The West Newbury Parks and Recreation Commission has three members elected to serve staggered 3-year 
terms.   The Parks and Recreation Commission oversees nine fields, one playground, one outdoor basketball 
court, and Ferry Lane Park: 


 


• Bachelor Street includes Cammett Park which has three baseball fields, Action Cove playground, and 
an outdoor basketball court are located off Bachelor Street. Commissioners also are responsible for 
the snack shack at the Bachelor Street fields. 


• Pipestave Hill: four fields located off Main Street, across from the Page School 


• Page School: two softball fields off Main Street   


• Ferry Lane Park: boat launch area into the Merrimack River at the intersection of Bridge and Church 
streets   


 


The Goals and Objectives of the town Parks and Recreation Commissioners include: 


 


• Support all youth programs and activities in West Newbury 


• Perform an overview of field maintenance and safety from participants' perspective 


• Provide amenities at popular recreational sites (for example: porta-potties, recycling, parking) 


• Administer the town policies regarding use of recreational facilities 


• Provide leadership, both supportive and creative, of town recreational programs. 


 
In 2010, the commissioners surveyed West Newbury residents for input on recreational needs and their ideas. 
Results included: an indoor swimming pool, an outdoor basketball court, at least one more all-purpose athletic 
field (preferably artificial turf), a senior/wellness center, tennis courts, an enclosed dog park, walking/fitness 
trails, and a senior center. The information gleaned from the survey responses has been the driving force 
behind reviewing the active recreation utilization areas and the actions and plans by the Parks and Recreation 
Commissioners.   The next section provides and overview of the youth sports participation and field usage. 


 


II. Parks and Recreation Youth Sports Participation and Field Usage 
 


Bachelor Street has 3 Baseball fields and they are used for elementary school soccer during the fall, the Page 
School has 2 softball fields, and Pipestave has 4 fields and a Baseball Field.  The most recent addition to the 
offerings is Flag Football in 2014.The town playing fields are used by West Newbury Youth Leagues, Pentucket 
High School, and regional town sports. Enrollment figures are provided in the table below.  


 


  







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      5 |P a g e  
 


PARKS AND RECREATION ACTIVE PROGRAM ENROLLMENT  


 


ACTIVITY 


 


 


 


PARTICIPANTS 


Fall 2013 & Spring 2014          Fall 2016 & Spring 2017 


 


West Newbury Youth League (Grades 1-6) 


  Flag Football No Program 140 


Little League Baseball 125 150 


Intramural Basketball 135 135 


Lacrosse 120 250 


Rugby 70  50 


   Soccer 250 300 


  Softball 40  40 


 


Pentucket Middle School (Grades 7-8) 


 


Babe Ruth Baseball 80  60 


Intramural Basketball 80 80 


Rugby 55  40 


 


Pentucket High School 


  


Freshman Baseball Data not collected 15 


Cross Country Data not collected 90 


Lacrosse Data not collected  90 


Rugby Data not collected  65 


 Soccer Data not collected 110 


 


 


The Table below is an estimate of the number of days per week, number of hours per week, and total number 
of weeks for each sport played at Bachelor Field, Page School, or Pipestave.  For the past 4-5 years, the number 
of participants in different sports for Grades 1-6 has increased from 605 to 930 (approximately 50 percent 
increase with Flag Football and 30 percent without it).  Pentucket High School is using the fields in the fall and 
spring approximately 5-6 days, totaling 20-24 hours per week.  


  







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      6 |P a g e  
 


 


 


SPORT 
 


LOCATION 
 


Pipestave (PS)   


Bachelor (BF) 


 


NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS 
 


Days  


Per Week 
(est) 


 


Avg Hours 


per Week 


(est) 


 


Total 


Weeks 
(est) 


  


Fall 2013 & 


Spring 2014 
Fall 2016 & 


Spring 2017 


   


 


 


                                          West Newbury Youth League (Grades 1-6) 


 
Flag 


Football  
PS No program 140 4 8 10-12 


Lacrosse PS 120 250 4 6.5 10-12 
Rugby PS 70 50 4 6.5 10-12 
 
Soccer 


 


PS and BF 
 


250 
 


300 
Fall:  PS-4  


          BF-3 
Spring: PS 2 


PS-24, 


       BF 15 
PS-12 


10-12 
 


10-12 
Little 


League 


Baseball 


 


BF 
 


125 
 


150 
 


7 
 


21-24 
 


17 


Softball (Page School) 40 40 4 8 10-12 
 


Pentucket Middle School (Grades 7-8) 


 
Babe 


Ruth 


Baseball 


 


PS 
 


            80 
 


60 
 


6 
 


15-18 
 


17 


Rugby PS 55 40 4 6.5 10-12 
 


Pentucket High School  


 
Freshman 


Baseball 
PS No Data  15 5-6 15-18 10-12 


Cross 


Country 
PS No Data  90 


   


Lacrosse PS No Data  90 6 18 10-12 
Rugby PS No Data  65 4 6.5 10-12 
Soccer PS No Data  110 5 25-30  10-12 


 


In the Pipestave picture below, field numbered 1 is referred to as the upper field which includes a baseball 
field and a soccer/rugby/lacrosse field that is located in the baseball outfield. The lower Pipestave field is 
composed of 3 fields (Fields 2 through 4), of which 2 are used per season with the third field rested due to 
over-use.  







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      7 |P a g e  
 


 


The total estimated hours of field use for all sports activities at Pipestave varies from 600-700 hours in the fall 
and 850-950 hours in the spring.  As noted in the Table below for 2017, the overall field utilization at Pipestave 
is > 80% and 100% utilization during the weekdays.   In 2018 and 2019, the fall utilization will increase due to 
the expansion of flag football to include 7th Graders in 2018 and 8th Graders in 2019 leading to an overall 
utilization to increase over 90% during the weekends. 


Utilization Hours Fall, 2017 Spring, 2018 


Weekday   3:00pm-5:30pm 100% 75% 


Weekday 5:30pm-8:00pm 100% 100% 


Saturday 8:00am-5:00pm 44% 100% 


Sunday 8:00am-5:00pm 67% 89% 


Overall Utilization 
 


81% 82% 


Notes 
 


3 of the 4   Fields 


Active 


4 Fields Active 


 


III. Board of Selectmen Meetings   
 


Parks & Recreation (P&R) has met with the Board of Selectmen on Monday, November 11, 2017, Monday, June 
26, 2018 and Monday, July 9, 2018. 


At the November meeting, P&R presented to the Boards of Selectmen the “Vision to provide the West 
Newbury Community with a comprehensive and centralized all in-one recreational environment by expanding 


West Newbury MIMAP March 21, 2018


The Town of West Newbury and Merrimack Valley Planning Commission  


do not make any warranty, expressed or implied, nor assume any legal  


liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of  


the Geographic Information System (GIS) Data or any other data provided  


herein. The GIS data is illustrative only and should not be considered for  


any other purpose. The data does not take the place of a professional  


survey and has no legal bearing on the true shape, size, location, or  


existence of a geographic feature, property line, or political representation.  


Merrimack Valley Planning Commission and the Town of West Newbury  


make no warranties or representations as to the accuracy of said  


information. Concerns about zoning and wetland issues must be  


addressed to the appropriate Town department. Any use of this  


information is at the recipient's own risk.


Building


MVPC Boundary


West Newbury Boundary  


Parcels


HydrographicFeatures  


Streams


Wetlands


1" = 379 ft


1


2


3


4







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      8 |P a g e  
 


the Pipestave Facility to include the Dunn Property.”   P&R was approved for $1,000 in funding to support  the 
first step  to analyze expanding the Pipestave Facility to include the Dunn Property.  The key points discussed 
at this meeting was to have a group of Wentworth students as part of their Capstone project requirement to 
develop a very preliminary report on this project. Unfortunately, our Capstone project did not work out with 
these students.   


From November, 2017 to present, P&R has had information gathering sessions including correspondence or 
meetings with the following groups  Mill Pond Committee (Lower Mill Pond), Essex County Greenbelt 
Association (Lower Mill Pond), Open Space Committee, Board of Health (Action Cove), ConCom (Jay Smith), 
Water Department (Mike Gootee), Highway Department (Gary Bill), High School (Dan Thornton), Pentucket 
Youth Sports Leagues, West Newbury Riding and Drive Club, West Newbury Officials:  Mike McCarron and Joe 
Anderson, and the following residents:  Tom Flaherty, John McGrath, Frank Sisto, Steve Greason, Pat Higgins, 
Jack Foley, Lisa Maduzia, and Jack Duggan. 


At the June BOS Meeting, P&R updated the Board of Selectmen   to Discuss the Expansion of the Dunn 
Property to include Active Recreational Activities.  The presentation included 1) Background on Why West 
Newbury needs more Active Recreational Space?  2) Key Milestones and Time Line for Meetings and Approvals 
3) Prioritization of Active Recreational Activities for Phase 1 and Future Development and 4) Engineering Study 
Key Components.  The action item from the meeting was for the BOS to review the status of the project and to 
come back with any questions or comments. 
 
At the July BOS Meeting, the BOS had no comments on the presentation.  We provided a timeline on what the 
next steps will be to 1) Receive a Scope of Services and Quote for a Master Conceptual Plan and 2) meet with 
the Community Preservation Committee for approval for Community Preservation Funding. 
 
The Board of Selectmen approved moving forward with going to the Community Preservation Committee for 
funding an Engineering Study for the Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn 


Property project. The Engineering Study is the Cammett Engineering Scope of Services document provided and 
this document is separated into four areas: 1) Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area, 2) Conceptual 
Master Plan, 3) Traffic Impact Assessment Study, and 4) Meetings. 


The following sections provide the background on why West Newbury needs more active recreational space, 
scope of services and quote for a Master Conceptual Plan. 
 


IV. Review of Active Recreation Areas for Expansion 
 


Parks and Recreation has reviewed the potential active recreation areas for Parking, Multi-Use Athletic Field 
either grass or turf, Retreat Dog Park, Tennis Courts, Walking Fitness Trail, Tennis Courts, and a Sr. Center.  
Below is a color-coded Table of the possibilities with Green – Possibly Fits into the Active Recreation Area, 
Yellow- Needs Further Review, and Red – Not Possible.   


 







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      9 |P a g e  
 


 


 


Note:  Green Color means the activity is possible in the active recreation area, Yellow Color means the activity 
might be possible in the active recreation area, and Red means the activity is not in the active recreation area 


  


The following sections review each of the different areas for possible active recreation. 


 


1.0 Mill Pond Lower Field 
 


The Parks & Rec Commission met with the Mill Pond Committee on January 10, 2018 to discuss putting a 
“Retreat Dog Park” at the Mill Pond Lower Field; Parks & Rec was proposing an enhancement to an unused 
area.   The following was made and approved 5-2 by the Committee: “Would Mill Pond voting members be 
open to seeing a formal proposal for a Dog Park for the area adjacent to the lower field and Rt. 113/Main 
Street.”   


 


Mill Pond is under the jurisdiction of the Essex County Greenbelt Association.  The Association reviewed the 


proposal and, in a letter, dated February 8, 2018 denied the request for approval of a dog park retreat:   


 “….  A review of the CR by Greenbelt has led to our conclusion that a dog park at this site is not consistent 


with the purposes and terms of this CR. Specifically, paragraph A.9 on page 3 prohibits “Active recreation 


activities (defined by the need for fixed facilities), including the creation and maintenance of playgrounds, 


soccer fields, ball parks, football fields, or active recreation facilities of any kind.”. It is our conclusion that a 


dog park retreat as described in your report falls within the definition of activities prohibited by this language. 


In the absence of any other reserved right in the CR allowing such an activity, and based on our 


interpretation of the entire CR, Greenbelt has no other option than to communicate to you that we would 


not be able to approve a dog park retreat as proposed at the Pipestave Hill/Mill Pond site.” 


Parking All Purpose 
Athletic Field


Retreat 
Dog Park


Walking-
Fitness Trail


Tennis 
Court/Padd
le Ball


Sr. Center


Dunn 
Property


Mill Pond 
Lower Field


Action Cove


Brake 
Hill


Mullen 
Property







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      10 |P a g e  
 


2.0 Bachelor Fields-Action Cove 
 


Bachelor Fields and Action Cove are located in the same area.  Bachelor Fields are comprised of three baseball 
fields that are also use for soccer, basketball court and there is no more space to add any active recreation 
fields.  Action Cove is comprised of a basketball court and a children’s playground.  The Parks & Rec 
Department reviewed Action Cove as a potential avenue to incorporate a retreat dog park in the open space 
behind the Action Cove Children’s Playground.  Unfortunately, the parking is limited. 


The Parks & Recreation commissioners drafted a proposal to purchase a centrally located parcel to meet the 
town’s growing recreation needs which bordered the Bachelor Fields-Action Cove area. The centrally located 
Daley land would have walking access from the four streets that bordered the 22-acre parcel. At Town 
Meetings, May 2011 voters did not approve to purchase the Daly property. The property was subsequently 
sold to a developer.    


3.0  Brake Hill 
 


The Brake Hill property is a heavily wooded hill which has a non-paved road to the Town’s Water Tank and is 
used by the Pentucket Cross-Country Team to run.  The access to Brake Hill is located in a residential housing 
division. Unfortunately, parking may be an issue.  West Newbury Water Department is building a road to bring-
in a Water Tank and it is not clear if is possible to put in a walking and fitness trail in this area. 


 


4.0  Mullen Property 
 


The Mullen Property is bordered by Main Street, Church, and Prospect Streets.  This area is completely 
wooded and surrounded by houses.  There is a trail, but the parking is currently limited as the entrance is off of 
Main Street.     


5.0  Dunn Property 
 


The Dunn Property is adjacent to Pipestave and bordered by Main, Chase, and Middle Streets.  The 75-acre 
parcel was purchased by the town in November 2000 for $1.75 million.  


Parks & Recreation Commission vision is to provide the West Newbury Community with a Premier All-In-One 
Active Recreational Environment by expanding the Pipestave Facility to include the Dunn Property for a dog 
park, fitness loop, and/or expansion to include fields for soccer, flag football, and/or lacrosse and tennis, with 
parking for all proposed uses.  The active recreation sites would be located within three main fields:  1) Main 
Field has 18-20 acres, 2) North Field has 1.1 acres, and 3) South Field has 3.3 acres as shown in the picture 
below: 
 







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      11 |P a g e  
 


   


 


Parks & Rec has collected information on different aspects of the Dunn Property and to date the following has 
been determined:   


 


1) Essex County Greenbelt Association Conservation Restriction Agreement on Mill Pond/Pipestave dated 
12/25/2001 allows for Municipal Roadway to extend from Upper Pipestave to include the Dunn Property,  


 


2) West Newbury conservation agent (Jay Smith) walked the Dunn Property in April, 2018 and states “as long 
as the recreational activities stay within the periphery of the three fields we should be okay from a wetlands 
perspective, and  


 


3)  The location of the two well sites south of the South Field do not have effect on the activities that could be  
on the South Field location. 


 


  


Scale


To Pipestave ParkingLot


Pipestave  
Athletic  
Fields


DUNN FIELD
BASE MAP WITH EXISTING TRAILS  
DATE: MARCH 1, 2018


NORTH FIELD


SOUTH FIELD


MAIN FIELD


N


S


W E


North Field
1.13 acres


5/6/2018 Parks & Rec 8


South Field


3.3 Acres


Main Field
18-20 Acres







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      12 |P a g e  
 


The possible locations for the Active Recreation Activities and Infrastructure are shown in the Table below 


 


  


Note:  The Conceptual Master Plan will include two Athletic Fields.  Both Fields could be Grass or one Field 
could be Grass and the other field could be Artificial Turf. 


 


V. Conceptual Master Plan - Scope of Services  
 


Cammett Engineering has provided the Scope of Services and Estimated Cost for the preparation and 
presentation of the “Conceptual Master Plan” for active and passive recreation uses on the Dunn parcel 
adjacent to the Pipestave Hill Recreation Complex.   


 


1.0 Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area 
 


1.1 A consulting botanist shall flag and identify limits of bordering vegetative, wet meadows, 
brooks, and streams, and other regulated wetland resource areas on site, near proposed 
improvement. 


1.2 Staff field personnel shall stake and locate, using pole mounted GPS environment, the 
flagged resource areas. 


1.3 Office personnel shall plot the field locations on the base Mass GIS map being developed 
under 2.0 below; in addition, limits of Mass DEP – natural heritage endangered species 
limit; and Mass DEP – wetlands protection buffer zones shall be shown. 


1.4 Staff personnel shall complete a resource delineation application and submit to DEP and 
the local conservation commission to verify the wetland limits. 
 


Professional fee to complete the Wetlands Sections is $5,250.00. 


North 
Field


Upper Main 
Field


Lower Main 
Field


South Field Trail


Entrance/Parking/
Roads


No Yes Yes No No


Grass Multi-Use 
Athletic Field


No Yes Yes No No


Artificial Turf Multi-
Use Athletic Field


No Yes Yes No No


Retreat Dog Park Yes No No Yes No


Fitness Loop No No No No Yes


Tennis Court Yes No No Yes No


Concession Stand  No Yes No No No


Restroom Facility No Yes No No No







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      13 |P a g e  
 


 


2.0 Conceptual Master Plan 
 


2.1 Staff engineer shall prepare an existing condition plan of the site using MASS GIS Available 
Maps, surveys of record and Town assessor maps to show the following 


• approximate site perimeter 


• site topography (10’ contours) 


• approximate wetland resource areas based on 1.0 above 


• soil types based on USDA Soil Survey of Essex County, and the USDA-NCRS 
mapping. 


 


2.2 Staff Engineers shall prepare a conceptual master plan showing the following proposed 
uses/structures 
 


• Two(2) Multi-Purpose Fields – soccer, lacrosse, etc.  
 


• Two(2) Tennis Courts (doubles capacity) 
 


• Walking/jogging nature trails (GPS locate existing trails adjacent to proposed 
improvements) 


 


• Multi-purpose recreational building/concession stand 
 


• Additional parking areas and access ways 
 


• Designated area for “Dog Park” 
 


2.3 Staff personnel shall prepare a draft report on the following items: 
 


• Park improvements for existing uses/structures, if required. 
 


• Phased construction 
 


• Cost associated with plan implementation including estimated annual 
maintenance cost 


 


• Turf Management Plan for Grass and Artificial Turf will include “best” management 
practices: Depending on the soil testing results, a drainage plan may need to be 
provided.   


 
✓ Development & Maintenance of a Knowledge Base 


✓ Site Assessment 


✓ Development of a Management Plan 







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      14 |P a g e  
 


✓ Turfgrass Selection 


✓ Establishment, Renovation & Repair 


✓ Irrigation and Water Management 


✓ Soil & Nutrient Management 


✓ Mowing 


✓ Traffic Stress & Turf Cultivation 


✓ Weed Management 


✓ Insect Management 


✓ Disease Management 


✓ Management of Abiotic Problems 


✓ Pesticide Considerations 


✓ Selection and Management of Equipment 


• Integrated Pest Management Plan:  This is a section within the Turf Management 
Plan dealing with insect management, disease management, pesticide 
management, and abotic conditions management.    


 


• Local, State, and Federal permits needed 
 


Professional fee to complete the Conceptual Master Plan Section is $32,750.00. 


 


3.0 Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) Study 
 


3.1 Staff Engineers shall prepare a TIA for existing uses and proposed expansive uses. Data 


will be collected either by Tubes and/or Video.  The testing will be done in the Spring and 


Summer, 2019.  Per MASSDOT guidelines; adjustment factors exist for all scenarios.    


 


3.2 Areas to be studied include the following: 


• Chase Street 


• Chase Street/Main Street intersection 


• Main Street – Page School entrances and exits 


• Main Street – Pipestave Hill intersection 
 


3.2 Staff Engineers shall make recommendations for improvements as a result of the TIA as 
follows: 







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      15 |P a g e  
 


• Signage 


• Improved traffic movements 


• Parking restrictions on Chase Street 


• Other improvements related to events, etc. 


 
3.3 Staff personnel use the MASS DOT guideline regulations for “Traffic Impact Assessment” 


for completing this study and recommendation report. 


 
Professional fee to complete the Traffic Impact Assessment Section is $7,500.00. 


 


4.0 Meetings 
 


4.1 Cammett Engineering Staff Personnel shall attend the following meetings with the Park and 
Recreation Committee. 
 


• All of the P&R meetings with Cammett Engineering are open to the public 


• A visionary meeting (1) to discuss field dimensions, building uses/dimensions; parking 
needs etc. after completion of Wetlands Section 


• A meeting with Parks and Recreation to discuss conceptual plan and options at 50% 
complete 


• A meeting (1) to present initial Conceptual Master Plan and obtain public comment 
regarding additions, options, and changes to the plan 


• A final presentation meeting of the accepted Conceptual Master Plan. 


• A meeting with the Mass Heritage at 25% complete of the Conceptual Master Plan.  Mass 


Heritage are the protectors and managers of endangered species and their habitat.  


Depending on the species and we won’t know that species until Cammett Engineering 


speaks with the Mass Heritage] constraints on the development plan could be imposed on 


the extent of alternative redesign locations; mitigation and monitoring plans, looking at 


alternative sites with less impacts.   


 


4.2  The P&R committee meetings are open to the public, the agenda of the meetings will be posted, 
and the municipal departments will be invited to attend.  P&R will also keep the Town Manager 
and different committees appraised of the status of the Conceptual Master Plan, Wetlands and 
Endangered Species Habitat Area, and Traffic Impact Assessment Study at different times of the 
process. The committees to be informed would be the Board of Selectmen, Department of Public 
Works, Board of Health, Conservation Commission, Open Space Committee, Planning Board, and 
other committees or departments as necessary. 


 


Professional fee to complete the Meetings Section is $3,500.00. 


5.0 Conceptual Master Recreation Plan Comparison Costs  
 
For comparison, in the Table below, are Conceptual Master Recreation Plan costs for other town projects. 
The other town costs shown do not include Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area or the Traffic 
Impact Assessment Study costs. 


  







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      16 |P a g e  
 


 
 


Town Project Cost  


Governors Academy Phases I – IV $40,000 


Amesbury Woodson Farm Recreation $39,000 


West Newbury Pipestave Hill Active Recreation Area Expansion to include the 
Dunn Property 


$32,750 


Amesbury Sports Park Hunt Road, Amesbury $28,000 


Salisbury Parc Grant Phase I & II $25,000 


Haverhill Haverhill High School – Field Expansion, Rehab, and Reuse $20,000 


Whittier VO Tech Track and Field Rehab $15,000 


 
 


VI Summary of Project Milestones and Time Line 
 


The Table below is the summary of key project milestones and timelines in the approval process for the 
expansion of the Pipestave Hill active recreational area expansion to include the Dunn Property.  


 


 


 


Month/2018 Activity Action


End of July Discuss Conceptual Master Plan with Engineering Firm Engineering Firm to Provide Feedback on Cost 
for  Conceptual Master Plan by mid-August


August 17 Meet with Town Manager Review Engineering Study  Quote


August 23 Meet with CPC for Approval for Project Eligibility and Project Funds for the 
development of the Conceptual Master Plan – Scope of Service and Quote


If approved, move forward. If not meet with 
Town Manager and BOS to discuss


September If   Project Eligibility and Project Funds Approved to move forward by the CPC Warrant article to be written and meetings 
with BOS and Finance committees for 
discussion


October 22 Town Meeting Approval of Warrant Article to move forward 
with a Conceptual Master Plan – Scope of 
Service and Quote


November  Before the  Scope of Service for Master Plan Commences, the  decision on 
the Expansion of the Parking at Pipe Stave/Dunn Property Upper Main Field  
should be completed This decision may be input into the design concepts for 


the Dunn  Property


P&R to send out mailers to West Newbury Residents and all abutters have to 
be served written notice of the public meetings and agenda regarding the 
Public Hearings/Workshop (Hampden, Maine Example) for the different 
Design Concepts


Public Hearings/Workshop to review the 
different Dunn Property Expansion Active 
Recreation Expansion  Design Concepts


Date to be 
Determined


Conceptual Master Plan Scope of  Service Complete One Active Recreation Expansion Option is 
provided to BOS to go to the Spring/Fall 2019 
Town Meeting


Fall, 2019 Town to Vote on the Expansion of the Pipestave Hill Active Recreation Area 
to include the Dunn Property


July 2019 or 
November, 2019


PARC Grant to be submitted Open Space and Rec Plan needs to be updated 
and Status Active by Spring, 2018


Jan, 2020 Dog Park Grant to be submitted







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      17 |P a g e  
 


VII Meetings with Committees and West Newbury Residents 
 


For the past 9 months, the Parks and Recreation commission has reviewed potential active recreation areas 
including the review of the increase in the participation and utilization rates of Bachelor Field and Pipestave 
athletic fields.  


 


 P&R has gathered information including correspondence or meetings with the following groups   


 


• Board of Selectmen Meetings (November 2017, June 2018, and July 2018) 


• Mill Pond Committee Meeting (Lower Mill Pond, January 2018),  


• Essex County Greenbelt Association (Lower Mill Pond),  


• Open Space Committee Meeting, January 2018  


• Board of Health Correspondence (Action Cove),  


• ConCom Committee Meeting, March 2018 and Jay Smith walked Dunn Property April 2018,   


• Water Department Correspondence (Mike Gootee),  


• Highway Department Meetings in March and June 2018 (Gary Bill),  


• High School Correspondence (Dan Thornton), 


• Pentucket Youth Sports Leagues Correspondence,  


• West Newbury Riding and Drive Club Meeting May 2018,  


• West Newbury Officials:  Mike McCarron and Joe Anderson, and  


• Following residents:  Tom Flaherty, John McGrath, Frank Sisto, Steve Greason, Pat Higgins, Jack Foley, 
Lisa Maduzia, Bill Roche, Allison Schneider, and Jack Duggan.  


 


VIII Public Benefits 
 


Provide the West Newbury and Pentucket youths with another multi-use grass or turf field to expand sports 
activities and to alleviate the usage stress on the Pipestave Hill fields.  For the past 4 to 5 years the number of 
participants in the different sports has increased from 605 to 930 (approximately 50% of the increase due to 
Flag Football).  At this time, the Middle School/High School building proposal is not going to alleviate the field 
usage at Pipestave Hill. 


 


Provide the West Newbury residents with two Tennis Courts which there are no tennis courts today. The 
Tennis Courts are Middle School are excellent; however, they are unavailable to most members of the 
community until school is over. Tennis courts are very low maintenance, long lasting and provide community 
use for all ages. 
 


Provide the West Newbury residents with a Dog Park for those residents who prefer not to walk their dog 


and  would rather have them run around in an enclosed environment with other dogs. Dog parks are their own 
community. It provides another place for bringing people together.  From what we can tell, 1) Dog Parks are 
regulated at local level and not state level. In 2016 and 2017, there are 583 Dog Licenses in West Newbury.   
 


Provide the West Newbury residents with Fitness/Walking Trail would be user friendly for a variety of 
different ages and abilities as well as the possibility of the Garden Club participation to showcase native 
plantings. There would be multiple stations along the trail, each focused on a particular muscle group for 
strength or flexibility.  Usually there are 6-12 stations.  There are pre-made stations and stations volunteers 
could build/assemble.  Not all stations need anything installed (for example, push-ups or jumping jacks, 







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      18 |P a g e  
 


etc.).  There should be signage to explain the station.  The signage could be a good volunteer project for the 
Scouts or some other group.  
 


VIII Community Preservation Funding Request 
 


 Amount of Community Preservation Funding Requested:  $ 51,500.00   


 


In summary, the Scope of Service is separated into 1) Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area, 2) 
Conceptual Master Plan, 3) Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) Study, 4) Meetings, and 5) Reimbursable 
Expenses/Direct Costs.  The Parks & Recreation Commission is requesting approval for the amount of 
$51,500.00   from the Community Preservation Funding.   


 


The Table below has the breakdown below of the costs for each Scope of Service section. 


 


Section      


1.0 Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area   $                                                      5,250.00 


      


2.0 Conceptual Master Plan  $                                                    32,750.00  


      


3.0 Traffic Impact Assessment Study  $                                                      7,500.00 


      


4.0 Meetings  $                                                      3,500.00 


      


5.0 Reimbursable Expense/Direct Costs  $                                                      1,500.00 


      


P&R 
Request 


Printing and Bulk Mailing Costs of a town-wide mailing 
to announce the process and calendar $                                                      1,000.00 


   


  Total  $                                                    51,500.00 


 


The key percentage completion milestones are   


1)     25% completion is the schematic initial design sketch for Natural Heritage Endangered Species Program 


(NHESP) to assess issues with endangered species and whether alternative location will need to be studied, 


and  


2)  50% completion is the status that field locations and other sundry uses can be changed, added to, revised, 


etc for preparation of the final concept.    


  







Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      19 |P a g e  
 


VIII    P&R Approved Applications for Project Eligibility and Funding 


 


The Parks & Recreation   Meeting Minutes held on August 14, 2018 where the Commissioners approved 


unanimously 3-0 the Project Eligibility and Funding Applications for the CPC meeting on August 23, 2018 are 


provided below: 


 


Parks & Recreation 


MINUTES OF MEETING 


  August 14, 2018  


A meeting of the West Newbury Parks & Recreation Committee was held on   August 14, 2018 in the Tom 


Flaherty’s barn at 460 Main St.  Unfortunately, Parks & Rec and other Committees could not enter the Town 


Office Building to use the First Floor Hearing Room; no committees had the new keys to enter the building. The 


meeting was moved at 7:35pm. First Floor Hearing Room.   Commissioner Tom Flaherty, Chair, Bill Bachrach, 


and Jack Foley were present.   


 


Tom Flaherty called the meeting to order at 7:40pm by Tom Flaherty.   The following community members 


attended Lisa Maduzia, Bill Roche, and Allison Schneider. 


 


The P&R Committee reviewed and discussed with the community members the following documents on 


“Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property” 1) CPC Application for 
Eligibility and 2) CPC Application for Funding.  The community members were interested in the learning about 
the Cammett Engineering Scope of Services particularly the Traffic Impact Study Assessment and Meetings to 
be held by Cammett Engineering and Parks & Rec.   


 


Tom Flaherty provided an overview of the Pipestave Parking Expansion first meeting held on Wednesday, 
August 8th.  Tom discussed the options and at their next meeting, Monday, August 20th, the parking on upper 
Dunn main field will be discussed as Gary Bill will present financial estimates for adding parking there.  


 


Tom Flaherty made the following motion and seconded by Bil Bachrach “to approve the mobile phone 
expenses for the two directors of the Page School Recreation Program.”  The motion was unanimously 
approved 3-0. 


 


Bill Bachrach made the following motion, seconded by Tom Flaherty “To vote to approve the documents on 
“Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property” for the CPC meeting to 
be held on August 23rd.  The documents include1) CPC Application for Eligibility, 2) CPC Application for 
Funding, and 3) Cammett Engineering Scope of Service Proposal.”  The motion was unanimously approved 3-
0. 


 


Motion to adjourn at 8:40pm. 


Submitted by, 


 


Tom Flaherty, Chairperson  








1 | P a g e  
 


 


 


 


TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 


APPLICATION FOR PROJECT ELIGIBILITY  


COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 


    


Applicants should file eight (8) copies of the completed Application and all accompanying documents with the Community 


Preservation Committee, Town Office Building, West Newbury MA 01985, and an electronic copy to cpc@wnewbury.org.   


 


PROJECT NAME:  Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property 


PROJECT ADDRESS: Dunn Property  


    Chase Street (Parcel:  R26-190) 


    West Newbury, MA    


MAP/LOT:   _Parcel:  R26-190______________________________________________ 


APPLICANT NAME: _Parks & Recreaton Commissioners 


(Group or Committee Affiliation) 


CONTACT PERSON: __Bill Bachrach_____________________________________________ 


TELEPHONE/FAX NO.: __864-303-3189_____________________________________________ 


ADDRESS:   16 Donovan Drive, West Newbury, MA 01985   


EMAIL:    bachrachw@comcast.net    


COMMUNITY PRESERVATION CATEGORY: 


(Please check all that apply) 


❑ Open Space 


X Recreation 


❑ Historic Preservation 


o Eligible/On State Registry 


o Designated by Historic Commission 


❑ Community Housing 


 


Please provide a brief project description below.  Include a brief narrative of how your project accomplishes the goals of the 


CPA and include an estimated budget.  Please include supporting materials as necessary.  


 



mailto:bachrachw@comcast.net





2 | P a g e  
 


This Application meets the requirements of M.G.L. Chapter 44B, Section 2. Definition of Recreational Use.   


The Board of Selectmen approved moving forward with going to the Community Preservation Committee for 
funding an Engineering Study for the Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn 


Property project. The Engineering Study is the Cammett Engineering Scope of Services document provided and 
this document is separated into four areas: 1) Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area, 2) Conceptual 
Master Plan, 3) Traffic Impact Assessment Study, and 4) Meetings 


Please see the attachments in our Application for Funding for supporting materials.   


  


FUNDING: 


 


 Amount of Community Preservation Funding Requested:   


$__51,500.00 


 


 


 


        


__________________________________________8/15/2018________Applicant Signature and Date 


 


For more information contact 978-363-1100 X131      


12/2013, Revised May, 2016 


 





ajennings
Text Box
H-4



 

ARTICLE REQUEST FORM  
Community Preservation Committee 

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING, OCTOBER 22, 2018 
 

ARTICLE:  Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property 
  

AMOUNT REQUESTED:   $51,500.00 for a Conceptual Master Plan of the Dunn Property 
CONTACT PERSON:  Parks and Recreation:  Bill Bachrach     CPC: Jean Nelson, CPC Administrator   
PHONE NUMBER:  Bill:  864-303-3189, bachrachw@comcast.new       Jean:  978-363-1100 X131, cpc@wnewbury.org (email is best) 
 At a meeting of the Community Preservation Committee held on August 23, 2018, the Committee voted to approve the Applications 
for Eligibility and Funding for $51,500 for Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property.  Present 
and voting were Joe Anderson, Bill Bachrach, Ray Cook, Bob Janes, Mary Harada, Judy Mizner, and Sherry Pruyn.  The vote in favor 
was 6 to 1. 
 
Why should the Town make this purchase?  What needs will be met?  Who will benefit? 
     
 Please see the attached Applications for Eligibility and Funding, submitted to the CPC by the Parks and Recreation Commission.  
Creating a Conceptual Master Plan is the first step in addressing the needs of the Town for additional and new recreational facilities, 
and for incorporating the Dunn Property into the Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area. 
 
The Application is based on: 
 
$50,500          Scope of Services Quote prepared by Cammett Engineering  
 $ 1,000          Public Notification of the calendar for  visioning sessions and meetings  
$51,500          TOTAL 
 
Page 17 of the Application for Funding addresses the long term public benefits of the proposed project. 
  
What factors affect the timing of this purchase? 
At this time, Parks & Rec does not anticipate any factors affecting the timing of the Conceptual Master Plan to be completed within 
nine months from the date of Town Meeting approval.  
  
When should this Article be sunsetted--how long will the project take?  
It is anticipated that the project will take approximately nine months from the date of Town Meeting approval.  However, the standard 
sunset provision has in the past been three years, and that is what we are requesting.  
  
What ancillary costs do you anticipate? (Maintenance, Insurance, Training, etc.)       
N/A 
   
Does this Article involve improvement, preservation or creation of tangible Town-owned assets and projects which 1) have useful life of at least five years; 2) 
cost over $20,000 and or 3) for which the Town is authorized to borrow funds? If so, please confirm that this item is on the Capital Improvements Committee 
Schedule for future capital investments.   
 N/A 
  
Please attach additional pages or other supporting documentation.  
 
SUGGESTED ARTICLE LANGUAGE (SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY ALL PARTIES) 
 
Article.  To see if the Town will vote to transfer from Community Preservation Act funds, Open Space and Recreation Reserve, the sum of $51,500. for 
Engineering Services and related expenses to prepare a Conceptual Master Plan for Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to Include the Dunn 
Property, (Assessors Map R26, Lot 19), subject to the conditions of the Community Preservation Committee, or take any other action relative thereto.  The 
funding will expire in three years from Town Meeting vote.  By request of the Parks and Recreation Commission and the Community Preservation 
Committee. 
 
 
Submitted by Jean Nelson, CPC Administrator, to Angus Jennings, Town Manager, via email on August 30, 2018. 

mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org


1 | P a g e  
 

 

 

 

TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

APPLICATION FOR PROJECT ELIGIBILITY  

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 

    

Applicants should file eight (8) copies of the completed Application and all accompanying documents with the Community 

Preservation Committee, Town Office Building, West Newbury MA 01985, and an electronic copy to cpc@wnewbury.org.   

 

PROJECT NAME:  Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property 

PROJECT ADDRESS: Dunn Property  

    Chase Street (Parcel:  R26-190) 

    West Newbury, MA    

MAP/LOT:   _Parcel:  R26-190______________________________________________ 

APPLICANT NAME: _Parks & Recreaton Commissioners 

(Group or Committee Affiliation) 

CONTACT PERSON: __Bill Bachrach_____________________________________________ 

TELEPHONE/FAX NO.: __864-303-3189_____________________________________________ 

ADDRESS:   16 Donovan Drive, West Newbury, MA 01985   

EMAIL:    bachrachw@comcast.net    

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION CATEGORY: 

(Please check all that apply) 

❑ Open Space 

X Recreation 

❑ Historic Preservation 

o Eligible/On State Registry 

o Designated by Historic Commission 

❑ Community Housing 

 

Please provide a brief project description below.  Include a brief narrative of how your project accomplishes the goals of the 

CPA and include an estimated budget.  Please include supporting materials as necessary.  

 

mailto:bachrachw@comcast.net


2 | P a g e  
 

This Application meets the requirements of M.G.L. Chapter 44B, Section 2. Definition of Recreational Use.   

The Board of Selectmen approved moving forward with going to the Community Preservation Committee for 
funding an Engineering Study for the Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn 

Property project. The Engineering Study is the Cammett Engineering Scope of Services document provided and 
this document is separated into four areas: 1) Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area, 2) Conceptual 
Master Plan, 3) Traffic Impact Assessment Study, and 4) Meetings 

Please see the attachments in our Application for Funding for supporting materials.   

  

FUNDING: 

 

 Amount of Community Preservation Funding Requested:   

$__51,500.00 

 

 

 

        

__________________________________________8/15/2018________Applicant Signature and Date 

 

For more information contact 978-363-1100 X131      

12/2013, Revised May, 2016 
 



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      1 |P a g e  
 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

APPLICATION FOR PROJECT FUNDING  

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 

                     

Applicants should file eight (8) copies of the completed Application and all accompanying documents with the Community 

Preservation Committee, Town Office Building, West Newbury MA 01985, and an electronic copy to cpc@wnewbury.org.   

PROJECT NAME:  Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property   

PROJECT ADDRESS: Dunn Property  

    Chase Street (Parcel:  R26-190) 

    West Newbury, MA    

MAP/LOT:   _Parcel:  R26-190______________________________________________ 

APPLICANT NAME: _Parks & Recreation Commissioners 

(Group or Committee Affiliation) 

CONTACT PERSON: __Bill Bachrach_______________ 

TELEPHONE/FAX NO.: __864-303-3189________________ 

ADDRESS:   16 Donovan Drive  

    West Newbury  ________________ 

EMAIL:    bachrachw@comcast.net  

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION CATEGORY: 

(Please check all that apply) 

❑ Open Space 

❑ Historic Preservation 

o Eligible/On State Registry 

o Designated by Historic Commission 

❑ Community Housing 

X   Recreation 

 

The Committee may require, as a condition for funding, that the applicant grant to the Town or other authorized grantee 

certain restrictions, including:  preservation restrictions on rehabilitated or acquired historic resources, conservation 

restrictions on preserved or acquired lands, and deed restrictions on affordable housing projects. If applicable, the restriction 

shall be recorded at the Southern Essex District Registry of Deeds.  
 

mailto:bachrachw@comcast.net


Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      2 |P a g e  
 

REQUIRED NARRATIVE:  PLEASE PROVIDE A NARRATIVE ON A SEPARATE SHEET WHICH 

ADDRESSES THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS 

 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  Provide a description of the Project, including the property involved and its proposed use.   

PUBLIC BENEFIT:   Describe in detail the benefits West Newbury will receive from the Project and how the Project 

fulfills the Community Preservation Committee’s Project Evaluation Criteria.  

CONTROL OF SITE:  Indicate whether the applicant owns or has a purchase agreement for the Project site.  If the 

property is under agreement, include a description of the agreement and the timing and conditions.  If the applicant does 

not have site control, explain. 

FEASIBILITY:  List all steps that may be required for completion of the Project, such as environmental assessment, 

zoning or other approvals, agreement on terms of any required conservation, affordability or historic preservation 

restrictions, and any other known issues. For projects that may impact abutters or the neighborhood, describe methods used 

to notify abutters of the proposal, and support or objections from those affected. 

SUPPORT:  Have the appropriate Town Boards and Commissions expressed support and/or approved the project?  What 

is the nature and level of community support for this project? 

PROJECT TIMELINE:  Describe the anticipated steps or phases for completion of the Project. Demonstrate whether the 

Project will be ready to proceed in the coming fiscal year.  Will this be a multi-year project? 

FUNDING: 

 A. Amount of Community Preservation Funding Requested:   

$__________________ 

B.  Include a full budget, including itemization of major components and breakdown of construction and 

maintenance costs.  Describe the basis for your budget and the sources of information you used. 

C.  Other Sources of Funding Available:  If funding from other sources may be available for the Project, 

please complete the following table: 

 

SOURCE OF  

FUNDING 

AMOUNT  

REQUESTED 

STATUS (COMMITTED Y/N 

IF NOT-WHEN) 

CONTINGENT ON  

CP FUNDS (Y/N) 

 $   

 $   

ATTACHMENTS:  SEE GUIDELINES FOR PROJECT SUBMISSION AND ATTACHMENTS.  YOU MAY 

BE REQUESTED TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.  

 SUBMISSION OF AN APPLICATION DOES NOT CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF A PROJECT 

        

__________________________________________8/15/2018________Applicant Signature and Date 

For questions contact:  cpc@wnewbury.org, 978-363-1100 X131.    

 

Date Received: ________________  Meeting Date(s): ________________  Amount Approved: __________ 

Town Meeting Date/Article #: ______________  Vote of Town Meeting:           _______________   Revised August 2015 

mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org


Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      3 |P a g e  
 

 

Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion  

to include the Dunn Property 

 

Table of Contents 
 

I. Parks & Recreation Commissioners Overview ................................................................................. 4 

II. Parks and Recreation Youth Sports Participation and Field Usage ............................................... 4 

III. Board of Selectmen Meetings ........................................................................................................ 7 

IV. Review of Active Recreation Areas for Expansion ....................................................................... 8 

1.0 Mill Pond Lower Field ............................................................................................................... 9 

2.0 Bachelor Fields-Action Cove ................................................................................................... 10 

3.0  Brake Hill ................................................................................................................................. 10 

4.0  Mullen Property ....................................................................................................................... 10 

5.0  Dunn Property.......................................................................................................................... 10 

V. Conceptual Master Plan - Scope of Services ............................................................................... 12 

1.0 Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area .................................................................... 12 

2.0 Conceptual Master Plan .......................................................................................................... 13 

3.0 Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) Study .................................................................................... 14 

4.0 Meetings ................................................................................................................................... 15 

5.0 Conceptual Master Recreation Plan Comparison Costs .......................................................... 15 

VI Summary of Project Milestones and Time Line .......................................................................... 16 

VII Meetings with Committees and West Newbury Residents .......................................................... 17 

VIII Public Benefits ............................................................................................................................. 17 

VIII Community Preservation Funding Request ................................................................................. 18 

VIII    P&R Approved Applications for Project Eligibility and Funding ............................................... 19 

 

  



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      4 |P a g e  
 

I. Parks & Recreation Commissioners Overview   
 

The West Newbury Parks and Recreation Commission has three members elected to serve staggered 3-year 
terms.   The Parks and Recreation Commission oversees nine fields, one playground, one outdoor basketball 
court, and Ferry Lane Park: 

 

• Bachelor Street includes Cammett Park which has three baseball fields, Action Cove playground, and 
an outdoor basketball court are located off Bachelor Street. Commissioners also are responsible for 
the snack shack at the Bachelor Street fields. 

• Pipestave Hill: four fields located off Main Street, across from the Page School 

• Page School: two softball fields off Main Street   

• Ferry Lane Park: boat launch area into the Merrimack River at the intersection of Bridge and Church 
streets   

 

The Goals and Objectives of the town Parks and Recreation Commissioners include: 

 

• Support all youth programs and activities in West Newbury 

• Perform an overview of field maintenance and safety from participants' perspective 

• Provide amenities at popular recreational sites (for example: porta-potties, recycling, parking) 

• Administer the town policies regarding use of recreational facilities 

• Provide leadership, both supportive and creative, of town recreational programs. 

 
In 2010, the commissioners surveyed West Newbury residents for input on recreational needs and their ideas. 
Results included: an indoor swimming pool, an outdoor basketball court, at least one more all-purpose athletic 
field (preferably artificial turf), a senior/wellness center, tennis courts, an enclosed dog park, walking/fitness 
trails, and a senior center. The information gleaned from the survey responses has been the driving force 
behind reviewing the active recreation utilization areas and the actions and plans by the Parks and Recreation 
Commissioners.   The next section provides and overview of the youth sports participation and field usage. 

 

II. Parks and Recreation Youth Sports Participation and Field Usage 
 

Bachelor Street has 3 Baseball fields and they are used for elementary school soccer during the fall, the Page 
School has 2 softball fields, and Pipestave has 4 fields and a Baseball Field.  The most recent addition to the 
offerings is Flag Football in 2014.The town playing fields are used by West Newbury Youth Leagues, Pentucket 
High School, and regional town sports. Enrollment figures are provided in the table below.  

 

  



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      5 |P a g e  
 

PARKS AND RECREATION ACTIVE PROGRAM ENROLLMENT  

 

ACTIVITY 

 

 

 

PARTICIPANTS 

Fall 2013 & Spring 2014          Fall 2016 & Spring 2017 

 

West Newbury Youth League (Grades 1-6) 

  Flag Football No Program 140 

Little League Baseball 125 150 

Intramural Basketball 135 135 

Lacrosse 120 250 

Rugby 70  50 

   Soccer 250 300 

  Softball 40  40 

 

Pentucket Middle School (Grades 7-8) 

 

Babe Ruth Baseball 80  60 

Intramural Basketball 80 80 

Rugby 55  40 

 

Pentucket High School 

  

Freshman Baseball Data not collected 15 

Cross Country Data not collected 90 

Lacrosse Data not collected  90 

Rugby Data not collected  65 

 Soccer Data not collected 110 

 

 

The Table below is an estimate of the number of days per week, number of hours per week, and total number 
of weeks for each sport played at Bachelor Field, Page School, or Pipestave.  For the past 4-5 years, the number 
of participants in different sports for Grades 1-6 has increased from 605 to 930 (approximately 50 percent 
increase with Flag Football and 30 percent without it).  Pentucket High School is using the fields in the fall and 
spring approximately 5-6 days, totaling 20-24 hours per week.  

  



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      6 |P a g e  
 

 

 

SPORT 
 

LOCATION 
 

Pipestave (PS)   

Bachelor (BF) 

 

NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS 
 

Days  

Per Week 
(est) 

 

Avg Hours 

per Week 

(est) 

 

Total 

Weeks 
(est) 

  

Fall 2013 & 

Spring 2014 
Fall 2016 & 

Spring 2017 

   

 

 

                                          West Newbury Youth League (Grades 1-6) 

 
Flag 

Football  
PS No program 140 4 8 10-12 

Lacrosse PS 120 250 4 6.5 10-12 
Rugby PS 70 50 4 6.5 10-12 
 
Soccer 

 

PS and BF 
 

250 
 

300 
Fall:  PS-4  

          BF-3 
Spring: PS 2 

PS-24, 

       BF 15 
PS-12 

10-12 
 

10-12 
Little 

League 

Baseball 

 

BF 
 

125 
 

150 
 

7 
 

21-24 
 

17 

Softball (Page School) 40 40 4 8 10-12 
 

Pentucket Middle School (Grades 7-8) 

 
Babe 

Ruth 

Baseball 

 

PS 
 

            80 
 

60 
 

6 
 

15-18 
 

17 

Rugby PS 55 40 4 6.5 10-12 
 

Pentucket High School  

 
Freshman 

Baseball 
PS No Data  15 5-6 15-18 10-12 

Cross 

Country 
PS No Data  90 

   

Lacrosse PS No Data  90 6 18 10-12 
Rugby PS No Data  65 4 6.5 10-12 
Soccer PS No Data  110 5 25-30  10-12 

 

In the Pipestave picture below, field numbered 1 is referred to as the upper field which includes a baseball 
field and a soccer/rugby/lacrosse field that is located in the baseball outfield. The lower Pipestave field is 
composed of 3 fields (Fields 2 through 4), of which 2 are used per season with the third field rested due to 
over-use.  



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      7 |P a g e  
 

 

The total estimated hours of field use for all sports activities at Pipestave varies from 600-700 hours in the fall 
and 850-950 hours in the spring.  As noted in the Table below for 2017, the overall field utilization at Pipestave 
is > 80% and 100% utilization during the weekdays.   In 2018 and 2019, the fall utilization will increase due to 
the expansion of flag football to include 7th Graders in 2018 and 8th Graders in 2019 leading to an overall 
utilization to increase over 90% during the weekends. 

Utilization Hours Fall, 2017 Spring, 2018 

Weekday   3:00pm-5:30pm 100% 75% 

Weekday 5:30pm-8:00pm 100% 100% 

Saturday 8:00am-5:00pm 44% 100% 

Sunday 8:00am-5:00pm 67% 89% 

Overall Utilization 
 

81% 82% 

Notes 
 

3 of the 4   Fields 

Active 

4 Fields Active 

 

III. Board of Selectmen Meetings   
 

Parks & Recreation (P&R) has met with the Board of Selectmen on Monday, November 11, 2017, Monday, June 
26, 2018 and Monday, July 9, 2018. 

At the November meeting, P&R presented to the Boards of Selectmen the “Vision to provide the West 
Newbury Community with a comprehensive and centralized all in-one recreational environment by expanding 

West Newbury MIMAP March 21, 2018

The Town of West Newbury and Merrimack Valley Planning Commission  
do not make any warranty, expressed or implied, nor assume any legal  
liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of  
the Geographic Information System (GIS) Data or any other data provided  
herein. The GIS data is illustrative only and should not be considered for  
any other purpose. The data does not take the place of a professional  
survey and has no legal bearing on the true shape, size, location, or  
existence of a geographic feature, property line, or political representation.  
Merrimack Valley Planning Commission and the Town of West Newbury  
make no warranties or representations as to the accuracy of said  
information. Concerns about zoning and wetland issues must be  
addressed to the appropriate Town department. Any use of this  
information is at the recipient's own risk.

Building
MVPC Boundary
West Newbury Boundary  
Parcels
HydrographicFeatures  
Streams

Wetlands

1" = 379 ft

1

2

3

4



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      8 |P a g e  
 

the Pipestave Facility to include the Dunn Property.”   P&R was approved for $1,000 in funding to support  the 
first step  to analyze expanding the Pipestave Facility to include the Dunn Property.  The key points discussed 
at this meeting was to have a group of Wentworth students as part of their Capstone project requirement to 
develop a very preliminary report on this project. Unfortunately, our Capstone project did not work out with 
these students.   

From November, 2017 to present, P&R has had information gathering sessions including correspondence or 
meetings with the following groups  Mill Pond Committee (Lower Mill Pond), Essex County Greenbelt 
Association (Lower Mill Pond), Open Space Committee, Board of Health (Action Cove), ConCom (Jay Smith), 
Water Department (Mike Gootee), Highway Department (Gary Bill), High School (Dan Thornton), Pentucket 
Youth Sports Leagues, West Newbury Riding and Drive Club, West Newbury Officials:  Mike McCarron and Joe 
Anderson, and the following residents:  Tom Flaherty, John McGrath, Frank Sisto, Steve Greason, Pat Higgins, 
Jack Foley, Lisa Maduzia, and Jack Duggan. 

At the June BOS Meeting, P&R updated the Board of Selectmen   to Discuss the Expansion of the Dunn 
Property to include Active Recreational Activities.  The presentation included 1) Background on Why West 
Newbury needs more Active Recreational Space?  2) Key Milestones and Time Line for Meetings and Approvals 
3) Prioritization of Active Recreational Activities for Phase 1 and Future Development and 4) Engineering Study 
Key Components.  The action item from the meeting was for the BOS to review the status of the project and to 
come back with any questions or comments. 
 
At the July BOS Meeting, the BOS had no comments on the presentation.  We provided a timeline on what the 
next steps will be to 1) Receive a Scope of Services and Quote for a Master Conceptual Plan and 2) meet with 
the Community Preservation Committee for approval for Community Preservation Funding. 
 
The Board of Selectmen approved moving forward with going to the Community Preservation Committee for 
funding an Engineering Study for the Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn 

Property project. The Engineering Study is the Cammett Engineering Scope of Services document provided and 
this document is separated into four areas: 1) Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area, 2) Conceptual 
Master Plan, 3) Traffic Impact Assessment Study, and 4) Meetings. 

The following sections provide the background on why West Newbury needs more active recreational space, 
scope of services and quote for a Master Conceptual Plan. 
 

IV. Review of Active Recreation Areas for Expansion 
 

Parks and Recreation has reviewed the potential active recreation areas for Parking, Multi-Use Athletic Field 
either grass or turf, Retreat Dog Park, Tennis Courts, Walking Fitness Trail, Tennis Courts, and a Sr. Center.  
Below is a color-coded Table of the possibilities with Green – Possibly Fits into the Active Recreation Area, 
Yellow- Needs Further Review, and Red – Not Possible.   

 



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      9 |P a g e  
 

 

 

Note:  Green Color means the activity is possible in the active recreation area, Yellow Color means the activity 
might be possible in the active recreation area, and Red means the activity is not in the active recreation area 

  

The following sections review each of the different areas for possible active recreation. 

 

1.0 Mill Pond Lower Field 
 

The Parks & Rec Commission met with the Mill Pond Committee on January 10, 2018 to discuss putting a 
“Retreat Dog Park” at the Mill Pond Lower Field; Parks & Rec was proposing an enhancement to an unused 
area.   The following was made and approved 5-2 by the Committee: “Would Mill Pond voting members be 
open to seeing a formal proposal for a Dog Park for the area adjacent to the lower field and Rt. 113/Main 
Street.”   

 

Mill Pond is under the jurisdiction of the Essex County Greenbelt Association.  The Association reviewed the 

proposal and, in a letter, dated February 8, 2018 denied the request for approval of a dog park retreat:   

 “….  A review of the CR by Greenbelt has led to our conclusion that a dog park at this site is not consistent 

with the purposes and terms of this CR. Specifically, paragraph A.9 on page 3 prohibits “Active recreation 

activities (defined by the need for fixed facilities), including the creation and maintenance of playgrounds, 

soccer fields, ball parks, football fields, or active recreation facilities of any kind.”. It is our conclusion that a 

dog park retreat as described in your report falls within the definition of activities prohibited by this language. 

In the absence of any other reserved right in the CR allowing such an activity, and based on our 

interpretation of the entire CR, Greenbelt has no other option than to communicate to you that we would 

not be able to approve a dog park retreat as proposed at the Pipestave Hill/Mill Pond site.” 

Parking All Purpose 
Athletic Field

Retreat 
Dog Park

Walking-
Fitness Trail

Tennis 
Court/Padd
le Ball

Sr. Center

Dunn 
Property

Mill Pond 
Lower Field

Action Cove

Brake 
Hill

Mullen 
Property



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      10 |P a g e  
 

2.0 Bachelor Fields-Action Cove 
 

Bachelor Fields and Action Cove are located in the same area.  Bachelor Fields are comprised of three baseball 
fields that are also use for soccer, basketball court and there is no more space to add any active recreation 
fields.  Action Cove is comprised of a basketball court and a children’s playground.  The Parks & Rec 
Department reviewed Action Cove as a potential avenue to incorporate a retreat dog park in the open space 
behind the Action Cove Children’s Playground.  Unfortunately, the parking is limited. 

The Parks & Recreation commissioners drafted a proposal to purchase a centrally located parcel to meet the 
town’s growing recreation needs which bordered the Bachelor Fields-Action Cove area. The centrally located 
Daley land would have walking access from the four streets that bordered the 22-acre parcel. At Town 
Meetings, May 2011 voters did not approve to purchase the Daly property. The property was subsequently 
sold to a developer.    

3.0  Brake Hill 
 

The Brake Hill property is a heavily wooded hill which has a non-paved road to the Town’s Water Tank and is 
used by the Pentucket Cross-Country Team to run.  The access to Brake Hill is located in a residential housing 
division. Unfortunately, parking may be an issue.  West Newbury Water Department is building a road to bring-
in a Water Tank and it is not clear if is possible to put in a walking and fitness trail in this area. 

 

4.0  Mullen Property 
 

The Mullen Property is bordered by Main Street, Church, and Prospect Streets.  This area is completely 
wooded and surrounded by houses.  There is a trail, but the parking is currently limited as the entrance is off of 
Main Street.     

5.0  Dunn Property 
 

The Dunn Property is adjacent to Pipestave and bordered by Main, Chase, and Middle Streets.  The 75-acre 
parcel was purchased by the town in November 2000 for $1.75 million.  

Parks & Recreation Commission vision is to provide the West Newbury Community with a Premier All-In-One 
Active Recreational Environment by expanding the Pipestave Facility to include the Dunn Property for a dog 
park, fitness loop, and/or expansion to include fields for soccer, flag football, and/or lacrosse and tennis, with 
parking for all proposed uses.  The active recreation sites would be located within three main fields:  1) Main 
Field has 18-20 acres, 2) North Field has 1.1 acres, and 3) South Field has 3.3 acres as shown in the picture 
below: 
 



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      11 |P a g e  
 

   

 

Parks & Rec has collected information on different aspects of the Dunn Property and to date the following has 
been determined:   

 

1) Essex County Greenbelt Association Conservation Restriction Agreement on Mill Pond/Pipestave dated 
12/25/2001 allows for Municipal Roadway to extend from Upper Pipestave to include the Dunn Property,  

 

2) West Newbury conservation agent (Jay Smith) walked the Dunn Property in April, 2018 and states “as long 
as the recreational activities stay within the periphery of the three fields we should be okay from a wetlands 
perspective, and  

 

3)  The location of the two well sites south of the South Field do not have effect on the activities that could be  
on the South Field location. 

 

  

Scale

To Pipestave ParkingLot

Pipestave  
Athletic  
Fields

DUNN FIELD
BASE MAP WITH EXISTING TRAILS  
DATE: MARCH 1, 2018

NORTH FIELD

SOUTH FIELD

MAIN FIELD

N

S

W E

North Field
1.13 acres

5/6/2018 Parks & Rec 8

South Field

3.3 Acres

Main Field
18-20 Acres



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      12 |P a g e  
 

The possible locations for the Active Recreation Activities and Infrastructure are shown in the Table below 

 

  

Note:  The Conceptual Master Plan will include two Athletic Fields.  Both Fields could be Grass or one Field 
could be Grass and the other field could be Artificial Turf. 

 

V. Conceptual Master Plan - Scope of Services  
 

Cammett Engineering has provided the Scope of Services and Estimated Cost for the preparation and 
presentation of the “Conceptual Master Plan” for active and passive recreation uses on the Dunn parcel 
adjacent to the Pipestave Hill Recreation Complex.   

 

1.0 Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area 
 

1.1 A consulting botanist shall flag and identify limits of bordering vegetative, wet meadows, 
brooks, and streams, and other regulated wetland resource areas on site, near proposed 
improvement. 

1.2 Staff field personnel shall stake and locate, using pole mounted GPS environment, the 
flagged resource areas. 

1.3 Office personnel shall plot the field locations on the base Mass GIS map being developed 
under 2.0 below; in addition, limits of Mass DEP – natural heritage endangered species 
limit; and Mass DEP – wetlands protection buffer zones shall be shown. 

1.4 Staff personnel shall complete a resource delineation application and submit to DEP and 
the local conservation commission to verify the wetland limits. 
 

Professional fee to complete the Wetlands Sections is $5,250.00. 

North 
Field

Upper Main 
Field

Lower Main 
Field

South Field Trail

Entrance/Parking/
Roads

No Yes Yes No No

Grass Multi-Use 
Athletic Field

No Yes Yes No No

Artificial Turf Multi-
Use Athletic Field

No Yes Yes No No

Retreat Dog Park Yes No No Yes No

Fitness Loop No No No No Yes

Tennis Court Yes No No Yes No

Concession Stand  No Yes No No No

Restroom Facility No Yes No No No



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      13 |P a g e  
 

 

2.0 Conceptual Master Plan 
 

2.1 Staff engineer shall prepare an existing condition plan of the site using MASS GIS Available 
Maps, surveys of record and Town assessor maps to show the following 

• approximate site perimeter 

• site topography (10’ contours) 

• approximate wetland resource areas based on 1.0 above 

• soil types based on USDA Soil Survey of Essex County, and the USDA-NCRS 
mapping. 

 

2.2 Staff Engineers shall prepare a conceptual master plan showing the following proposed 
uses/structures 
 

• Two(2) Multi-Purpose Fields – soccer, lacrosse, etc.  
 

• Two(2) Tennis Courts (doubles capacity) 
 

• Walking/jogging nature trails (GPS locate existing trails adjacent to proposed 
improvements) 

 

• Multi-purpose recreational building/concession stand 
 

• Additional parking areas and access ways 
 

• Designated area for “Dog Park” 
 

2.3 Staff personnel shall prepare a draft report on the following items: 
 

• Park improvements for existing uses/structures, if required. 
 

• Phased construction 
 

• Cost associated with plan implementation including estimated annual 
maintenance cost 

 

• Turf Management Plan for Grass and Artificial Turf will include “best” management 
practices: Depending on the soil testing results, a drainage plan may need to be 
provided.   

 
✓ Development & Maintenance of a Knowledge Base 

✓ Site Assessment 

✓ Development of a Management Plan 



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      14 |P a g e  
 

✓ Turfgrass Selection 

✓ Establishment, Renovation & Repair 

✓ Irrigation and Water Management 

✓ Soil & Nutrient Management 

✓ Mowing 

✓ Traffic Stress & Turf Cultivation 

✓ Weed Management 

✓ Insect Management 

✓ Disease Management 

✓ Management of Abiotic Problems 

✓ Pesticide Considerations 

✓ Selection and Management of Equipment 

• Integrated Pest Management Plan:  This is a section within the Turf Management 
Plan dealing with insect management, disease management, pesticide 
management, and abotic conditions management.    

 

• Local, State, and Federal permits needed 
 

Professional fee to complete the Conceptual Master Plan Section is $32,750.00. 

 

3.0 Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) Study 
 

3.1 Staff Engineers shall prepare a TIA for existing uses and proposed expansive uses. Data 

will be collected either by Tubes and/or Video.  The testing will be done in the Spring and 

Summer, 2019.  Per MASSDOT guidelines; adjustment factors exist for all scenarios.    

 

3.2 Areas to be studied include the following: 

• Chase Street 

• Chase Street/Main Street intersection 

• Main Street – Page School entrances and exits 

• Main Street – Pipestave Hill intersection 
 

3.2 Staff Engineers shall make recommendations for improvements as a result of the TIA as 
follows: 



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      15 |P a g e  
 

• Signage 

• Improved traffic movements 

• Parking restrictions on Chase Street 

• Other improvements related to events, etc. 

 
3.3 Staff personnel use the MASS DOT guideline regulations for “Traffic Impact Assessment” 

for completing this study and recommendation report. 

 
Professional fee to complete the Traffic Impact Assessment Section is $7,500.00. 

 

4.0 Meetings 
 

4.1 Cammett Engineering Staff Personnel shall attend the following meetings with the Park and 
Recreation Committee. 
 

• All of the P&R meetings with Cammett Engineering are open to the public 

• A visionary meeting (1) to discuss field dimensions, building uses/dimensions; parking 
needs etc. after completion of Wetlands Section 

• A meeting with Parks and Recreation to discuss conceptual plan and options at 50% 
complete 

• A meeting (1) to present initial Conceptual Master Plan and obtain public comment 
regarding additions, options, and changes to the plan 

• A final presentation meeting of the accepted Conceptual Master Plan. 

• A meeting with the Mass Heritage at 25% complete of the Conceptual Master Plan.  Mass 

Heritage are the protectors and managers of endangered species and their habitat.  

Depending on the species and we won’t know that species until Cammett Engineering 

speaks with the Mass Heritage] constraints on the development plan could be imposed on 

the extent of alternative redesign locations; mitigation and monitoring plans, looking at 

alternative sites with less impacts.   

 

4.2  The P&R committee meetings are open to the public, the agenda of the meetings will be posted, 
and the municipal departments will be invited to attend.  P&R will also keep the Town Manager 
and different committees appraised of the status of the Conceptual Master Plan, Wetlands and 
Endangered Species Habitat Area, and Traffic Impact Assessment Study at different times of the 
process. The committees to be informed would be the Board of Selectmen, Department of Public 
Works, Board of Health, Conservation Commission, Open Space Committee, Planning Board, and 
other committees or departments as necessary. 

 

Professional fee to complete the Meetings Section is $3,500.00. 

5.0 Conceptual Master Recreation Plan Comparison Costs  
 
For comparison, in the Table below, are Conceptual Master Recreation Plan costs for other town projects. 
The other town costs shown do not include Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area or the Traffic 
Impact Assessment Study costs. 

  



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      16 |P a g e  
 

 
 

Town Project Cost  

Governors Academy Phases I – IV $40,000 

Amesbury Woodson Farm Recreation $39,000 

West Newbury Pipestave Hill Active Recreation Area Expansion to include the 
Dunn Property 

$32,750 

Amesbury Sports Park Hunt Road, Amesbury $28,000 

Salisbury Parc Grant Phase I & II $25,000 

Haverhill Haverhill High School – Field Expansion, Rehab, and Reuse $20,000 

Whittier VO Tech Track and Field Rehab $15,000 

 
 

VI Summary of Project Milestones and Time Line 
 

The Table below is the summary of key project milestones and timelines in the approval process for the 
expansion of the Pipestave Hill active recreational area expansion to include the Dunn Property.  

 

 

 

Month/2018 Activity Action

End of July Discuss Conceptual Master Plan with Engineering Firm Engineering Firm to Provide Feedback on Cost 
for  Conceptual Master Plan by mid-August

August 17 Meet with Town Manager Review Engineering Study  Quote

August 23 Meet with CPC for Approval for Project Eligibility and Project Funds for the 
development of the Conceptual Master Plan – Scope of Service and Quote

If approved, move forward. If not meet with 
Town Manager and BOS to discuss

September If   Project Eligibility and Project Funds Approved to move forward by the CPC Warrant article to be written and meetings 
with BOS and Finance committees for 
discussion

October 22 Town Meeting Approval of Warrant Article to move forward 
with a Conceptual Master Plan – Scope of 
Service and Quote

November  Before the  Scope of Service for Master Plan Commences, the  decision on 
the Expansion of the Parking at Pipe Stave/Dunn Property Upper Main Field  
should be completed This decision may be input into the design concepts for 

the Dunn  Property

P&R to send out mailers to West Newbury Residents and all abutters have to 
be served written notice of the public meetings and agenda regarding the 
Public Hearings/Workshop (Hampden, Maine Example) for the different 
Design Concepts

Public Hearings/Workshop to review the 
different Dunn Property Expansion Active 
Recreation Expansion  Design Concepts

Date to be 
Determined

Conceptual Master Plan Scope of  Service Complete One Active Recreation Expansion Option is 
provided to BOS to go to the Spring/Fall 2019 
Town Meeting

Fall, 2019 Town to Vote on the Expansion of the Pipestave Hill Active Recreation Area 
to include the Dunn Property

July 2019 or 
November, 2019

PARC Grant to be submitted Open Space and Rec Plan needs to be updated 
and Status Active by Spring, 2018

Jan, 2020 Dog Park Grant to be submitted



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      17 |P a g e  
 

VII Meetings with Committees and West Newbury Residents 
 

For the past 9 months, the Parks and Recreation commission has reviewed potential active recreation areas 
including the review of the increase in the participation and utilization rates of Bachelor Field and Pipestave 
athletic fields.  

 

 P&R has gathered information including correspondence or meetings with the following groups   

 

• Board of Selectmen Meetings (November 2017, June 2018, and July 2018) 

• Mill Pond Committee Meeting (Lower Mill Pond, January 2018),  

• Essex County Greenbelt Association (Lower Mill Pond),  

• Open Space Committee Meeting, January 2018  

• Board of Health Correspondence (Action Cove),  

• ConCom Committee Meeting, March 2018 and Jay Smith walked Dunn Property April 2018,   

• Water Department Correspondence (Mike Gootee),  

• Highway Department Meetings in March and June 2018 (Gary Bill),  

• High School Correspondence (Dan Thornton), 

• Pentucket Youth Sports Leagues Correspondence,  

• West Newbury Riding and Drive Club Meeting May 2018,  

• West Newbury Officials:  Mike McCarron and Joe Anderson, and  

• Following residents:  Tom Flaherty, John McGrath, Frank Sisto, Steve Greason, Pat Higgins, Jack Foley, 
Lisa Maduzia, Bill Roche, Allison Schneider, and Jack Duggan.  

 

VIII Public Benefits 
 

Provide the West Newbury and Pentucket youths with another multi-use grass or turf field to expand sports 
activities and to alleviate the usage stress on the Pipestave Hill fields.  For the past 4 to 5 years the number of 
participants in the different sports has increased from 605 to 930 (approximately 50% of the increase due to 
Flag Football).  At this time, the Middle School/High School building proposal is not going to alleviate the field 
usage at Pipestave Hill. 

 

Provide the West Newbury residents with two Tennis Courts which there are no tennis courts today. The 
Tennis Courts are Middle School are excellent; however, they are unavailable to most members of the 
community until school is over. Tennis courts are very low maintenance, long lasting and provide community 
use for all ages. 
 

Provide the West Newbury residents with a Dog Park for those residents who prefer not to walk their dog 

and  would rather have them run around in an enclosed environment with other dogs. Dog parks are their own 
community. It provides another place for bringing people together.  From what we can tell, 1) Dog Parks are 
regulated at local level and not state level. In 2016 and 2017, there are 583 Dog Licenses in West Newbury.   
 

Provide the West Newbury residents with Fitness/Walking Trail would be user friendly for a variety of 
different ages and abilities as well as the possibility of the Garden Club participation to showcase native 
plantings. There would be multiple stations along the trail, each focused on a particular muscle group for 
strength or flexibility.  Usually there are 6-12 stations.  There are pre-made stations and stations volunteers 
could build/assemble.  Not all stations need anything installed (for example, push-ups or jumping jacks, 



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      18 |P a g e  
 

etc.).  There should be signage to explain the station.  The signage could be a good volunteer project for the 
Scouts or some other group.  
 

VIII Community Preservation Funding Request 
 

 Amount of Community Preservation Funding Requested:  $ 51,500.00   

 

In summary, the Scope of Service is separated into 1) Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area, 2) 
Conceptual Master Plan, 3) Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) Study, 4) Meetings, and 5) Reimbursable 
Expenses/Direct Costs.  The Parks & Recreation Commission is requesting approval for the amount of 
$51,500.00   from the Community Preservation Funding.   

 

The Table below has the breakdown below of the costs for each Scope of Service section. 

 

Section      

1.0 Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area   $                                                      5,250.00 

      

2.0 Conceptual Master Plan  $                                                    32,750.00  

      

3.0 Traffic Impact Assessment Study  $                                                      7,500.00 

      

4.0 Meetings  $                                                      3,500.00 

      

5.0 Reimbursable Expense/Direct Costs  $                                                      1,500.00 

      

P&R 
Request 

Printing and Bulk Mailing Costs of a town-wide mailing 
to announce the process and calendar $                                                      1,000.00 

   

  Total  $                                                    51,500.00 

 

The key percentage completion milestones are   

1)     25% completion is the schematic initial design sketch for Natural Heritage Endangered Species Program 

(NHESP) to assess issues with endangered species and whether alternative location will need to be studied, 

and  

2)  50% completion is the status that field locations and other sundry uses can be changed, added to, revised, 

etc for preparation of the final concept.    

  



Parks & Recreation Project: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property      19 |P a g e  
 

VIII    P&R Approved Applications for Project Eligibility and Funding 
 

The Parks & Recreation   Meeting Minutes held on August 14, 2018 where the Commissioners approved 

unanimously 3-0 the Project Eligibility and Funding Applications for the CPC meeting on August 23, 2018 are 

provided below: 

 

Parks & Recreation 

MINUTES OF MEETING 

  August 14, 2018  

A meeting of the West Newbury Parks & Recreation Committee was held on   August 14, 2018 in the Tom 

Flaherty’s barn at 460 Main St.  Unfortunately, Parks & Rec and other Committees could not enter the Town 

Office Building to use the First Floor Hearing Room; no committees had the new keys to enter the building. The 

meeting was moved at 7:35pm. First Floor Hearing Room.   Commissioner Tom Flaherty, Chair, Bill Bachrach, 

and Jack Foley were present.   

 

Tom Flaherty called the meeting to order at 7:40pm by Tom Flaherty.   The following community members 

attended Lisa Maduzia, Bill Roche, and Allison Schneider. 

 

The P&R Committee reviewed and discussed with the community members the following documents on 

“Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property” 1) CPC Application for 
Eligibility and 2) CPC Application for Funding.  The community members were interested in the learning about 
the Cammett Engineering Scope of Services particularly the Traffic Impact Study Assessment and Meetings to 
be held by Cammett Engineering and Parks & Rec.   

 

Tom Flaherty provided an overview of the Pipestave Parking Expansion first meeting held on Wednesday, 
August 8th.  Tom discussed the options and at their next meeting, Monday, August 20th, the parking on upper 
Dunn main field will be discussed as Gary Bill will present financial estimates for adding parking there.  

 

Tom Flaherty made the following motion and seconded by Bil Bachrach “to approve the mobile phone 
expenses for the two directors of the Page School Recreation Program.”  The motion was unanimously 
approved 3-0. 

 

Bill Bachrach made the following motion, seconded by Tom Flaherty “To vote to approve the documents on 
“Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area Expansion to include the Dunn Property” for the CPC meeting to 
be held on August 23rd.  The documents include1) CPC Application for Eligibility, 2) CPC Application for 
Funding, and 3) Cammett Engineering Scope of Service Proposal.”  The motion was unanimously approved 3-
0. 

 

Motion to adjourn at 8:40pm. 

Submitted by, 

 

Tom Flaherty, Chairperson  



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 1

Parks & Rec Meeting:

Community Preservation Committee

August 23, 2018 



Objective of the Meeting is to for the CPC to vote to approve 
the Pipestave Hill Active Recreation Area Expansion 

to include  the Dunn Property

1. Background on Why West Newbury needs more Active Recreational Space?  

2.  Prioritization of Active Recreational Activities for Phase 1 and Future 
Development

3.  Conceptual Master Plan – Overview, Scope of Services, and Budget

4. Project  Milestones and Time Line  for Meetings and Approvals

5. Public Benefits

6. Community Preservation  Committee Funding Request

Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 2



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 3

Background:
Expanding Pipestave Hill Active Recreation 

Hill to include the Dunn Property :

VISION:  Provide the West Newbury Community with a  Premier All-
In-One Active Recreational Environment  

Dunn Property 75 acres,  Purchased November, 2000 for $1.75M 

Payments Annually:  $100,000 with the last payment $95,000 in 2020



2010 Parks & Rec Survey
Survey Objective:  West Newbury Residents input on recreational needs and desires.  

Percentage of  Residents Responding to Survey Sent Out:  approximately 30% to 40%

Results:

Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 4

Recreational Components Status

Outdoor Basketball Court Funds Approved and Built next to Action Cove

All-Purpose Athletic Field
Preferably Artificial Turf

Retreat Dog Park

Walking/Fitness Trails

Senior Center:  Indoor Swimming Pool

Tennis Court

More and Better Boating 
Access/Facilities

Review the Active 
Recreational Areas for 

these Recreational 
Components



Parks & Rec Participation 

August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 5

NUMBER OF PARTICIPANTS Number of Days

per Week

(est)

Avg. Number of 
Hours per Week

(est)

Number of Weeks

(est)

SPORT Fall-2013 and

Spring-2013

Fall-2016 and 
Spring-2017

West Newbury Youth 
League: (Grades 1- 6) 

Flag Football (Pipe 
Stave)

No Program 140 4 8 10-12

Little League Baseball 
(Bachelor Street)

125 150 7 21-24 17

Lacrosse (Pipe Stave) 120 250 4 6.5 10-12

Rugby (Pipe Stave) 70 50 4 6.5 10-12

Soccer (Pipe Stave 
and Bachelor)

250 300 Fall: PS: 4; BA:3

Spring:  PS 2

PS: 24: BA: 15

PS 12

10-12

10-12
Softball (Page 

School)
40 40 4 8 10-12

Pentucket Middle 
School 

(Grades 7-8)
Babe Ruth Baseball

(Pipe Stave)

80 60 6 15-18 17

Rugby (Pipe Stave) 55 40 4 6.5 10-12

Pentucket High School  

(Pipe Stave)

Freshman Baseball Data not collected 15 5-6 15-18 10-12

Cross Country Data not collected 90

Lacrosse Data not collected 90 6 18 10-12

Rugby Data not collected 65 4 6.5 10-12

Soccer Data not collected 110 5 25 to 30 10-12

General:
• Bachelor Street has 3 Baseball Fields and they 

are used for Elementary School Soccer as well
• Pipe Stave has 3 Fields and a Baseball Field. 

The Baseball Outfield is used for sporting 
activities as well

• Page School has 2 Softball Fields
------
• For  the past 4 to 5 years, Grades 1-6, 

Number of Participants in different sports has 
increased from 605 to 930 (approx. 50% 
increase w/ Flag Football and 30% without)

• Pentucket High School is using the Fields in 
the Fall and Spring 5 to 6 days/20-24 
hours/per week. The New High School could 
alleviate some of the field usage (this is an 
unknown variable).  

• Retreat Dog Park is great place for dogs to run 
around, exercise, and socialize. 2016/17
583 Dog Licenses

• Fitness/Walking  Trail would be user friendly 
for a variety of different ages and abilities … 
possibility Garden Club participation to 
showcase native  plantings

• Tennis Court 
• Senior Center might include inside swimming 

pool, exercise area

Pipestave  Sports  Activity Estimated Total  Hours:  Fall 600 to 700  and Spring 850 to 950

Bachelor Street and Pipestave Sports Activities



Potential Active Recreation Areas 

August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 6

Parking All Purpose 
Athletic Field

Retreat 
Dog Park

Walking-
Fitness 
Trail

Tennis 
Court/Padd
le Ball

Sr. Center

Dunn 
Property

Mill Pond 
Lower Field

Action Cove

Brake 
Hill

Mullen 
Property



August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 7

Copyright © 2013 This map published by:

WEST NEWBURY  

OPEN SPACECOMMITTEE

Visit: www.westnewburyopenspace.net

Dunn Field

North Field

South  
Field

Riverbend  
Trail

MillPond

+ Archelaus Hill  
Summit Elev 248 ft

Back Field

Middle  
Field

Pipestave  
Athletic  
Fields

Baseball
MillPond  
CabinDock

POOR  
HOUSE  
LANE

Ocean  
Meadow  

Trail

Page School
Rt 113COFFIN  

STREET

ARCHELAUS HILLRD

P

Pipestave  
Entrance

Recycling  
Facility

MillPond  
Entrance

0 1/41/8

P
Lower  
Field P

DPW

Riding  
Rings

MILL POND
& Pipestave Hill
Recreation Area

West Newbury, Massachusetts

P

Marked Trails

Distance in Miles

Unmarked Trails

Mill Pond Lower Field – Retreat Dog Park:

1.   January 10, 2018 Mill Pond Committee voted 5-2 “be 
open to seeing a formal proposal for a Dog Park for the 
area adjacent to the lower field and Rt. 113/Main Street”  

2. February 8, 2018 Essex County Greenbelt  Association 
Denied the Request for a formal proposal for a Dog Park 
(Manage Conservation Restriction Agreement) paragraph
A.9 on page3 prohibits “Active recreation activities (defined 
by the need for fixed facilities), including the creation and 
maintenance of playgrounds, soccer fields, ball parks, 
football fields, or active recreation facilities of any kind.”. It 
is our conclusion that a dog park retreat as described in 
your report falls within the definition of activities 
prohibited by this language.



Pipestave Active Recreation:
Baseball Field and Four Fields Utilization

Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 8

West Newbury MIMAP March 21, 2018

The Town of West Newbury and Merrimack Valley Planning Commission  
do not make any warranty, expressed or implied, nor assume any legal  
liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of  
the Geographic Information System (GIS) Data or any other data provided  
herein. The GIS data is illustrative only and should not be considered for  
any other purpose. The data does not take the place of a professional  
survey and has no legal bearing on the true shape, size, location, or  
existence of a geographic feature, property line, or political representation.  
Merrimack Valley Planning Commission and the Town of West Newbury  
make no warranties or representations as to the accuracy of said  
information. Concerns about zoning and wetland issues must be  
addressed to the appropriate Town department. Any use of this  
information is at the recipient's own risk.

Building
MVPC Boundary
West Newbury Boundary  
Parcels
HydrographicFeatures  
Streams

Wetlands

1" = 379 ft

1

2

3

4

Utilization Hours Fall, 2017 Spring, 2018

Weekday  3:00pm-5:30pm 100% 75%

Weekday 5:30pm-8:00pm 100% 100%

Saturday 8:00am-5:00pm 44% 100%

Sunday 8:00am-5:00pm 67% 89%

Overall 
Utilization

81% 82%

Notes 3 of the 4   
Fields Active

4 Fields Active

2017: Overall Pipestave Field Utilization is > 80%  … Weekday Utilization is 100%
2018/2019:  Fall Utilization will increase due to the expansion of Flag Football to 

include 7th Graders in 2018 and 8th Graders in 2019



Scale

To Pipestave Parking Lot

Pipestave  
Athletic  
Fields

DUNNFIELD
BASE MAP WITH EXISTING TRAILS  
DATE: MARCH 1, 2018

NORTH FIELD

SOUTH FIELD

MAIN FIELD

N

S

W E

North Field
1.13 acres

August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 9

South Field

3.3 Acres

Main Field
18-20 Acres



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 10

Conceptual Master Plan Overview  



Scale

To Pipestave Parking Lot

Pipestave  
Athletic  
Fields

DUNNFIELD
BASE MAP WITH EXISTING TRAILS  
DATE: MARCH 1, 2018

NORTH FIELD

SOUTH FIELD

MAIN FIELD

N

S

W E

North Field
1.13 acres

August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 11

South Field

3.3 Acres

Main Field
18-20 Acres



Potential Natural Land Constraints

1. Wetland Delineation

2. Municipal Area Defined from Pipestave/Mill Pond 
Conservation Restriction Agreement

3.    Test Wells near South Field

August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 12



April 2, 2018:  Walked with Jay Smith – ConCom Agent. 

As long as we stay within the bounds for the North Field, 
Main Field, and South Field we should okay from a wetlands 
perspective.

Jay:  Once the Design Concept is done I can go out and measure 
to the wetland edge to be put on the plan and then see if you 
will need to file with us.

August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 13



The dirt road is Municipal Use Area.

Anything associated with the “Municipal 
Area” is outside the jurisdiction of Greenbelt 
and the CR, and “unpaved associated 
roadways” are permitted in connection with 
the fields

August 23, 2018 Parks & Recreation 14



Dunn Property Test Wells
South of South Field

Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 15



Possible Active Recreation 
Dunn Property Locations  

Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 16

North 
Field

Upper Main 
Field

Lower Main 
Field

South Field Trail

Entrance/Parking/
Roads

No Yes Yes No No

Grass Multi-Use 
Athletic Field

No Yes Yes No No

Artificial Turf Multi-
Use Athletic Field

No Yes Yes No No

Retreat Dog Park Yes No No Yes No

Fitness Loop No No No No Yes

Tennis Court Yes No No Yes No

Concession Stand  No Yes No No No

Restroom Facility No Yes No No No

Possible Locations for Active Recreations Activities and Infrastructure



Possible Active Recreation 
Dunn Property Locations  

Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 17

Scope of Services
or  Future Consideration

Potential
Source  of Funding 

Entrance/Parking/Roads1 Part of Conceptual Master Plan Design CPA

Grass Athletic Field 2 Part of Conceptual Master Plan Design  CPA

Multi-Use Athletic Field2 Part of Conceptual Master Plan  Design Town or Grants

Retreat Dog Park Part of Conceptual Master Plan Design from a Marked Out 
Area only.   Internal Design of the Dog Park is not included

CPA and Grants

Fitness Loop Not in Engineering Study.   Fitness Loop to be considered as 
part of the Active Recreation Area

CPA

2 Tennis Courts  Part of Conceptual Master Plan  Design CPA

Concession Stand Part of Conceptual Master Plan  Design CPA

Restroom Facilities Part of Conceptual Master Plan  Design CPA

Sr. Center- Community Center Not in Conceptual Master Plan or part of initial Active 
Recreation Area Design.  

It may be considered for Future Development.

CPA

Conceptual Master  Plan Design: 
Active Recreation Activities  

Notes:
1.  Decision on Expansion of the Parking at Pipe Stave/Dunn Property Upper Main Field  should be completed before the Engineering Study  starts.  This decision will feed 

into the design concepts of the Engineering Study.
2.   Conceptual Master Plan should include two Athletic Fields.  Both Fields could be Grass or one Field could be Grass and the other field could be Turf.



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 18

Scope of  Service Key Components

1. Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area

2. Conceptual Master Plan 

3. Traffic Impact Assessment Study 

4. Meetings



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 19

Project Milestones and Time Line
Month/2018 Activity Action

End of July Discuss Conceptual Master Plan with Engineering Firm Engineering Firm to Provide Feedback on Cost 
for  Conceptual Master Plan by mid-August

August 17 Meet with Town Manager Review Engineering Study  Quote

August 23 Meet with CPC for Approval for Project Eligibility and Project Funds for the 
development of the Conceptual Master Plan – Scope of Service and Quote

If approved, move forward. If not meet with 
Town Manager and BOS to discuss

September If   Project Eligibility and Project Funds Approved to move forward by the CPC Warrant article to be written and meetings 
with BOS and Finance committees for 
discussion

October  22 Town Meeting Approval of Warrant Article to move forward 
with a Conceptual Master Plan – Scope of 
Service and Quote

November  Before the  Scope of Service for Master Plan Commences, the  decision on 
the Expansion of the Parking at Pipe Stave/Dunn Property Upper Main Field  
should be completed This decision may be input into the design concepts for 
the Dunn  Property

P&R to send out mailers to West Newbury Residents and all abutters have to 
be served written notice of the public meetings and agenda regarding the 
Public Hearings/Workshop (Hampden, Maine Example) for the different 
Design Concepts

Public Hearings/Workshop to review the 
different Dunn Property Expansion Active 
Recreation Expansion  Design Concepts

Date to be 
Determined

Conceptual Master Plan Scope of  Service Complete One Active Recreation Expansion Option is 
provided to BOS to go to the Spring/Fall 2019 
Town Meeting

Fall, 2019 Town to Vote on the Expansion of the Pipestave Hill Active Recreation Area 
to include the Dunn Property

July 2019 or 
November, 
2019

PARC Grant to be submitted Open Space and Rec Plan needs to be updated 
and Status Active by Spring, 2018

Jan, 2020 Dog Park Grant to be submitted Note:  Open Item on Turf Field and other 
Grant Dates



Meetings Overview and Key Project Milestones  

Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 20

1. Cammett Engineering Staff Personnel shall attend the following meetings with the Park and Recreation Committee 

• P&R Committee meetings with Cammett Engineering are open to the public
• A visionary meeting (1) to discuss field dimensions, building uses/dimensions; parking needs etc. after completion of 

Wetlands Section
• A meeting with Parks and Recreation to discuss conceptual plan and options at 50% complete
• A meeting (1) to present initial Conceptual Master Plan and obtain public comment regarding additions, options, and 

changes to the plan
• A final presentation meeting of the accepted Conceptual Master Plan.
• A meeting with the Mass Heritage at 25% complete of the Conceptual Master Plan.  Mass Heritage are the protectors 

and managers of endangered species and their habitat.  Depending on the species and we won’t know that species 

until Cammett Engineering speaks with the Mass Heritage] constraints on the development plan could be imposed on 

the extent of alternative redesign locations; mitigation and monitoring plans, looking at alternative sites with less 

impacts.  

2. All of The P&R committee meetings  are open to the public, the agenda of the meetings will be posted, and the 

municipal departments will be invited to attend.  P&R will keep the Town Manager and different committees appraised 

of the status of the Conceptual Master Plan, Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area, and Traffic Impact 

Assessment Study at different times of the process. The committees and departments to be informed would be the 

Board of Selectmen, Department of Public Works, Board of Health, Conservation Commission, Open Space Committee, 

Planning Board, and other committees or departments as necessary.

The key percentage completion milestones are  

1)     25% completion is the schematic initial design sketch for Natural Heritage Endangered Species Program (NHESP) to 

assess issues with endangered species and whether alternative location will need to be studied, and 

2)   50% completion is the status that field locations and other sundry uses can be changed, added to, revised, etc for 

preparation of the final concept.   



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 21

Public Benefits

Provide the West Newbury and Pentucket youths with another multi-use grass or turf field to 
expand sports activities and to alleviate the usage stress on the Pipestave Hill fields.  For the past 4 to 
5 years the number of participants in the different sports has increased from 605 to 930 
(approximately 50%  of the increase due to Flag Football).  At this time, the Middle School/High School 
building proposal is not going to alleviate the field usage at Pipestave Hill.

Provide the West Newbury residents with two Tennis Courts which there are no tennis courts today. 
The Tennis Courts are Middle School are excellent; however, they unavailable to most members of the 
community until school is over. Tennis courts are very low maintenance, long lasting and provide 
community use for all ages.

Provide the West Newbury residents with a Dog Park for those residents who prefer not to walk 

their dog and   would rather have them run around in an enclosed environment with other dogs. Dog 
parks are their own community. It provides another place for bringing people together.  From what we 
can tell, 1) Dog Parks are regulated at local level and not state level. In 2016 and 2017, there are 583 
Dog Licenses.

Provide the West Newbury residents with Fitness/Walking Trail would be user friendly for a variety 
of different ages and abilities as well as the possibility of the Garden Club participation to showcase 
native plantings. There would be multiple stations along the trail, each focused on a particular muscle 
group for strength or flexibility. Usually there are 6-12 stations. There are pre-made stations and 
stations volunteers could build/assemble. Not all stations need anything installed (for example, push-
ups or jumping jacks, etc.). There should be signage to explain the station. The signage could be a 
good volunteer project for the Scouts or some other group. 



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 22

Section Scope of Service

1.0 Wetlands and Endangered Species Habitat Area $                                                      5,250.00 

2.0 Conceptual Master Plan $                                                    32,750.00 

3.0 Traffic Impact Assessment Study $                                                      7,500.00 

4.0 Meetings $                                                      3,500.00

5.0 Reimbursable Expense/Direct Costs $                                                      1,500.00 

P&R

Request

Printing and Bulk Mailing costs of a town-wide 

mailing to $                                                    1,000.00

Total $                                                    51,500.0 

Parks & Recreation is asking for approval of  Community Preservation Funding for $51,500.00
to cover the Scope of  Service for the Conceptual Master Plan  to expand the Pipestave Hill 
Active Recreation Area to include the Dunn Property



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 23

P&R has gathered information including correspondence or meetings with the following groups  

• Board of Selectmen Meetings (November 2017, June 2018, and July 2018)
• Mill Pond Committee Meeting (Lower Mill Pond, January 2018), 
• Essex County Greenbelt Association (Lower Mill Pond), 
• Open Space Committee Meeting, January 2018 
• Board of Health Correspondence (Action Cove), 
• ConCom Committee Meeting, March 2018 and Jay Smith walked Dunn Property April 2018,  
• Water Department Correspondence (Mike Gootee), 
• Highway Department Meetings in March and June 2018 (Gary Bill), 
• High School Correspondence (Dan Thornton),
• Pentucket Youth Sports Leagues Correspondence, 
• West Newbury Riding and Drive Club Meeting May 2018, 
• West Newbury Officials:  Mike McCarron and Joe Anderson, and 
• Following residents:  Tom Flaherty, John McGrath, Frank Sisto, Steve Greason, Pat Higgins, Jack 

Foley, Lisa Maduzia, Bill Roche, Allison Schneider, and Jack Duggan. 



Parks & Recreation August 23, 2018 24

Thank  You!



 

1 

INTRODUCTION 
 

At the board of selectmen’s request, the Division of Local Services Technical Assistance Bureau 

(TAB) created a set of financial policies for the Town of West Newbury. This project was a result of 

the Community Compact Cabinet (CCC) initiative (www.mass.gov/ccc), whose goal is to encourage 

best practices that promote efficiency, accountability, and transparency in municipal government. 

The adoption of formal financial policies provides instructive guidance and promotes consistency as 

local officials plan, direct, monitor, and protect municipal assets and resources. To fulfill another 

CCC request, TAB will provide the select board with a five-year financial forecast as a separate 

report. 

 

All the policies presented here should be periodically reassessed and modified as conditions 

change. Incorporated in them are specific provisions local leaders need to consider and decide 

upon. An example taken from the reserves policy is: “The Town shall set a goal of maintaining its 

year-end unappropriated free cash balance in the range of [three to five] percent of the annual 

general fund budget.” In each case, the draft policy has brackets around the decision point with the 

word(s) in the bracket representing TAB’s suggestion based on researched best practices. In these 

cases, local officials should finalize the decisions and remove the brackets prior to adopting the 

policies. Some policies also reference currently contracted service providers (namely, SoftRight and 

Harpers Payroll), and the town should modify those policies whenever the contractors change. 

 

Please note that there are three policies that will require specific town meeting actions before they 

can be adopted as presented here. 

 

OPEB: In April 2010, West Newbury town meeting accepted M.G.L. c. 32B, § 20 to create a trust 

fund for other postemployment benefits (OPEB). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

(GASB) subsequently issued Statement 75, which required that an OPEB trust fund comply with the 

following criteria: 1) the fund’s contributions and earnings are irrevocably committed to OPEB use; 

2) the OPEB plan’s assets are dedicated exclusively to providing benefits to plan members; and 3) 

the OPEB plan’s assets are legally protected against creditors. In light of Statement 75, the 

Massachusetts legislature modified M.G.L. c. 32B, § 20 to meet the new guidelines. Consequently, 

we advise the board of selectmen to present town meeting voters with articles that propose the 

following:  

 

1. Reaccept M.G.L. c. 32B, § 20 to establish a GASB-compliant OPEB trust fund. 

2. Authorize the prudent investor rule as detailed in M.G.L. c. 203C to make available the 

options required to meet the investment goals of the OPEB trust. 

http://www.mass.gov/ccc
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIV/Chapter32B/Section20
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleII/Chapter203C
ajennings
Text Box
H-7 through 11



 

2 

3. Designate the treasurer/collector as fund trustee or establish a separate board of trustees. 

By statute, such a board must have between five and 13 members and minimally include a 

person with investment experience, citizen at-large, employee, retiree, and local official. 

 

Tailings: The tailings policy includes expedited procedures for managing uncashed checks as allowed 

under M.G.L. c. 200A, § 9A. Accordingly, it can only be adopted after town meeting’s acceptance of 

this statute.  

 

Tax Enforcement: To adopt the tax title payment agreement section of the tax enforcement policy, 

town meeting must approve a related bylaw, per M.G.L. c. 60, § 62A. The following text may serve 

as a template:   

Chapter X, Section X: Payment Agreements for Properties in Tax Title 

 

Section X (a) Pursuant to the provisions of M.G.L. c. 60, sec. 62A, the 

Treasurer/Collector will pursue and establish a written payment agreement 

with any person(s) entitled to redeem ownership of parcels taken by the 

Town for nonpayment of real estate taxes ("redeemer"). 

Section X (b) Tax title categories eligible for payment agreements include [specify 

criteria here, based on: amount owed, assessed property value, length of 

delinquency, and/or any other criteria]. 

Section X (c) At the start of the agreement, the redeemer shall pay 25 percent of the total 

amount due. 

Section X (d) The agreement’s maximum term shall be five years. 

Section X (e) Full compliance with agreement terms will result in a waiver of [local 

decision: choose a percent up to 50 percent] of the tax title account’s 

accrued interest.  

 

Additionally, the capital planning, financial reserves, and forecasting policies include references to a 

capital stabilization fund, although the town currently has no such fund. As a best practice, we 

recommend communities establish a capital stabilization fund to provide an available source for 

financing future capital needs, supporting capital spending in years with large capital requests or 

low free cash, and funding future debt service payments. Possible annual funding sources include 

free cash, amounts equal to debt being retired (as a means to maintain debt service levels), and 

other one-time revenues. 

 

One final note concerns terminology related to the town’s water enterprise fund. The attached 

policies uses the term “retained earnings” to refer to the surplus allowed to be retained in the 

enterprise fund under M.G.L. c. 44, § 53. In contrast, “free cash” refers exclusively to the general 

fund’s surplus. 

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartII/TitleII/Chapter200A/Section9A
https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleIX/Chapter60/Section62A


ajennings
Text Box
H-12



TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
APPLICATION FOR PROJECT ELIGIBILITY  
COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 

    
Applicants should file eight (8) copies of the completed Application and all accompanying documents with 
the Community Preservation Committee, Town Office Building, West Newbury MA 01985, and an 
electronic copy to cpc@wnewbury.org.   
 

PROJECT NAME:  Rehabilitation to Improve Parking and Circulation  

PROJECT ADDRESS: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area/Dunn Property 

MAP/LOT:   R22-3 (Mill Pond/Pipestave) and R26-19 (Dunn property) 

APPLICANT NAME:  Board of Selectmen, upon recommendation of Pipestave Parking,  

    Circulation and Land Use Advisory Committee (“Pipestave Committee”) 

CONTACT PERSON:  Angus Jennings, Town Manager and Pipestave Committee Chair 

TELEPHONE/FAX NO.: (978) 363-1100 x111 / FAX (978) 363-1826 

ADDRESS:   Town Office Building, 381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 

EMAIL:   townmanager@wnewbury.org  

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION CATEGORY: 
(Please check all that apply) 

 Open Space 
 Recreation 
 Historic Preservation 
o Eligible/On State Registry 
o Designated by Historic Commission 
 Community Housing 

 
Please provide a brief project description below.  Include a brief narrative of how your project 
accomplishes the goals of the CPA and include an estimated budget.  Please include supporting materials 
as necessary. 

 

The Board of Selectmen proposes to add parking capacity on the western portion of the Dunn 
parcel in order to address capacity and safety concerns on the Pipestave property that can result 
during concurrent use of the recreational fields, equestrian facilities, and general recreation.  

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
ajennings
Text Box
H-13



In July the Board established a new advisory Committee in order to look closely at the current 
challenges, potential future challenges resulting from increased usage of the property, and to make 
recommendations to the Board regarding how best to proceed. 

The Pipestave Parking, Circulation and Land Use Advisory Committee (“Pipestave Committee”) 
met twice in August in order to review known options, brainstorm potential other options, and bring 
forward its recommendations. On August 20, the Committee voted 3-0-1 to recommend Concept 2 
as detailed herein, and later that evening the Board of Selectmen voted 2-0 to sponsor a proposal to 
CPC to implement the favored concept. 

Concept 2 includes, in summary: 

− Addition of a new unpaved parking area in the northwesterly portion of the Dunn property, 
immediately adjacent to the Pipestave property. The vegetated area between the two 
properties would be thinned out adjacent to the new parking area, while preserving the 
existing stone wall and mature vegetation. The new parking area would be landscaped with 
a post and rail fence. 

− The existing sloped drive from Pipestave to Dunn would remain unpaved, but would be 
widened to accommodate two-way traffic and reinforced with gravel to minimize erosion. 

− New fencing would be added outside the baseball outfield in order to provide a clear 
delineation between the ballfield and the traveled way, and to enhance safety. 

 

Although this proposal is submitted independently from the Parks & Recreation proposal for the 
Dunn property currently pending before CPC, it is submitted with the intent that the design of both 
projects would proceed in close coordination. Specifically, the design of the proposed parking area 
would accommodate potential fitness station and benches, if these end up resulting from the Parks 
& Rec design process. The parking area would also be designed to allow for potential future 
connection to the eastern portion of the Dunn property, if such connection results from the Parks & 
Rec design process or otherwise. 

This project would accomplish the goals of the CPA in several respects: 

− The West Newbury Community Preservation Plan (“CPA Plan”), December 2013, 
designates the Pipestave Hill Recreation Area as the “equestrian center” of Town fields, 
which also hosts regulation sized soccer field and baseball diamond, and three additional 
athletic fields. 

− The first Open Space and Recreation Goal in the CPA Plan is to “Preserve rural character, 
charm, and sense of community.” This proposal is intended to mitigate current and 
anticipated parking and circulation concerns without compromising the current uses of the 
property. In its consideration of potential strategies, the Pipestave Committee considered 
four conceptual alternatives, including alternatives that had already been known, and others 
that were first considered as part of the Committee’s work. Two of the four were quickly 
discarded as being infeasible (repurposing the Piepstave recycling area would be infeasible 
due to sub-surface soil conditions, grading, drainage infrastructure, and adjacent wetlands; 
and the suggestion to direct parking across the street to the Page School was viewed as 
unrealistic given the long walk to the recreation fields, and potential safety concerns 





TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
APPLICATION FOR PROJECT FUNDING  

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION COMMITTEE 

                     
Applicants should file eight (8) copies of the completed Application and all accompanying documents with 
the Community Preservation Committee, Town Office Building, West Newbury MA 01985, and an 
electronic copy to cpc@wnewbury.org.    
 

PROJECT NAME: Rehabilitation to Improve Parking and Circulation  

PROJECT ADDRESS: Pipestave Hill Active Recreational Area/Dunn Property 

MAP/LOT:   R22-3 (Mill Pond/Pipestave) and R26-19 (Dunn property) 

APPLICANT NAME: Board of Selectmen, upon recommendation of Pipestave Parking,  

    Circulation and Land Use Advisory Committee (“Pipestave Committee”) 

CONTACT PERSON: Angus Jennings, Town Manager and Pipestave Committee Chair 

TELEPHONE/FAX NO.: (978) 363-1100 x111 / FAX (978) 363-1826 

ADDRESS:   Town Office Building, 381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA  

EMAIL:   townmanager@wnewbury.org  

COMMUNITY PRESERVATION CATEGORY: 
(Please check all that apply) 

 Open Space 
 Historic Preservation 
o Eligible/On State Registry 
o Designated by Historic Commission 
 Community Housing 
 Recreation 

 
The Committee may require, as a condition for funding, that the applicant grant to the Town or other 
authorized grantee certain restrictions, including:  preservation restrictions on rehabilitated or acquired 
historic resources, conservation restrictions on preserved or acquired lands, and deed restrictions on 
affordable housing projects. If applicable, the restriction shall be recorded at the Southern Essex District 
Registry of Deeds.  
 
REQUIRED NARRATIVE:  PLEASE PROVIDE A NARRATIVE ON A SEPARATE SHEET 
WHICH ADDRESSES THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS 
 

mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org
mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org




For questions contact:  cpc@wnewbury.org, 978-363-1100 X131.    
 
Date Received:  ________________  Meeting Date(s): ________________  Amount Approved: __________ 
Town Meeting Date/Article #: ______________  Vote of Town Meeting:           _______________   Revised August 2015 
 

mailto:cpc@wnewbury.org


Pipestave Hill Recreational Parking & Circulation Improvements  CPC Application Narrative
   

1 

PROJECT SUMMARY:  Provide a description of the Project, including the property involved and its 
proposed use.   

The Board of Selectmen proposes to add parking capacity on the western portion of the Dunn 
parcel in order to address capacity and safety concerns on the Pipestave property that can result 
during concurrent use of the recreational fields, equestrian facilities, and general recreation.  

In July the Board established a new advisory Committee in order to look closely at the current 
challenges, potential future challenges resulting from increased usage of the property, and to 
make recommendations to the Board regarding how best to proceed. 

The Pipestave Parking, Circulation and Land Use Advisory Committee (“Pipestave Committee”) 
met twice in August in order to review known options, brainstorm potential other options, and 
bring forward its recommendations. On August 20, the Committee voted 3-0-1 to recommend 
Concept 2 as detailed herein, and later that evening the Board of Selectmen voted 2-0 to 
sponsor a proposal to CPC to implement the favored concept. 

Concept 2 includes, in summary: 

− Addition of a new unpaved parking area in the northwesterly portion of the Dunn 
property, immediately adjacent to the Pipestave property. The vegetated area between 
the two properties would be thinned out adjacent to the new parking area, while 
preserving the existing stone wall and mature vegetation. The new parking area would 
be landscaped with a post and rail fence. 

− The existing sloped drive from Pipestave to Dunn would remain unpaved, but would be 
widened to accommodate two-way traffic and reinforced with gravel to minimize 
erosion. 

− New fencing would be added outside the baseball outfield in order to provide a clear 
delineation between the ballfield and the traveled way, and to enhance safety. 

Although this proposal is submitted independently from the Parks & Recreation proposal for the 
Dunn property currently pending before CPC, it is submitted with the intent that the design of 
both projects would proceed in close coordination. Specifically, the design of the proposed 
parking area would accommodate potential fitness station and benches, if these end up 
resulting from the Parks & Rec design process. The parking area would also be designed to allow 
for potential future connection to the eastern portion of the Dunn property, if such connection 
results from the Parks & Rec design process or otherwise. 

 

PUBLIC BENEFIT:   Describe in detail the benefits West Newbury will receive from the Project and how 
the Project fulfills the Community Preservation Committee’s Project Evaluation Criteria.  

The concerns about parking capacity, circulation and safety at the Pipestave property have been 
known for about three or four years, and additional use of the property suggests that these 
concerns will only worsen in the absence of improvements. Additional parking capacity is 
needed. This proposal seeks to address these concerns in a manner that not only mitigates 
current concerns, but adds enough parking capacity to account for additional use in the future. 



Pipestave Hill Recreational Parking & Circulation Improvements  CPC Application Narrative
   

2 

Further, the proposed rehabilitation and improvements will ensure compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) and the Massachusetts Architectural Access Board 
(“AAB”).  

The proposal is also sensitive to the requirements and standards of the Mill Pond / Pipestave 
Conservation Restriction (“CR”), and to the greatest extent feasible will keep the improvements 
within the dedicated Municipal Use Area that is not subject to the CR. During this planning 
process, the Pipestave Committee maintained regular correspondence with the Director of Land 
Stewardship at Essex County Greenbelt (“Greenbelt”) – the Grantee of the CR – and is confident 
that, to the extent Greenbelt approvals may be required for some portion of the work on 
Pipestave, these can be secured. 

 

CONTROL OF SITE:  Indicate whether the applicant owns or has a purchase agreement for the Project 
site.  If the property is under agreement, include a description of the agreement and the timing and 
conditions.  If the applicant does not have site control, explain. 

The Board of Selectmen owns both properties. Greenbelt holds a CR on the majority of the Mill 
Pond / Pipestave property, and its approval may be required for some portion of the work 
(which may include the improvements to the access drive from Pipestave to Dunn, the addition 
of outfield fencing, and limited vegetation removal along the Pipestave / Dunn boundary). 
Greenbelt approval will not be required for work on the Dunn property. 

 

FEASIBILITY:  List all steps that may be required for completion of the Project, such as environmental 
assessment, zoning or other approvals, agreement on terms of any required conservation, affordability 
or historic preservation restrictions, and any other known issues. For projects that may impact abutters 
or the neighborhood, describe methods used to notify abutters of the proposal, and support or 
objections from those affected. 

Site Plan Approval from the Planning Board will be required. The Town Planner has scheduled a 
pre-application conference with the Board for September 4th in order to receive their guidance 
regarding what level of engineered plans will be required for this process. The Planner has 
advised that the Board has the authorization to waive certain submission requirements upon 
request of the applicant, and that the Board has done so for municipal projects on occasion in 
the past. This proposal carries an engineering and permitting cost estimate of 15% of estimated 
construction costs, which is expected to be adequate to prepare the necessary plan sets to 
illustrate grading, parking space dimensions, ADA and AAB compliance, width of traveled ways, 
parking lot materials, extent of clearing, stormwater management and erosion control, and 
traffic circulation and parking. 

In addition to Site Plan Approval, some work on the Pipestave property may require additional 
approval from Greenbelt. The Town is working with Greenbelt to prepare a definitive GIS 
shapefile delineation of the Municipal Use Area (which is not subject to the CR) in order to assist 
in the ongoing planning process. A site visit will be held in September, to include Greenbelt, 
Merrimack Valley Planning Commission (the Town’s GIS resource), and local representatives. 



Pipestave Hill Recreational Parking & Circulation Improvements  CPC Application Narrative
   

3 

SUPPORT:  Have the appropriate Town Boards and Commissions expressed support and/or approved 
the project?  What is the nature and level of community support for this project? 

The Board of Selectmen created the Pipestave Committee in order to designate a lead entity to 
advance consideration of the known challenges. The Committee is comprised of representation 
from the Parks & Rec Committee, the West Newbury Riding & Driving Club, the DPW, the Town 
Manager, and the Board of Selectmen. Upon recommendation of the Pipestave Committee, the 
Committee composition was later broadened to include a representative of the Mill Pond 
Committee, although throughout its work the Pipestave Committee corresponded and shared 
information with the Mill Pond Committee Chair so as to keep them apprised of the work. 

Through their respective representatives on the Pipestave Committee, the following entities 
have expressed their interest in seeing a resolution to the existing parking challenges: 

− Board of Selectmen  
− Parks & Rec Committee 
− West Newbury Riding & Driving Club 

If this proposal is brought forward to Fall Town Meeting, a mailing would be sent to property 
abutters, and made broadly available to the public, to explain the proposal and its purposes. 
Because the proposal is internal to the site, and is intended to address known and projected 
parking and safety concerns associated with current uses on the site, it is not anticipated to 
generate abutter opposition. However, the goal will be to inform the public of this initiative, 
with a focus on property abutters, well ahead of the formal abutter notification process that 
would take place as part of Site Plan Review. 

 

PROJECT TIMELINE:  Describe the anticipated steps or phases for completion of the Project. 
Demonstrate whether the Project will be ready to proceed in the coming fiscal year.  Will this be a multi-
year project? 

If the project is recommended for inclusion on the Fall Town Meeting warrant, a mailing would 
be sent to project abutters, and made broadly available to the public, to explain the proposal 
and its purposes. A sample mailer the Town Manager prepared in a prior job is attached. 

If the project secures funding at the Fall Town Meeting, an engineering firm would be engaged 
in order to advance the conceptual plan to a level of design suitable for refining preliminary cost 
estimates and taking the project through project permitting. Greenbelt would be engaged in this 
process so as to minimize if not avoid altogether any impact within the non-Municipal Use Area 
of the Mill Pond / Pipestave CR. 

The goal would be to complete project engineering in time to begin the Site Plan Review process 
toward the end of 2018 or early 2019. Upon Site Plan Approval, the project materials and 
equipment would be procured, so as to allow for the project to break ground in the spring of 
2019. The project scope and cost estimates are based on the expectation that the Town, 
through its DPW department, will serve as general contractor, and will sub-contract out 
different aspects of site work and construction. 

It is anticipated that the project would be complete by early to mid-summer 2019. 



Existing conditions – Pipestave (upper/equestrian area)



Retain, but thin out, tree 
line; preserve/enhance 

stone wall. New hard pack 
parking lot with 

landscaped east edge (split 
rail fence), and possible 

sitting area(s).

Reinforce sloped drive with 
gravel to minimize erosion 
and address vehicular and 

pedestrian access 

Concept 2: Upper Dunn Field Addition of 
outfield fence 

along drive 
(or path)



    
 
   TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

      DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
      381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA  01985  
      Phone: (978) 363-1100 Ext.120 
      Fax:  (978) 363-1119  
       gbill@wnewbury.org  
 
 
 
 
     
  

NEW PIPESTAVE HILL PARKING ON DUNN PROPERTY  
PRELIMINARY ESTIMATE1 

 
 
 
 

Tree & Brush Clearing      $ 4,200.00 
 
Machine Time Constructing Access Road and Parking Lot  $20,200.00 
 
Fencing for Parking Lot and Along Road    $12,000.00 
 
Dense Grade Gravel, Fill for Road and Parking Area  $43,500.00 
 
Signage        $     800.00 
 
Modifications to Existing Parking Area    $ 3,000.00 
 
Contingency        $ 8,400.00 
     
 
 
TOTAL         $92,100.00  
 
 
Preliminary engineering, permitting costs (@15%)        $13,900 
 
 

TOTAL, ESTIMATE:    $106,000  
      

                                                 
1 Project cost estimates by DPW Director. Engineering, permitting estimates by Town Manager. Pre-
application process with Planning Board to take place in September to refine engineering needs and costs. 





Panoramic view of Pipestave looking 
easterly toward Dunn. Area of 
proposed improvements to drive, and 
addition of outfield fence.

Proposed CPC Rehabilitation to Improve Parking and Circulation

Photo exhibit



View looking west 
from Pipestave
toward Dunn. Area 
of proposed 
improvements to 
drive, and addition 
of outfield fence.

View on Dunn 
property, looking 
north, with 
vegetated border 
to Pipestave on 
left. 

View on Dunn 
property, looking 
east toward 
vegetated border 
with Pipestave. 
Proposed 
vegetation 
thinning, with 
preservation of 
stone wall and 
mature vegetation. 

View looking 
southwest from 
Pipestave, near 
location of 
proposed 
pedestrian egress 
from new parking 
area, toward lower 
athletic fields.



 
The 2015 Hampden Recreation 

Plan prioritizes the need for land 

for additional playing fields, 

development of additional 

fields, and increased parking at 

the Lura Hoit Pool site.  

This spring, the Town Council 

hired design and engineering 

consultants to evaluate the Lura 

Hoit Pool and Municipal Building 

site to assist in securing required 

Maine DEP permitting for 

additional parking, and to 

determine potential expanded 

uses of the site. 

Public workshops for this phase 

of the project will happen on 

August 22 and September 28, 

2017. More details inside!  

 

 

 

P
R

E
S
O

R
T 

S
TD

 

U
S
 P

O
S
TA

G
E

 

P
A

ID
 

H
A

M
P

D
E
N

, 
M

E
 

P
E
R

M
IT

 N
O

. 
2
0
1

 

 

E
C

R
W

S
S
 

P
O

S
TA

L 
C

U
S
TO

M
E
R

 

H
A

M
P

D
E
N

, 
M

E
 0

4
4
4
4

 

To
w

n
 o

f 
H

a
m

p
d

e
n

 

1
0
6
 W

e
st

e
rn

 A
v

e
n

u
e

 

H
a

m
p

d
e

n
, 
M

E
 0

4
4
4
4

 

 

  

Town of 
Hampden 
Public notice of two 

upcoming workshops 

regarding Lura Hoit Pool and 

Municipal Building site – 

parking and recreational fields 

 

  
 

ajennings
Text Box
Sample Mailer



 

What’s been 
happening? 

The Town Council recognizes the need for 

additional parking to serve the current uses 

on site. Permitting by Maine DEP will be 

needed to add any new parking. 

Following the recommendations in the 

Hampden Recreation Plan, the Council is 

also evaluating whether the site could 

accommodate additional recreational 

uses in the future. 

A design and engineering firm has been 

hired to assist the Town in understanding 

what is possible on the site, and arriving at 

key decisions regarding whether and to 

what extent additional uses may be 

needed (or desired) to accommodate the 

Town’s mid- and long-range goals. And, 

they will assist in understanding the cost 

implications of different use scenarios – 

including both up-front costs and longer-

term operations and maintenance. 
 

  

What questions does  
the Town face? 

The Council unanimously recognizes the 

need for additional parking – but how 

much parking, and how it’s configured, 

needs to be determined. 

The Council is actively debating whether 

additional recreational uses of the site are 

needed, wanted, and/or worth the cost. 

Some Councilors support additional 

recreational uses, others do not. 

Decisions ahead include: 

» Whether current uses will be 

expanded, and/or new uses 

added? 

» If so, what uses (i.e. ballfields, 

access roads/paths, concession 

stand, public restrooms, etc.)? 

» How would any work be phased, 

and over what time period? 

» How would any costs be financed, 

and over what time period? 

Public discussion will also consider how 

planning for this site may affect (cont’d) 

 

 

 

  
…longer-term plans for current public 

facilities such as the Skehan Center 

(currently under lease), the Ballfield Road 

site, and/or the Edythe Dyer Library. 

How do I weigh in? 

Public workshops will take place on: 

» Tuesday, August 22  

» Thursday, September 28 

Both workshops will begin at 6 PM in the 

Public Safety Training Room at the 

Hampden Municipal Building. 

Three site concepts will be presented in 

August, with public discussion of the pros 

and cons of each. Building on this public 

input, the consultants will present a 

revised site concept in September. 

DEP permitting for parking is expected to 

begin this fall. The Town Council will 

determine whether other improvements 

will be proposed, taking into account 

policy objectives, site development 

feasibility, costs, and public participation.  

 

Contact Us 

Town of Hampden 

106 Western Avenue 

Hampden, ME 04444 

207-862-3034 
townmanager@hampdenmaine.gov  

Visit us on the Web: 

hampdenmaine.gov/recreation 

  

Pool site “overflow” parking, Fall 2015 



 

 
TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY  

381 Main Street, West Newbury, MA 01985 
Tel. 978-363-1100, ext. 115         Fax 978-363-1826 

       
  

Memo 

 
To:  Town Manager and Board of Selectmen 

From:  Mary Winglass, Executive Administrator 

Date:   August 28, 2018 

Re: Temporary Assistant 

________________________________________________________________________ 
 
In preparation of the Fall Town Meeting, I am requesting funding of $2,500 to hire Dot 
Cavanaugh to continue the review of the old files.   
 
As you are aware, the Board approved funding ($2,240) earlier this year (February) to 
help organize the files.  Great strides have been made since then and we are at the half 
way point.  With the additional funding will allow Dot to continue working in the files 
that she is familiar with and able to disseminate the contents with ease.  
 
The additional funding of $2,500 will allow Ms. Cavanaugh to work 10-15 hours per 
week to help complete this project.  Let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Thank you, 
Mary 
 

ajennings
Text Box
H-14



Page 1 of 5 Selectmen’s Meeting, August 20, 2018 
 

Town of West Newbury 
Board of Selectmen 

Monday, August 20, 2018 @ 6:30pm   
381 Main Street, Town Office Building 

www.wnewbury.org  
 

Open Session Minutes 
 

Selectman David Archibald called the meeting to order at 6:37pm.  Selectmen in attendance were David W. 
Archibald and Joseph H. Anderson, Jr.  Glenn A. Kemper was not in attendance. 
 
Others in attendance were Town Manager Angus Jennings, Town Counsel Michael McCarron and Executive 
Administrator Mary Winglass and members of the public. 
 
Selectman Anderson moved to go in to Executive Session under MGL Chapter 30A §21(a) 2: To conduct 
strategy sessions in preparation for negotiations with nonunion personnel or to conduct collective 
bargaining sessions or contract negotiations with nonunion personnel; Review of Executive Session 
Minutes dated May 2, 2018, May 14, 2018 and May 23, 2018.  Second by Selectman Archibald with a 
unanimous roll call vote: Anderson – aye, Archibald – aye. 
 
Selectman Archibald called the meeting back to order at 7:06pm and announced the following: 

• This meeting is being broadcast on local cable TV and recorded for rebroadcast on the local cable 
channels and on the internet. 

• DPW Director Gary Bill retiring after 20 years of service to the Town of West Newbury 
 
Selectman Archibald noted the following incoming communications: 

A. DHCD letter approving West Newbury Housing Production Plan 
B. MassDOT Notice of Public Meeting on I-495 Haverhill Bridge Replacement, Wed. Aug 29 at 6:30pm 

 
Letter from Department of Housing and Community Development dated August 1, 2018 and email 
correspondence from Mass DOT dated August 16, 2018 
 
Regular Business 

C. Karen Tyler, Veterans’ Service Officer: State Dept of Veteran Services Ch.115 Report 
 
Ms. Tyler explained a yearly benefit comparison report which showed an increase in benefit services within the 
district.  If anyone is in need of services or to find out what services are available, please contact Karen at the 
Ipswich Town Hall at 978-356-3915. 
 
Chapter 115 Report 
 

D. Board of Health: Proposed funding for increased FY’19 recycling costs  
 
Members of the Board of Health Robert Janes and Blake Seale were present to review changes with recycling 
and the impact facing all municipalities.  Discussion took place regarding additional funding request to cover 
the costs at the Fall Town Meeting, state list of what is required to be recycled and to educate the public on 
recycling. 
 

http://www.wnewbury.org/
ajennings
Text Box
I



Page 2 of 5 Selectmen’s Meeting, August 20, 2018 
 

It is recommended that consumers buy products in bulk to reduce recycling and the Selectmen suggested to look 
at alternative options for the future. 
 
Memo from Town Manager Angus Jennings 
Packet from the Board of Health with request for funding and backup documentation 
 

E. West Newbury Riding & Driving Club: Special Event Permit 
 
Selectman Anderson moved to approve the West Newbury Riding and Driving special event permit 
application for September 9th.  Second by Selectman Archibald with a unanimous vote, 2-0-0. 
 
Special Event Application from West Newbury Riding and Driving Club 
 

F. Update on School Building Committee/School Committee selection of preferred design for High School 
Project, and potential Pentucket acquisition of abutting parcel 

 
Superintendent Justin Bartholomew gave an update on the design selected for the High School Project, (N3.3f) 
7th-12th New Construction, 3-Story and the process in place for the purchase of the abutting property.  The 
school’s counsel is looking at the procedure to follow for the purchase and if a warrant article is needed. 
 
Documentation on the new construction plan with preferred schematic report – tax impact 
Email from Town Manager to Superintendent Re: Potential land purchase, Pentucket 
 

G. Review of proposed location for relocation of public safety sign to accommodate new LED sign 
 
Police Chief Art Reed discussed the new sign coming next month and the need to relocate the current sign and 
suggested options.  The Selectmen agreed to table this item until the next meeting to allow them to view the 
area. 
 
Email from Police Chief Reed: Front sign 
 

H. Request authorization to sell old police cruiser to dealership as part of trade for new cruiser 
 
Discussion took place with Police Chief Reed who suggested to dispose an old cruiser by trading it in due to the 
condition of the vehicle.     
 
Selectman Anderson moved to dispose of the former police vehicle unit 301 as a trade in to CMS of 
Plymouth.  Second by Selectman Archibald with a unanimous vote, 2-0-0. 
 
Memo from Police Chief: Town owned property 
 

I. Proposed MOU from the City of Newburyport for Police Services 
 
Police Chief Reed explained the reason for the proposed police services memorandum of understanding with 
the City of Newburyport.  Without a clear boundary line near the turnaround on Turkey Hill road toward 
Quaker Cemetery, this agreement will allow each department to carry on with enforcement activities and not to 
worry about boundaries. 
 



Page 3 of 5 Selectmen’s Meeting, August 20, 2018 
 

Selectman Anderson moved to approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the City of 
Newburyport and allow the Town Manager to sign on behalf of the Town.  Second by Selectman 
Archibald with a unanimous vote, 2-0-0. 
 
Memo from Police Chief: MOU with the City of Newburyport for Police Services 
Proposed Mutual Aid Agreement 
 

J. Proposed changes to job description for Police Corporal 
 
Police Chief Reed proposed a revision to an outdated job description for the title of Corporal. 
 
Selectman Anderson moved to approve the revised Corporal job description.  Second by Selectman 
Archibald with a unanimous vote, 2-0-0. 
 
Memo from Police Chief and job description 
 

K. FY’19 Pump out agreement with the Town of Salisbury 
 
The Board decided to table this item in order to first review the details on services rendered last year. 
 
Proposed Intermunicipal Agreement for the Administration of Shared Services 
 

L. Proposed policy: Disposition of low value items 
 
This item was tabled. 
 

M. Update on Stormwater Management staff working group and NOI due on October 1, 2018 
 
Town Manager Jennings outlined due dates and requirements for the Massachusetts MS4 Permit, First Year 
Requirements. 
 
EPA notice regarding Stormwater Management 
 

N. Update on Pipestave Parking, Circulation and Land Use Advisory Committee; proposed changes to 
Committee composition; and proposal for CPC funding for parking, circulation improvements 

 
Town Manager Jennings outlined the direction from the committee to add more parking due to the increased use 
to the fields and to extend the equestrian parking; the committee is prepared to submit a proposal and estimate 
to the CPC (Community Preservation Committee) for a new Pipestave Hill parking on the Dunn property. 
 
The Town’ GIS does not include the Mill Pond/Pipestave Conservation Restriction delineating bounds of 
“municipal use area”.  Mr. Jennings is working with all parties to create a more definitive GIS to delineate the 
area at this property. 
 
Mr. Jennings recommended the addition of a Mill Pond committee representative and to designate the Town 
manager as a non-voting member. 
 
Selectman Archibald moved to make the changes to the committee makeup on the Pipestave Parking, 
Circulation and Land Use Advisory Committee by changing the Town Manager to an ex-officio member 



Page 4 of 5 Selectmen’s Meeting, August 20, 2018 
 

and to add a new member from the Mill Pond Committee.  Second by Selectman Anderson with a 
unanimous vote, 2-0-0. 
 
Selectman Archibald motioned that the Board of Selectmen give their approval with moving forward 
with the presentation to the CPC related to the second proposal of creating a new east bound road from 
the access road down to the stone wall at the west side of the Dunn property with the possibility of a 
future parking area for the Pipestave area.  Second by Selectman Anderson with a unanimous vote, 2-0-0. 
 
Multiple documents: August 20th agenda, photos of Dunn field, preliminary estimate and memo from Town 
Manager Angus Jennings 
 

O. Continued review of Board/staff communication protocols 
 
The Board clarified communication with the staff as we move forward with a transition to a Town Manager 
form of government. 
 
Email regarding Selectmen correspondence 
 

P. Appointments/Reappointments 
 
Selectman Anderson moved to reappoint Cindy Sauter as a member of the Bicentennial Committee with 
a term expiration of June 30, 2019.  Second by Selectman Archibald with a unanimous vote, 3-0-0. 
 
Email from Cindy Sauter 
 

Q. Selectmen’s Meeting minutes dated June 25, 2018 and July 23, 2018  
 
Selectman Anderson moved to accept the Selectmen meeting minutes dated June 25, 2018 and July 23, 
2018 as written.  Second by Selectman Archibald with a unanimous vote, 2-0-0. 

 
Draft minutes dated June 25, 2018 and July 23, 2018 

 
Town Manager Updates 

R. Update on Bicentennial Committee progress, and appearance at Sept. 4th Board of Selectmen meeting 
 
Mr. Jennings updated the Board on a proposed schedule of events for the Bicentennial per his conversations 
with the Chair of the committee. The committee will attend the Selectmen’s September 4th meeting to give an 
update. 
 
Memo from Town Manager Angus Jennings: Bicentennial Update 
 

S. Update on recent and scheduled meetings with Auditors, Dept. of Revenue, Essex County Retirement 
 

Mr. Jennings met with the auditors last week as an initial review of the FY’18 audit; is meeting with DOR 
(Dept of Revenue) tomorrow to learn the Gateway portal for setting the tax rate and has a scheduled meeting 
with the retirement board after Labor Day. 

 
Mr. Jennings added that he is meeting with the River Access Committee on September 12, 2018. 

 
T. Follow up meeting assignments 



Page 5 of 5 Selectmen’s Meeting, August 20, 2018 
 

 
• Review last year’s budget 
• Town of Salisbury: Pump-out boat agreement 
• DLS warrant articles for Fall Town Meeting 

 
U. Placing items for future agendas  

 
• Warrant Articles: Monitoring wells at the landfill, Recycling cost from the Board of Health and any 

recommendation from the CPC 
• Page School generator 

 
Selectman Anderson moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:15pm.  Second by Selectman Archibald with a 
unanimous vote, 2-0-0. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Mary Winglass, Executive Administrator 
 
 



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 

 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 
 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 

DATE: August 31, 2018 
 

RE:  Review of appointment and management authority for DPW Director 
 
 

The DPW Director position was posted, and we are in receipt of several applications. We will 
continue accepting applications until September 20th. The appointment process that was previously 
discussed with the Board is summarized as follows: 
 

− My office is maintaining a database of all applicants, and will select a slate of candidates for 
initial screening interviews. 

− Some number of interviewed candidates will be invited back as finalists – or, depending on 
the number of qualified candidates, there may be two rounds of interview prior to the finalist 
round. 

− At the Board’s option, I would be happy to have a Board member designated by the Board 
participate in the later round interviews. 

− Upon completing the final round interviews (including satisfactory reference and background 
checks), I would bring forward a single candidate to the full Board, in open session, with my 
recommendation for appointment. 

− Pursuant to the 2005 DPW special legislation, the final appointment authority rests with the 
Board. 

− If the Board did not appoint the candidate that I recommend, I would bring forward my 
second ranked candidate for Board consideration, and so on until a candidate is appointed. 

− My primary reason for not wanting to bring forward multiple finalists for interview in a 
public meeting is out of concern that such a process could be expected to dissuade 
prospective applicants due to concern about public disclosure of their interest in potentially 
departing their present employment. 

 
Pursuant to the 2005 legislation, the DPW Director will work under the policy direction of the Board 
of Selectmen, but based on the 2017 legislation and the direction indicated by the present Board of 
Selectmen the position will work under the professional and administrative oversight of the Town 
Manager. Depending on what processes we may put in place for goal setting and policy, the DPW 
Department’s goals and priorities may at some point be subsumed by town-wide departmental goals 
that I would prepare in conjunction with Department Heads including the DPW Director. However, in 
whatever form this may take, the policy direction would continue to be set by the Board. 
 
This memo is intended to set out my understanding of appointment and management authority, to 
ensure that this aligns with the Board’s understanding.  

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
ajennings
Text Box
J



Department: Public Works 
Date of Revision: FY 2019 

   

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 

JOB TITLE: DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC WORKS (L10) 
 
  
Position Purpose:  
Highly complex professional, administrative, and supervisory work in planning, directing, and 
managing the operations of the Department of Public Works; all other related work as required.   
 
Supervision: 
Supervision Scope: Performs highly responsible work requiring the exercise of considerable 
independent judgment in the planning, direction, and control of the operation and maintenance of 
the public works infrastructure. 
 
Supervision Received:  Subject to the appointment authority and works under the policy direction 
of the Board of Selectmen. Works under the professional and administrative oversight of the 
Town Manager. The Director is an exempt salaried position.  
 
Supervision Given:  Has supervisory responsibility directly and through subordinates for all 
Highway and Buildings and Grounds department part-time and full-time employees. 
(Approximately 5 - 10 full-time equivalent employees.)  Hires staff with approval of the Board 
of Selectmen or, if so authorized by the Board of Selectmen, with approval of the Town 
Manager. Daily personnel oversight and direction, reviews employees’ performance, and 
counsels and disciplines staff consistent with town policies and in coordination with the 
Personnel Officer. 
 
In a project management capacity, and at the direction of the Town Manager, may exercise 
oversight, but not supervisory responsibility, of other municipal department heads for specific 
projects as necessary to accomplish the Director’s assigned responsibilities. 
  
Job Environment: 
Work is generally performed under typical office conditions; occasional exposure to variable 
outdoor weather conditions and hazards associated with construction sites, storm damage, and 
natural disaster.  Frequently required to work outside of normal business hours; may be required 
to work on weekends.  Frequently exposed to dusty conditions; work environment can be very 
noisy.  On call 24/7 for emergencies. Snow and ice operations are an essential function of the 
position. 
 
Operates automobile, light trucks, and heavy trucks. Regularly operates computers and standard 
office equipment such as telephone, copier, and printer. Comfortable working in a networked 
office environment with file sharing and coordination among multiple town departments and 
public agencies. 
 
Makes regular and continuous contacts requiring perceptiveness and discretion with other 
departments, town boards and commissions, local, state, and federal agencies, engineers, 
attorneys, architects, professional organizations, and with the general public; most contacts are 



Department: Public Works 
Date of Revision: FY 2019 

   

professional in nature and require discussing highly complex information related to DPW 
activities. 
 
Has access to all department-related confidential information such as bid proposals and 
personnel files of direct reports. 
 
Errors in judgment and administration may have far-reaching effects on the Town’s ability to 
deliver services and may result in lower standards of service, sub-standard construction and 
inadequate maintenance programs with consequent danger to public safety; errors in supervisory 
and financial decisions could have legal and financial repercussions.  
 
Essential Functions: 
(The essential functions or duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various 
types of work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not 
exclude them from the position if the work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the 
position.) 
 
Plans, directs and budgets the activities of the Department of Public Works.  Prepares 
departmental operating and capital budgets; coordinates budget efforts with the Town Manager 
and other town boards/committees.  Administers and approves of all departmental expenditures.  
Seeks State and Federal Grants.  Prepares and executes State Chapter 90 road funding project 
request and final payment requests. 
 
Oversees the competitive bidding process to ensure compliance with applicable regulations, and 
in coordination with the Chief Procurement Officer; prepares bid specifications; reviews bid 
proposals and interviews prospective contractors and consultants; monitors and evaluates 
contractual services for compliance with specifications and applicable conditions. 
 
Formulates, develops, and recommends departmental policies, projects, and procedures; 
implements and administers policies and directives of the Board of Selectmen and the Town 
Manager.  Interact with the general public; listen to their concerns and problems and strives to 
resolve customer service requests in an efficient and effective manner. 
 
Acts as Highway Superintendent. Supervises the overall administration and direction of highway 
operations, including the maintenance and repair of streets, roads, bridges, sidewalks, guardrails, 
catch basins, and related facilities; the maintenance of vehicles and equipment; tree maintenance; 
snow and ice removal; street sweeping; and roadside brush removal. Coordinates scheduling of 
roadway paving and improvements with the Water Department as necessary to achieve cost and 
operational efficiencies. Coordinates annual vehicle inspections for Highway and Buildings & 
Grounds departments. 
 
Develops and annually updates a long-range program, for inclusion and/or reference in the Town 
Capital Plan to maintain and/or upgrade the physical facilities of the Town: i.e. roads, drains, 
buildings, parks, equipment, etc.  Capital improvement planning in coordination with the Water 
Department with the intent to achieve cost and operational efficiencies (i.e. coordinated 



Department: Public Works 
Date of Revision: FY 2019 

3 

procurement, contracting, project management). Submits proposed Capital Plan updates to the 
Town Manager annually for review and approval by the Board of Selectmen and Town Meeting. 
 
Develops work schedule and assignments for all department employees; establishes a time frame 
for projects and ensures timely completion of tasks and projects; reviews the quality of work 
performed and ensures that work complies with industry standards.   
 
Plans the utilization of personnel and equipment in accordance with work schedules; orders 
materials and supplies. Oversees the sharing of personnel and equipment with the Water 
Department as necessary for system operations and repairs, including emergency repairs.  
  
Supervises the buildings, grounds, and equipment of the Department of Public Works and makes 
provisions for necessary maintenance, alterations, new construction, and replacement as 
required. 
 
Supervises building maintenance services in all Town buildings.  Assesses all town buildings to 
evaluate condition and needs.  Addresses all building equipment failures, which could be any 
time of day or night including weekends.  Manages the Page School repairs and renovations. 
 
Oversees and coordinates municipal staff involvement in the pre-construction and construction 
inspection process relative to private development of infrastructure to be proposed for public 
acceptance, including but not limited to proposed subdivisions. Leads pre-construction meetings 
with project developers, contractors, and representatives from local departments and agencies. 
Establishes and oversees a coordinated system for tracking compliance with permit conditions 
imposed by the Planning Board, Conservation Commission, Board of Health, and other 
authorities as applicable. 
 
Works with the Planning Board, Board of Appeals, Board of Health, Conservation Commission 
and various other Boards, Commissions and Committees. As required, attends meetings of the 
Board of Selectmen, School Committee, Capital Improvements Committee, and Finance 
Committee. 
 
Manages and oversees contractors and vendors involved in construction, installations, 
maintenance and/or material/product procurement in DPW related programs. 
 
Manages winter snow/ice operations. Sets contractor plow rates and determines extent of each 
storm event and the number of plow units required. Advises the Town Manager on road and 
safety conditions to inform consideration of weather-related closures or schedule adjustments for 
public facilities. 
 
Represents the department at a variety of different meetings both within and outside of the Town 
system. Responds to complaints, concerns, and questions from the public, other town 
departments, members of the building community, etc. 
 



Department: Public Works 
Date of Revision: FY 2019 

4 

Responsible for all project planning and coordination including, but not limited to: determining 
schedules for road constructions, street sweeping, street line painting, catch basin cleaning, crack 
sealing, etc. 
 
Acts as Chair of the town’s interdepartmental Stormwater Management Working Group. Oversee 
the preparation, adoption and periodic amendments, and management of the Town’s federal 
stormwater management plan and policies; prepares annual and periodic reporting as required 
and attends related seminars.   
 
Prepares and manages turf management plan for all athletic fields. 
 
Acts as Tree Warden; assures that town trees are maintained in an acceptable standard; new 
trees, shrubs, and plantings are handled and placed in accordance with generally accepted 
standards; damaged or diseased trees are pruned and/or removed as the situation dictates. 
 
Responsible for updating, administering and ensuring continued departmental compliance with 
all other State and Federal workplace safety regulations, including OSHA standards and 
requirements as applicable. 
 
Attends seminars and informational meetings as needed to stay abreast of technology, techniques 
and regulations related to the duties of the Public Works Director.  
 
Serves as the Town’s DPW representative on various committees as assigned by the Board of 
Selectmen or the Town Manager. 
 
Supervises the maintenance of guardrails, street signs and safety striping and markings. 
 
In times of emergency, coordinates activities with other Town departments to protect the 
interests and property of the Town and to promote public safety and welfare. 
 
Performs similar or related work as assigned.  
 
Recommended Qualifications: 
Education, Training and Experience: 
Bachelor’s degree in public administration, civil engineering, environmental studies or related 
field and ten years of direct public works experience including supervisory experience; 
experience in commercial or municipal tree care; or any equivalent combination of education, 
training and experience. Must be experienced in all phases of snow and ice operations. Must be 
experienced with road maintenance and construction, buildings and grounds operations, and 
facilities management. 
 
Special Qualifications: 
Class B Massachusetts Commercial Driver's License 
Construction Supervisor License 
Hoisting Engineers License 
 



Department: Public Works 
Date of Revision: FY 2019 

5 

Knowledge, Ability and Skill: 
Knowledge: Comprehensive technical and practical knowledge of the materials, methods and 
techniques relative to public works projects and issues.  Knowledge of the laws, rules, and 
regulations relating to public works projects in Massachusetts including design selection, 
contract bidding, awards, and management. Thorough knowledge of public works financing and 
administration.  Extensive knowledge of snow and ice control techniques and practices.  
Extensive knowledge of tree care and their diseases.  Knowledge of building repairs and 
maintenance and landscaping/grounds work. Demonstrated practical knowledge of Town 
Meeting and its role in the municipal budget and capital planning process.  
 
Ability:  Ability to plan, assign and supervise the work of groups of employees engaged in a 
variety of public works construction and maintenance operations.  Ability to establish and 
maintain effective and harmonious working relationships with town officials and departments, 
state/federal agencies and the general public.  Ability to communicate effectively in written and 
oral form.  Ability to prepare and administer budgets, prepares financial reports, and prepares 
grants.  
 
Skill:  Skill in all of the above listed tools and equipment.  Excellent planning and organizational 
skills.   
 
Physical  Requirements: 
(The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an 
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job.  Reasonable 
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential 
functions.)   
 
Must be able to access all areas and levels of a construction site and/or building, and is 
frequently required to spend several hours walking or standing.  Required to climb or balance on 
temporary construction stairways, temporary steel staging, ladders and ladder staging.  Stoops, 
kneels, crouches, and/or crawls; enters and exits from vehicles.  Regularly required to operate 
objects, tools, or controls.  Frequently lifts and/or moves objects weighing up to 30 pounds such 
as tools, equipment, supplies, etc.; infrequently lifts object weighing up to 100 pounds.  
Correctable vision and hearing required.  
 
(This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and 
employee and is subject to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and 
requirements of the job change.)  



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 

 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 
 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 

DATE: August 31, 2018 
 

RE:  Review of FY19 Salary Range Schedule 
 
 

Up until a few years ago, it is my understanding that the Board voted annually to establish a Salary 
Range Schedule. This action was pursuant to Sec. 4.2 of the Personnel Policy, excerpted below: 
 
4.2  Classification and compensation plans 

The Board has adopted a uniform system for the classification of positions to establish proper 
relationships between positions, based on the level of responsibilities assumed and the minimum 
qualifications required to perform the job so that the same schedule of compensation may be 
applied to each class, ensuring equal pay for equal work. 
 
The Board may adopt a compensation plan to reward and retain qualified employees by providing 
merit incentives linked to performance. The compensation plan will take into consideration the 
relative responsibilities of positions as set forth in job descriptions, wage rates paid for 
comparable positions in comparable communities and in the private sector, wage rates paid under 
collective bargaining agreements, economic conditions in the general labor market, and the 
Town's fiscal policies. The plan shall be reviewed and revised from time to time in order to 
maintain a fair and equitable compensation system for the Town. 

 
In my review of my predecessors’ files, the most recent such Salary Range Schedule was adopted in 
FY16, and no other staff person had a more recent document on file. I have therefore created a new 
Salary Range Schedule for FY19 which applied the 2% COLA for FY17, FY18 and FY19, each as 
was voted in the respective budget process. I am only seeking Board endorsement of the present year 
file, but have provided the most recent approved document (FY16) and in-between years for 
reference. 
 
The Town Accountant has reviewed the enclosed FY19 Salary Range Schedule, and we believe this is 
accurate. There are a couple of instances where actual personnel’ pay does not fall within the range, 
but those instances can be addressed on a per-employee basis as needed – and in some cases may 
result from prior Board actions, pursuant to the policy, to “reward and retain qualified employees by 
providing merit incentives linked to performance.” Part of why I am focused on making better use of 
our payroll software, and centralizing more of the record-keeping on personnel and compensation 
matters, is to better document when such actions are taken, and to allow management to efficiently 
analyze compensation and trends both across the organization and on a per-employee basis. 
 
In the meantime, the FY19 file is provided with a request for the Board’s endorsement. In the future, I 
would anticipate preparing an updated Salary Range Schedule for approval within the budget process.  

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
ajennings
Text Box
K



Wage classification updated through FY19 Town of West Newbury

                                TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
                       EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION POLICY
                                         SALARY RANGES

                                         FISCAL YEAR 2019

Cola 1.02                        

Hours per week
Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Grade Hourly Hourly Hourly 40

Rate Rate Rate
Minimum Midpoint Maximum

1 Minimum Wage* 12.60 14.20
2 12.64 15.01 17.37 26,398              31,337            36,275                

3 15.80 18.17 20.53 32,998              37,936            42,874                

4 18.93 21.31 23.69 39,529              44,502            49,474                

5 22.11 24.48 26.86 46,174              51,124            56,074                

6 25.27 27.65 30.02 52,774              57,723            62,673                

7 28.41 31.57 34.74 59,328              65,928            72,527                

8 31.55 36.30 41.05 65,882              75,793            85,704                

9 37.90 42.63 47.36 79,127              89,003            98,880                

10 44.21 48.94 53.67 92,303              102,180          112,057              

11 50.52 56.83 63.14 105,480             118,656          131,833              

12 60.00 66.30 72.61 125,278             138,444          151,609              

Massachusetts minimum wage
$11.00 effective January 1, 2017

 
Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager, August 2018

WORKING DRAFT of 8/18/2018 2019 Angus Jennings, Town Manager



Wage classification updated through FY19 Town of West Newbury

                                TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
                       EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION POLICY
                                         SALARY RANGES

                                         FISCAL YEAR 2018

Cola 1.02                        

Hours per week
Minimum Midpoint Maximum

Grade Hourly Hourly Hourly 40

Rate Rate Rate
Minimum Midpoint Maximum

1 Minimum Wage* 12.46 13.92
2 12.39 14.71 17.03 25,881              30,722            35,564                

3 15.49 17.81 20.13 32,351              37,192            42,034                

4 18.56 20.90 23.23 38,754              43,629            48,504                

5 21.68 24.00 26.33 45,269              50,121            54,974                

6 24.78 27.10 29.43 51,739              56,592            61,444                

7 27.86 30.96 34.05 58,165              64,635            71,105                

8 30.93 35.59 40.24 64,591              74,307            84,023                

9 37.15 41.79 46.43 77,575              87,258            96,941                

10 43.34 47.98 52.61 90,493              100,176          109,859              

11 49.53 55.71 61.90 103,411             116,330          129,248              

12 58.82 65.00 71.19 122,822             135,729          148,636              

Massachusetts minimum wage
$11.00 effective January 1, 2017

 
Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager, August 2018

WORKING DRAFT of 8/18/2018 2018 Angus Jennings, Town Manager



Wage classification updated through FY19 Town of West Newbury

                                TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
                       EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION POLICY
                                         SALARY RANGES

                                         FISCAL YEAR 2017

Cola 1.02                        

Hours per week

Minimum Midpoint Maximum
Grade Hourly Hourly Hourly 40

Rate Rate Rate
Minimum Midpoint Maximum

1 Minimum Wage* 12.08 13.65
2 12.15 14.43 16.70 25,373               30,120            34,866                

3 15.19 17.46 19.74 31,716               36,463            41,210                

4 18.20 20.49 22.77 37,994               42,774            47,553                

5 21.26 23.53 25.81 44,381               49,139            53,896                

6 24.29 26.57 28.85 50,724               55,482            60,239                

7 27.31 30.35 33.39 57,024               63,368            69,711                

8 30.33 34.89 39.45 63,324               72,850            82,376                

9 36.42 40.97 45.52 76,054               85,547            95,041                

10 42.49 47.04 51.58 88,719               98,212            107,705               

11 48.56 54.62 60.69 101,384             114,049          126,713               

12 57.67 63.73 69.79 120,414             133,068          145,722               

Massachusetts minimum wage
$10.00 effective January 1, 2016
$11.00 effective January 1, 2017

 
Source: Angus Jennings, Town Manager, August 2018

WORKING DRAFT of 8/18/2018 2017 Angus Jennings, Town Manager



Wage classification updated through FY19 Town of West Newbury

                                TOWN OF WEST NEWBURY 
                       EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION POLICY
                                         SALARY RANGES

                                         FISCAL YEAR 2016

Cola 1.02                        

Hours per week

Minimum Midpoint Maximum
Grade Hourly Hourly Hourly 40

Rate Rate Rate
Minimum Midpoint Maximum

1 Minimum Wage* 10.69 13.38 13.12                25.47
2 11.91 14.14 16.37 11.68                  16.05                22.68 31.17 24,875.60          29,529.12       34,182.65            

3 14.89 17.12 19.35 14.60                  18.97                28.34 36.84 31,094.50          35,748.02       40,401.55            

4 17.84 20.08 22.33 17.49                  21.89                33.96 42.50 37,249.50          41,934.97       46,620.45            

5 20.84 23.07 25.31 20.43                  24.81                39.67 48.16 43,511.00          48,175.17       52,839.35            

6 23.82 26.05 28.28 23.35                  27.73                45.33 53.85 49,729.90          54,394.07       59,058.24            

7 26.78 29.75 32.73 26.25                  32.09                50.98 62.30 55,906.20          62,125.10       68,344.00            

8 29.73 34.21 38.68 29.15                  37.92                56.60 73.63 62,082.50          71,421.50       80,760.50            

9 35.71 40.17 44.63 35.01                  43.75                67.97 84.94 74,562.90          83,869.95       93,177.00            

10 41.66 46.11 50.57 40.84                  49.58                79.29 96.27 86,979.40          96,286.45       105,593.50          

11 47.60 53.55 59.50 46.67                  58.33                90.60 113.26 99,395.90          111,812.40     124,228.90          

12 56.54 62.48 68.42 55.43                  67.08                107.61 130.23 118,052.60        130,458.45     142,864.30          

$8.00 2013 Massachusetts minimum wage

$9.00 effective January 1, 2015
$10.00 effective January 1, 2016
$11.00 effective January 1, 2017

 
Source: T:\Gould wagerange.xls

WORKING DRAFT of 8/18/2018 2016 Angus Jennings, Town Manager



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 

 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 
 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 

DATE: August 29, 2018 
 

RE:  Method for tracking accrual of vacation time for qualified part-time employees 
 
 

Early in my tenure, I became aware that there has not been formal centralized tracking of accrual and 
use of vacation and sick time. These records have been kept at the Department Head level – although, 
beginning in FY18, the Finance office did begin tracking vacation and sick time used on a current 
basis (based on information provided on employee timesheets), then reconciled this information with 
department heads periodically and at fiscal year-end. 
 
In order to improve management understanding of employees’ vacation and sick time balances, and to 
ensure consistency of tracking, I am working with staff to set up centralized tracking of accrual and 
usage, to include regular reporting on employees’ paystubs of their remaining vacation and sick time. 
 
Toward those objectives, I have prepared a methodology to track accrual of qualified part-time 
employees’ accrual of vacation time.1 At Sec. 5.1.2 the Personnel Policy provides that “Qualified 
part-time employees shall be entitled to vacation leave with pay on a pro-rated basis based on their 
regularly scheduled weekly hours.” (Sick time is addressed in a separate memo, attached). 
 
The table on the following page applies, for a number of illustrative qualified part-time employees, 
their pro-rated percentage (relative to 40 full-time hours) of the amount of vacation provided to full-
time employees in accordance with Sec. 5.1.1 of the policy.   
 
For example, illustrative Employee C is scheduled to work 32 hours/week, so is entitled to 80% 
(32÷40) of the accrual of a full-time employee.  So, for someone in their first 5 years of Town 
employment, they would receive 0.6664 vacation days/month (which is 80% of the 0.833 that would 
be provided a full-time employee). This 0.6664 would be multiplied by 8 hours, with 5.3312 hours of 
vacation time added to that employee’s vacation accrual per month. The resulting monthly accrual 
percentages are provided in a separate table, at different tiers based on employee tenure. 
 
I believe these calculations to be accurate, and believe that it is within my authority to apply these 
accrual formulas. However, because timesheet and payroll approvals have been within the Board’s 
authority for many years, I wanted to bring this forward to ensure your understanding of how I intend 
to proceed. I’ll be happy to respond to any questions you may have. 

                                                           
1 The Personnel Policy defines a Qualified Part-Time Employee as “a part-time employee working at least twenty 
(20) hours per week for 52 weeks per year.” 

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org
ajennings
Text Box
L



Worksheet to calculate qualified part-time accrual of vacation time Worksheet to calculate qualified part-time accrual of vacation time

Monthly Vacation Accrual for Qualified PT Employees (days) DRAFT Monthly Vacation Accrual for Qualified PT Employees (hours) DRAFT

Name Hrs/Wk
Percent 

of 40 <5 5-10 10-20 20+ Name Hrs/Wk
Percent 

of 40 <5 5-10 10-20 20+

Employee A 37 93% 0.7705 1.1563 1.5355 1.9240 Employee A 37 93% 6.1642 9.2500 12.2840 15.3920
Employee B 34 85% 0.7081 1.0625 1.4110 1.7680 Employee B 34 85% 5.6644 8.5000 11.2880 14.1440
Employee C 32 80% 0.6664 1.0000 1.3280 1.6640 Employee C 32 80% 5.3312 8.0000 10.6240 13.3120
Employee D 32 80% 0.6664 1.0000 1.3280 1.6640 Employee D 32 80% 5.3312 8.0000 10.6240 13.3120
Employee E 31 78% 0.6456 0.9688 1.2865 1.6120 Employee E 31 78% 5.1646 7.7500 10.2920 12.8960
Employee F 30 75% 0.6248 0.9375 1.2450 1.5600 Employee F 30 75% 4.9980 7.5000 9.9600 12.4800

Employee G 28 70% 0.5831 0.8750 1.1620 1.4560 Employee G 28 70% 4.6648 7.0000 9.2960 11.6480
Employee H 28 70% 0.5831 0.8750 1.1620 1.4560 Employee H 28 70% 4.6648 7.0000 9.2960 11.6480
Employee I 27 68% 0.5623 0.8438 1.1205 1.4040 Employee I 27 68% 4.4982 6.7500 8.9640 11.2320

Employee J 25 63% 0.5206 0.7813 1.0375 1.3000 Employee J 25 63% 4.1650 6.2500 8.3000 10.4000

Employee K 24 60% 0.4998 0.7500 0.9960 1.2480 Employee K 24 60% 3.9984 6.0000 7.9680 9.9840
Employee L 20 50% 0.4165 0.6250 0.8300 1.0400 Employee L 20 50% 3.3320 5.0000 6.6400 8.3200

Employee M 20 50% 0.4165 0.6250 0.8300 1.0400 Employee M 20 50% 3.3320 5.0000 6.6400 8.3200

Tenure (Yrs)Tenure (Yrs)



Town of West Newbury 
381 Main Street 

West Newbury, Massachusetts 01985 
Angus Jennings, Town Manager 

978·363·1100, Ext. 111 Fax 978·363·1826 
townmanager@wnewbury.org 

 

 

TO:  Board of Selectmen 
 

FROM: Angus Jennings, Town Manager 
 

DATE: August 29, 2018August 31, 2018 
 

RE:  Recommended method for tracking accrual of sick time for qualified part-time employees 
 
 

Following on the prior memo regarding accrual of vacation time, this memo addresses the question of 
sick time accrual for qualified part-time employees. 
 
The Personnel Policy at Sec. 5.2.1 reads “Full-time and qualified part-time employees shall accrue 
sick leave at the rate of .833 days per completed month.” 
 
Unlike the vacation accrual, the Personnel Policy section on sick time does not refer to pro-rating 
accrual of sick time for qualified part-time employees. However, there is language later in the policy 
that could suggest an intent to do so. 
 
Sec. 5.2.4 discusses the Sick Time Pool for Catastrophic Illness Policy, and item 6 below that section 
states that “Donations [to the Sick Time Pool] must be in whole days (that is, 8-hour increments) – 
The donations of part-time employees will be rounded up to whole day increments.” 
 
Although I find no definition in the Personnel Policy stating that a “day” will be construed to mean 8 
hours, the section excerpted above suggests that this is how a “day” should be considered. The second 
part of the sentence also suggests that when part-time employees donate a “day” that they’re in fact 
donating something less than a day – hence the need to round up. 
 
If it is correct to interpret that qualified part-time employees will accrue sick time on a pro-rated 
basis, then the attached table summarizes the number of hours of sick time that would accrue to each 
such employee, based on their regular number of hours per week. 
 
If, on the other hand, the intent of the policy is that sick time be accrued in “days” – not hours – then 
a flat 0.833 days (6.664 hours) would accrue each month based on the understanding of 8 hours as a 
day. 
 
The Board’s direction is sought in order to ensure that this is implemented consistently with the 
policy intent.   

  

mailto:townmanager@wnewbury.org


Worksheet to calculate sick time accrual Worksheet to calculate sick time accrual

Sick Time Accrual for Qualified PT staff (days) Sick Time Accrual for Qualified PT staff (hours)
DRAFT DRAFT

Name Hrs/Wk
Percent 

of 40
Accrued sick 
days/month Name Hrs/Wk

Percent 
of 40

Accrued sick 
hrs/month

Employee A 37 93% 0.7705 Employee A 37 93% 6.1642
Employee B 34 85% 0.7081 Employee B 34 85% 5.6644
Employee C 32 80% 0.6664 Employee C 32 80% 5.3312
Employee E 31 78% 0.6456 Employee E 31 78% 5.1646
Employee F 30 75% 0.6248 Employee F 30 75% 4.9980
Employee H 28 70% 0.5831 Employee H 28 70% 4.6648

Employee I 27 68% 0.5623 Employee I 27 68% 4.4982
Employee J 25 63% 0.5206 Employee J 25 63% 4.1650
Employee K 24 60% 0.4998 Employee K 24 60% 3.9984

Employee M 20 50% 0.4165 Employee M 20 50% 3.3320


	09_04_2018 Board of Selectmen Agenda and Packet
	B Memo to BoS re Bicentennial Committee 8-20-18
	C Street Opening Permit 2019-03
	STREET OPENING PERMIT

	CPC project funding application - Pipestave - August 2018
	D One day liquor license
	E1 Memo re Salisbury pump-out agreement for BoS mtg of 9-4-18
	E2 Salisbury pump out reports
	E3 Salisbury Agreement
	F proposed sign relocation
	G1 Memo re Pipestave proposals for BoS mtg of 9-4-18
	G2 Applications to CPC
	G3 Re_ FW_ Applications to CPC
	G4 FW_ CPC eligibility and funding proposals for Pipestave
	HA Memo to BoS re potential Fall TM warrant articles 8-31-18
	HB BOH Article Landfill Monitoring
	HC Map of location of landfill monitoring wells and gas vents
	HD BOH Article Recycling
	HE TAX RATE PROJECTION50K WITH INCREASE
	TAX RATE IMPACT 

	HF Anderson email re recycling costs
	HG Seale email responding to Anderson email re recycling costs
	HH BoH info re recycling waivers
	HI Recycling Info from BOH
	HJ CCC_ArticleRequest.Fall2018
	HK Submittal of CPC Warrant Article
	HL Article Request Form PipestaveDunn Master Plan
	HM Project Application for Eligibility_08142018
	HN Project  Application for Funding_08142018
	HO ParksRec_PowerPoint_08142018
	HP Excerpt from West Newbury CCC Financial Policies June 2018
	HQ Pentucket reimb for SRO
	HR CPC project eligibility application - Pipestave - August 2018
	HS CPC project funding application - Pipestave - August 2018
	HT Memo Temporary Assistant
	Memo
	________________________________________________________________________


	I 08_20_2018 Open Session Minutes
	381 Main Street, Town Office Building

	J1 Memo re DPW appt process for BoS mtg of 9-4-18
	J2 jobdesc - DPW Director - as posted
	K Memo re FY19 salary range schedule for BoS mtg of 9-4-18
	L Memos re vacation and sick accrual for BoS mtg of 9-4-18

	Text1: Architect services to draw and cost out proposed Annex design 
	Text2: $4,000.00
	Text3: Vanessa H. Graham
	Text4: (978) 701-2998
	Text5: The Committee's charge is "to study the feasibility and potential sites of an intergenerational community center for the Town of West Newbury, Mass., develop plans for such a facility, and come before Town Meeting with a request to fund this venture." The Community Center Committee has completed rigorous research and, as a result of the potential high school project, we have determined that re-purposing The Annex is the best initial option for an Intergenerational Community Center to offset the financial burden on the town. With these requested funds, we will be able to gather enough information to come before the town and fulfill our charge. We consulted with a carpenter pro bono, who indicated that these architect services would run a few thousands dollars (drawings plus costing out). Any remaining funds the CCC would return to the town.
	Text6: As aforementioned, the Committee has done considerable research to get to this point of needing an architect. The impetus for this project is the overspilling Senior Center, which is currently awaiting a space solution. There are a number of other community groups in town that are also in need of activity/meeting space as soon as possible. 
	Text7: It shouldn't take too long to draw up the plan and cost out, however we need to factor in the time it will take to send out an RFP and interview potential architects. Therefore, we suggest June 30, 2019, however our goal is to complete the architect portion as soon as possible.
	Text8: None
	Text9: Yes, it does. Request to Capital Improvements Committee sent 08/22/18.


